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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: ~Gubbins M (Matthew) (MARLAB)

Sent: 27 July 2012 14:44 _

To: _ Bland M (Michael) (MARLABY; 'Sinclair, Douglas'
Subject: RE: Formalin 2012

HALAMID is 100% Chloramine T (antiviral/bactericide/fungicide) and has been used for treating
Bacterial Gill Disease. Just saw it online from a Canadian company but am not sure about its VMD
status in the UK. http://www.wchemical.com/HAL AMID-Chloramine-T-P74C8.aspx We can dig
further unless SEPA have already comé across it? ' .

Craig is on leave for 2 weeks from today so will have been unlikely to be able to help at short notice.

My understanding of where we are with formalin is that we provided a one off consent in the past
using the draft EQS values trecomniended by SEPA, with reservations that the robustness of those
values were not great. We therefore wanted to-adopt a presumption against and prefer operators to
use methods with less environmental risk (fresh water where possible). T don't think we are any
further on from this view at present, although we could probably consider applications for small
treatment quantities. These are wellboat discharges?

Matt

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 27 July 2012 14:20

To: Gubbins M (Matthew) (MARLAB)
' Subject: FW: Formalin 2012

Matt,
Craig had nothing and Douglas has helped a little. We are being asked for formalin discharge
licences as last year. We have a strong presumption against but I am struggling to get advice, are

there any other avenues you think I could consider?

Mike

From: Sinclair, Douglas [mailto:douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk]
Sent: 27 July 2012 12:18 : .

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Subject: RE: Formalin 2012

Hi Mike

| can’t remember where we left the possible_maﬁne standard for formaldehyde but the proposed draft PNECs
~ that we have are:

0.58ugﬂ as a long term standard
5.8ug/l for a short term standard
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- For intermittent discharges the short term standard would probably what would be used for regulatio'n.

| haven't heard of Halcomed either indeed it doesn’t throw up anything on Google (my font of all information)
atallr .

Douglas Sinclair
Specidlist | {Aquaculiure)
SEPA Orkney Office
Norlantic House
KIRKWALL

"Qrkney
KW151GR

Tel: 01856 871080
“Mob: 0797 9245513

Fax: 01854 871090

SEPA Extn: 2729 .

E-mail: douglas.sinclair@sepa.org. Uk

I no longer work on Mondays, normally available Tuesday - Friday.

B% Save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary

The information contained in this email is conﬁd.enllal and is intended solely for the use of the named addressee. Access, copying or re-use of the
information in it by any olher is not authorised. If you are not the intended recipient please nohfy us immediately by return email 1o

postmaster@sepa.org.uk.

SEPA regislered office: Erskine Court, Castle Business Park, Sfifling, FK9 4TR. Under the Regulation of Invesligatory Powers Act 2000, the email
system at SEPA may be subject to monitoring from time to time.

From: Michael. BIand@scotIand gsi.gov. uk [mailto:Michael. BIand@scotIand gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 27 July 2012 11:25

To: Sinclair, Douglas

Subject: Formalin 2012 -

Hi Douglas,
Hope all is well.

MS-LOT has received a few prospective enquiries about formalin discharge post AGD treatment
This is much earlier in the year than before.

Have there been developments on the draft marine EQS that we discussed last autumn?

Another query I have received related to Halcomed, not heard of it before but making the assumption
it’s a Cloramine 1 type product, any ideas?

Mike

" Mike Bland

Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team
Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
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Direct Line: . 01224 295408
Switchboard: 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524 _
Email: michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
w: http:/Awww. scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

-k*****'k***-k-k-}:*-k****‘k‘k‘k*********‘k*i’-}rir***-k-k****-k-k-!r***"k******i"}r*‘k********

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is intended
solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage,
copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is not permitted. If you are not
‘the intended recipient please destroy the email, remove any copies from your system
and inform the sender immediately by return. '

Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in‘ordef to-
secure the effective operation of the system and for other lawful purpcses. The views
or opinions contained within this e-mail may not necessarily reflect those of the
Scottish Government.

Tha am post-d sec (agus faidhle neo ceanglan comhla ris) dhan neach neo luchd-
ainmichie a-mhain. Chan eil e ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an doigh sam bith, a’
toirt a-steach coéraichean, foillseachadh nec sgacileadh, gun chead. Ma s e is gun
d’ fhuair sibh seo le gun fhiosd’, bu’ choir cur as dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam
bith air an t-siostam agaibh, leig fios chun neach a sgaoil am post-d gun dail.

Dh’ fhaodadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na n-Alba air a chlaradh
nec air a sgridadh airson dearbhadh gu bheill an siostam ag obair gu h-&ifeachdach neo
airson adhbhar laghail eile. Dh’fhaodadh nach eil beachdan anns a’ phost-d seo co-
ionann ri beachdan Riaghaltas na h-Alba. '

****************‘k**********-ﬁr********-***-k-k********i"}r************‘k******

The original of this email was scanned for viruses by the Government Secure Intranet virus scanning
service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) On leaving the GSi this email was certified virus free.
Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or. recorded for legal
purposes. : :

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. o '
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Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

Fom: [

Sent: - 16 July 2012 13:37 _ ’
To: ~ Duncan R {Rachael) (MARLAB)
Subject: Amoebic Gill Disease

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Red

Dear Rachael

We had some correspondence last year regarding amoebic gill disease treatment- unfortunately as you may be
aware it has reared its head again as a serious issue in Scottish salmon farms over the past few months. Since the
spring, most affected farms have been treating with hydrogen peroxide with reasonable success, although my
experience is that as water temperature increases a few sites are finding that they need to re-treat- we expect
this shortening of treatment intervals to continue until water temperatures peak in the autumn. In general
terms, farms are identifying AGD on their fish at an early stage and {at least in our client's farms) we have not yet
seen a repeat of the high mortalities that marked the AGD outbreak last autumn. ‘

Our present concern is that as temperatures increase and salinities remain high (many sites have experienced
low rainfall since the spring), there's a possiblity we may be faced later in the year with trying to treat severely
respiratory-diseased fish at high temperatures with hydrogen peroxide. We have already reduced dosages in
cases where water temperature has been high, and it may be that in a few months time the appropriately 'safe’
doses are relatively ineffective. Due to a lack of rainfall, freshwater treatment is not going to be an option for

" most of the companies we deal with too. ‘

While we're not presently keen to use formalin for AGD, and it seems that the opinion amongst the very few vets
who have used it for this purpose is that the results are ambiguous, 1 wondered if it would be possible to get
comment from Marine Scotland (from a licensing perspective) regarding the use of formalin in wellboats for AGD.
As you're aware, permission was granted for it's use by the Scottish Salmon Company at Loch Roag last year.
While | did not attend the treatment myself, the opinion of the attending biologist was that it was beneficial,
severely diseased fish coped remarkably well with it, and it interupted the mortality pattern on the site. -
Unfortunately the chance wasn't taken to collect detailed efficacy resulis at the time. We expect that as the
weeks go on our practice (and also Marine Scotland) may well receive inquiries from salmon producers regarding
the feasibility of using formalin to treat AGD cases if hydrogen peroxide becomes unacceptably hazardous to fish.
I should add that formalin also becomes more hazardous at higher temperatures, and our advice to our clients is
likely to remain that peroxide is the best understood treatment presently (excluding fresh water), but it would be
good to have comment from Marine Scotland regarding formalin at this point.

- Lastly, one of our clients has indicated that if MS were prepared to consider permission for an isolated treatment
of one or two cages with formalin (perhaps during site treatment with peroxide), they'd be pleased to co-operate
with any attempt to compare or benchmark the two treatments- perhaps this might be of interest to the MS
pathologists etc? ' ‘ '

Kind regards

Veterinary Sur

02/11/2012
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LEGAL INFORMATION: This e-mail message has been swept by anti-virus software. You are solely responsible for ensuring the
mail or attachment you receive is virus free, We disclaim liability for any damage you suffer as a consequence of receiving any v
views expressed within the e-mail are that of the author and may not necessarily constitute or imply Its endorsement or recommr

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-virus service
supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with Messagelabs. (CCTM Certificate Number
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Bland M (Michael} (MARLAB)

From:

Sent: 19 January 2012 16:09
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB); Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)
Subject: License to discharge Formalin

Hi Mike/ Rachel

| was contacted today by our F1sh Health team requestmg fo see if we can get permission to use Formalin on
site at the following sites. North Moine and Bheachan.

Both sites currently have smolts onsite at approximately 200g.
Unfortunately because of the size of fish involved Hydrogen peroxide treatments are not considered to be the

best treatment available as this is to harsh a treatment for the fish.
As such is it possible to get Formalin added to the existing licenses.

If you could contact me asap to discuss or drop me an email with what you require.

Thanks,

Enwronmental and Development Manager

The information In this emall Is confidential and for the use of the addressee only. If you are not the Intended reclplent please notify the sender and remove
the message from your computer,

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems please call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. ' '
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Bland M (Mlchael) (MARLAB)

From: Mills, Jennifer [j.mills@vmd.defra.gsi.gov.uk]

Sent: . 01 December 2011 15:57

To:  Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Cc: Shelley, Loma; Reynolds, Lea

Subject: FW: Use of formalin to treat Atlantic salmon suffering from Amoebic Gill Disease

Dear Mike

Thank you for your query which has been passed to me for reply. Formalin is not an authorised
veterinary medicinal product in the UK, however, we are content that formalin may be administered
under the direction of a veterinary surgeon as a specific course of treatment administered in
accordance with the prescribing cascade. As formalin is not an authorised product then we have no
information on its fate or effects in the environment and no ‘position’ regarding its use from an
environmental perspective.

The principte of the prescribing cascade is that, if there is no suitable veterinary medicine authorised
in the UK to treat a condition, the veterinary surgeon responsible for the animal may, in particular to
avoid causing unacceptable suffering, freat the animal in accordance with the following sequence, in
descending order of priority: '

oA veterlnary medicine authorised in the UK for use in another ahimal spemes or for a different
condition in the same species.

o If there is no such product, the next option is either —
0 a medicine authorised in the UK for human use, or

0 a veterinary medicinal product (VMP) not authorised in the UK but authorised in another Member
State (MS) for use in any animal species (in the case of a food-producing animal the medicine must
. be authorised in a food producing species) in accordance with an import certificate issued by the

- VMD. : '

o If there is no such product, the last option is a medicine prescribed by the veterinary surgeon
responsible for treating the animal and prepared extemporaneously by a veterinary surgeon, a
pharmacist or a person holding an appropriate manufacturer’s authorisation. In exceptional
circumstances, medicines may be lmported from Third countries through the VMD’s import scheme.

Food producing animals may only be treated under the Cascade with medicines which contain

pharmacologically active substances listed in the Table of Allowed Substances in Commission

Regulation EU (European Union) No 37/2010, in the lnterest of food safety EU Commission

Regulation No 37/2010 can be found on

http://ec.europa.eu/health/files/eudralex/vol-5/reg_2010 37/reg_2010_37_en. Ddf Formalin is listed
in this table.

A vetennary surgeon prescribing for, or administering a medicine to, food-producing an[mals under
the Cascade is required to specify an appropriate withdrawal period to the animal produce. When
setting the withdrawal period, a veterinary surgeon must take into account known information about
_ the use of the product on the authorised species when prescribing to another species under the
Cascade. Unless the medicine |nd|catee a withdrawal period for the species concerned this should
not be less than:

0O 7 days for eggs and milk

00 28 days for meat from poultry and mammals
0 500 degree days for meat from fish
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It may be advisable to also contact the Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) to ensure
that the release of formalin would not have any wider environmental implications.

Kind regards
Jennifer Mills

~ From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael. Bland@scotland gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 10 November 2011 11;27

To: Baker, Amanda

Subject: Use of formalin to treat Atlantic salmon suffering from Amoebic Gill Disease

Dear Amanda,

You provided some information to me regarding hydrogen peroxide product for use in treating sea
lice some time back

T work in the marine licensing team at Marine Scotland and we licence discharges in the sea. Several
salmon companies have asked to discharge formalin into the marine environment after treating
Atlantic salmon for amoebic gill disease. We licensed one series of discharges to deal with one
specific outbreak after information from the vet stated it was the best solution available to the
company. ‘

Does the VMD have a position on the treating of post smolt to-adult Atlantic salmon with formalin?
Any advice or information you could provide would be most welcome.
Kindest regards

Mike

Mike Bland _ : -

Marine Licensing Casework Manager

Licensing Operations Team

Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government § Mérine‘Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB

Direct Line: 01224 295529
Switchboard: 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524
Email; - michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: http://iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

This e-mail {and any files or other attachments transmilted with i) is
intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised

use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this
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Veterinary Medicines Directorate (VMD)

This email and any attachments is intended for the named recipient only.
If you have received it in error you have no authority to use, disclose,
store or copy any of its contents and you should destroy it and inform
the sender. .

Whilst this email and associated attachments will have been checked for
known viruses whilst within VMD systems we can accept no
responsibility once it has left our sysiems.

Communications on VMD's computer systems may be monitored and/or
recorded to secure the effectlve operation of the system and for other -
lawful purposes.

This email has been received from an éxiernal party and

has been swept for the presence of compuler viruses.
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‘Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

rom: |

Sent: 16 November 2011 11:48

To: " Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Cc: | ‘ o
Subject: RE: Data from this week's treatment

Attachments: West Loch Roag FVG 81811.pdf
Hi Mike,

Sorry | have not replied sooner. | enclose a follow up visit report from the Fish Vet Group although this does
need updating as the mortality rates have decreased dramatically and are now at an acceptable level..In my
opinion, if we had not treated when we did then mortality would still be ongoing and may even have
approached the level experienced at our Lamlash site on Arran where we lost three quarters of the stock ina
matter of weeks.

From Mlchael Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 11 November 2011 11:39

To:

~ Subject: Data from this week’s treatment

|

As you know you are required to submit 1nf0rmat10n relating to the dlscharge of formahn under the
Marme Llcence :

In order to establish the justification for the discharge could you please furnish me with additional
information relating to how successful the treatment was. In this way Marine Scotland can assess the
- validity of such activity. ‘

Kind regards

Mike

Mike Bland

Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team

Marlne Scotland Marine Planning & Pohcy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory. PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 QDB

Direct Line;- 01224 295529
Switchboard: 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524
Email: michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk _
w: http://www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland
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@) FishVet Group

Tel: +44 (0) 1463 717774 Fax: +44 (0) 2463 717775 Enail: info@fishvet.co.uk

Case Reference: FVG 818/11

Company: Scottish Salmon Company : | Site:-West Loch Roag- Vuia Beag

Reporting to: —_

Copies to: FVG clinical team

SITE REPORT | Dater10.11.11

Reasan for Visit: Assessment of continuing outbreak of clinical amoehic gill disease {posi-treatment).

BACKGROUND

Pens 5, 8 and 15 were treated on 7.11.11 with 200ppm formalin by wellboat.
Pens 12, 13, 14 and 15 were treated on 8.11.11 with 200ppm formalin by wellboat.

SAMPLING & OBSERVATIONS

Pens 1', 5, 8 and 10 were previously sampled for histopathology {3.11.11).

Pens 1 and 3 continue to have low mortalities, and were offered feed by site staff today along with the other
untreated pens on the site where mortalities remain comparatively low (pens 9, 10, 11). Of these pens, only pen 1
took the entire ration and observed feeding response in remaining pens was slow. ‘

Treated pens continue to be on starvation.

Only two or three days have passed since treatment, so it is‘early to be confident about mortality patterns.
subsequent to treatment. Additionally, while all treated pens had mortalities removed on the day of visit not all

data were available at the time of writing.

It appears that pen 5 has a declining mortality pattern (3000 on treatment day, 450 on Tuesday, 166 yesterday and
60 today). '

The reduction in pen 8 is less marked (750 on treatment day, 850 on Tuesday, 250 yesterday and at least 200
todav [exact figure not available at time of writing]}.

For pen 12 today’s mortality numbers were not available, but the pen had 1080 on treatment day and 350 the
next day. :

Peh 13 had 1000 at treatment, 850 yesterday and 104 today- so the pattern is encouraging here.
Pen 14 had 950 at treatment, 500 yesterday and today's numbers were not available.
Pen 15 lost 1200 at treatment, 200 on Tuesday, 488 yesterday (a risel) then 12 today.

Pen 16 lost 950 at treatment, 85 yesterday and 45 today.




*

Amoebae identified with difficulty in very low numbers on gills/in mucus o '

L 4 Amoebae present in moderate numbers "
L Amoebae present in high numbers
Pen | Insp | Observations
1 . Fish low in water, not easily observable from surface due to water conditions. A few fish with resplratory symptoms seen
on camera when offered food.
3 fish sampled and examined.
Fish 1-1: gill scare 3 (at base). Deformity of left operculum not likely to be significant. No amoehae observable in mucus
or gill filaments.
Fish 1-2: gill scare 3 {at base). Very low numbers of amoebae in mucus (+). None seen in gill filaments.
Fish 1-3: gill score 2 {at base). No amoebae observable in mucus or gill filaments,
Pooled gills taken for histopathology
3 . Fish low in water, not easily ohservable from surface due to water conditions.
5 . Fish low in water, not easily observable from surface due to water conditions. Relatlvely qu:ck to rise when offered food
for sampling. ‘
. '3 fish sampled and examined, -
- Fish 5-1: gill score 3. Moderate numbers in mucus (+), filaments clear.
Fish 5-2: gill score 3. Very low numbers in mucus (*), filaments clear.
Fish 5-3: gill scare 2. Very low numbers in mucus (), filaments clear.
Three fish sampled for histopathology-
6 .
8 . Fish low in water as athers. Slow to rise when offered food during sampling!
3 fish sampled and examined. .
Fish 8-1: gill score 4 (at base). Moderate numbers in mucus (¢}, filaments clear.
Fish 8-2: gill score 3. Maderate numbers in mucus {*), filaments clear,
Fish 8-3: gill score 2. Low numbers in mucus {#}, filaments clear.
Pooled gifls taken for histopathology
9
10 . Fish low in water as others.
3 fish sampled and examined.
Fish 10-1: gill score 2. No amoebae seen in mucus or filaments. '
Fish 10-2: gill score 2 (at base). No amoehae seen in mucus or filaments.
Fish_10-3: gill score 1/2. No amoebae seen in mucus or filaments.
Pooled gifls taken for histopathology.
11
12 Fish low in water as others.
3 fish sampled and examined.
Fish 12-1: gill score 3. Moderate numbers in mucus {+), filaments clear.
Fish 12-2: gill score 3/4. Low numbers in mucus (*}, low numbers in filaments.
Fish 12.3: gill score 3. Low numbers in mucus ( ), low numbers in filaments.
Pooled gills taken for histapathology
13 . Fish low in water as others,
3 fish sampled and examined.
Fish 13-1: gill score 4. Low numbers in mucus (*}, absent from fllaments despite gill score!
Fish 13-2: gill score 3. Low numbers in mucus {*), absent from filaments.
Fish 13-3: gill score 2. Low numbers in mucus (*}, absent from filaments.
Pooled gills taken for histopathology.
14
15 . Fish low in water as others.

4 fish sampled and examined. .
Fish 15-1: gill score 2. Low numbers in mucus (0), absent from filaments.

Fish 15-2: gill score 2. Low numbers in mucus (¢}, absent from filaments.

2




Fish 15-3: gill score 3. Low numbers in mucus {*+), absent from filaments.
Fish 15-4: gill score 3. Low numbers in mucus (*), absent from filaments.
Three fish sampled for histopathology (15-1,15-2 and 15-3).

16 . Fish low in water as others.

Three fish sampled and examined.

Fish 16-1: gill score 2. Low numbers in mucus ( ), filaments clear.

Fish 16-2: gill score 1. Low numbers in mucus (#), filaments clear.

Fish 16-3: gill score 1. High numbers in mucus {¢- peculiar when gilt score so lowl}), very few/none in fllaments.
Pooled gills taken for hjstopatho!ogy

Comments
An improving picture on the site following treatment.

At the last visit, peracute clinical disease was being experienced onsite: evidenced by large numbers of fish high in
the water showing respiratory diSeasre symptoms, large mortalities, high amoebae burdens in gill tissues and
yellow-ish livers suggesting hepatic pathology secondary to the AGD. Histopathology taken from pens 5'and 8 at
the last visit confirmed this liver necrosis- suggesting pale livers are indicative of an acutely bad AGD problem.

While it is still an early stage following treatment, mortality rates in all treated cages have improved, and this may
be as strong an indicator as any other of treatment success. '

Cages 5 and 8 were the two pens examined prior to and after treatment (ie. on 3.11.11 and 10.11.1i1}. My
subjective impression was that there was an improvement in sampled fish from both pens, more obvious in pen 5.
Fish from both pens had healthier-coloured livers, and it will be interesting to hear [l comments on
follow-up histopathology. Gill scores in these pens {and all pens on ‘site} did not look distinctly different or
improved from my previous visit, although this is difficult to gauge. My impression was that amoebae numbers
identified in mucoid lesions were not clearly different to pre-treatment levels, but filaments outside of mucoid
lesions showed lower levels of stray amoebae. It may be the case that formalin treatment was- successful in
removing these thin films of amoebae from the relatively healthier gill tissue, but unsuccessful in removing them
from the mucoid lesions: probably unsurprising given the thick, almost caseous consistency of some of these. The
observation from [ ano MR that the fish appeared to visibly improve following formalin
treatment seems to me consistent with the hypothesis that amoebae in thin mucoid films are being removed from
otherwise functional gill tissue, resulting in a quick improvement.

Although the treatment certainly appears to have been successful, it is probably important to note that this
doesn’t prove {in the scientific sense) the efficacy of formalin against Neoparamoeba perurans, which we believe is
likely to be the aetiological agent here. Temperature change, mortality removal and other factors could have a
bearing that may have contributed to the improvement observed here. Despite this, going forward it might be
worth considering in future reviews of AGD management strategy the arrangement of formalin discharge consents
.in_high-risk sites prior to disease detection. In vitro demonstration of efficacy or f:eld trial data would be very
useful in improving confidence in this strategy.

Reported by: IGGG_—EE—

LAB REPORT |

IPN Co-agglutination

Reported by: : | Date:
Bacteriology o

Reported by: ' ' | Date:




Serology

| Date;

Reported by: :

Other [e.g. X-rays, Blood Chlorides etc] .

Reported by: | Date:
Histopathology

Reparted by: | Date:
Further Comments/Recommendations

Reported by: Date:
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‘Bland M (Michaef) (MARLAB)

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 14 November 2011 16:24

To: , .
Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); Megginson C (Colin) (MARLAB}); Cartney M (Matthew)
Subject: RE: Emergency Treatment Application

Dear [

Thank you for your application to release formalin from a wellboat. As per my e-mail of 10th Nov, Marine
Scotland wish to agree a way forward with other relevant bodies and relevant stakeholders as there are
issues with the discharge of formalin that MS-LOT need to understand fully before we can consider the
implications of licensing the discharge from wellboats. More information than an EQS is required before a
licensing mechanism can be put in place. MS-LOT will not be in a position to progress any applications for
. the discharge of formalin to the marine environment until the relevant regulators, stakeholders and
legitimate users of the sea have agreed an appropriate way forward.

Kindest regards

Mike

From: |
Sent: 11 November 2011 17233 .~

To:

Cc: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Subject: Re: Emergency Treatment Application

Sorry pleése ignore the application fbrm below. Ihave updated the Wellboat details and atiached below.
(See attached file: Scallastle AGD application form v2.doc) Regards, |

Environmental Analyst
Scottish Sea Farms Ltd

: : To ,
11/11/2011 16:53 ~  Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
' cC.

o Subject
Emergency Treatment Application



Dear Mike,

Please find attached the BPEO and application form for an emergency treatment of Amoebic Gill Dfseaée at
our Scallastle Site, Sound of Mull for the targeted treatment of 5 cages, This site is currently the one in the
most immediate danger, there are currently three other sites in the Sound o.f Mull on watching briefs.

[attachment "Wellboat AGD BPEO SSF.doc" deleted vy [attachment "Scallastle

. AGD application form.doc" deleted by —

Regards,

Environmental Analyst

- Scottish Sea Farms T.td
I ‘
*****************#****************************%********$**************
Registered Office - Please address all post to: '
Scottish Sea Farms Ltd Scottish Sea Farms Ltd

- Equitable House Laurel House

- 47 King William Street =~ Laurel Hill Business Park
London Stirling
EC4R 9AF , FK7 9]

Company No. 958001

This email and any files transmitted with it are ‘confidential’ and intended solely for the use of the individual
or entity to whom they are addressed. The unathorised use, disclosure, copying or alteration of this message
is 'strictly' forbidden. If you have received this email in error please notlfy the sender and Scottish Sea Farms
postmaster <postmaster@scottishseafarms.com>.

We may monitor all communications through our network, If you contact us, we may store your name and
~ address to facilitate communication with you.

Any views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, except where the message explicitly
 states otherwise. :

~ We take reasonable precautions to ensure our communications are virus free. However, we cannot accept
responsibility for any virus transmitted by us and recommend that you sub_]ect your own communications to
virus checking procedures ‘

This footnote also confirms that this email message has been swept for the presence of computer viruses,

spam and other unacceptable content.
EEFEELEEFEL LSS EE RS LR EEE RIS L LR R LR EEEE T LR LR L L

*******************************************************************11ﬁsenmﬁlhasbeen V

received from an external party and has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Sinclair, Douglas [douglas.sinclair@sepa.org. uk]
Senf: 10 November 2011 11:58
. To: Bland M {Michael) (MARLAB)
Cc: Gubbins M (Matthew) (MARLAB) Megglnson C (Coalin) (MARLAB)
Subject RE: Formalin discharge at sea

“Yes Mike, | think this is a topic worthy of further discussion.

We have had this draft standard worked up for formaldehyde in seawater for other purposes but coincicentally
it may be useful ion dealing with-the use of the substance for dealing with AGD in cage farmed salmon.

From my perspective though, we are some way from being able to license these discharges albeit that the
reality is that the industry want/need access to the chemical to deal with that particular problem. Under normal
circumstances we need a great deal more information than an EQS before we would put in place a licensing
mechanism and we would normally get the pharmaceutical firm developing the medicinal product to undertake
much of the work required to derive that information. Mainly we would be looking for information and data that
gives us a propoer handle on the fate and behaviour of the chemical in the environment following release.

For example, for something like formaldehyde that is to be used in a bath type formulation:
Is the product likely to fully mix with the water/effluent stream leaving the cage

Does it float ar does it sink;

Does it strongly adsorb to partlcles/f shlcage structures;

Does it decay rapidly due to-light/pH/other mechanisms;

Which particular groups of animals/plants are at particutar risk and so on.

In this case, clearly the use of formaldehyde is belng taken forward by the farmers or their vets rather than
any pharmaceutlcal firm and the imperative to use is driving the licensing process at a rather rapid rate
meaning we have a cart before horse type situation. | am not even clear on how the formaldehyde is
formulated, if it is not already part of a medicine, it is not clear to me (although that may be due to
inadequacies of understanding on my part) how the chemical can be administered in a way that complies with
Veterinary Medicines Regulations — although of course that is probably a matter for the VMD rather than us.

Our draft EQS is clearly a reasonable starting point but in developing a regulator approach, we would need to
‘decide on what timescale such a standard should be met or indeed whether it could be met within a
reasonable timescale. We are currently having an internal discussion about standards and timescales in
relation to cypermethrin, the upshot of which may be a more sophisticated way of dealing with this
conundrum,

We have obviously had occasional Ilalsbn meetings dealing with various subjects in the past and it may be
that the formaldehyde issue may provide the spur to have another where we can look to formulate a unified
approach among other issues.

Maybe we should try to set a date for a sit down?

Douglas Sinclair

Specidlist | {Aguaculture) .

SEPA Crkney Office . —
Norlantic House

KIRKWALL

Orkney

KW15 1RE

Tel: 01856 871080

Mob: 0797 9245513

Foe: 01856 871090

SEPA Exin: 2729

E-mail: douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk

21/11/2012
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- I no longer work on Mondays, normally available Tuesday - Friday.

B% Save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary

-The information contained In this email is confidential and is intended solely for the use of the named addressee. Access, copying or re-uge of lhe
information in it by any other is not authorised. If you are not the intended racipient please notify us immediately by return email to
postmaster@sepa.org.uk. .

SEFA'regislered office: Erskine Court, Castle Business Park, Stirling, FK9 4TR. Under the Regulatidn of,.lnvesligatory Powers Act 2000, the email
system at SEPA may be subject to moniloring from time to time. ' ’ '

From: Michael. BIand@scotIand gsi.gov. uk [mallto Michael, Bland@scotland gsi. gov uk]

Sent: 09 November 2011 16:01

-To: Sinclair, Douglas

Cc: Matthew.Gubbins@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; Colm Meggmson@scotland gsi.gov.uk
Subject: Formalin discharge at sea

Douglas,

* Following the licensing of a discharge of formalin in Loch Roag following emergency treatment of

- AGD last week, MS-LOT have had several queries from fish farming companies to discharge
formalin at their sites. We maintain the line that last week must not be permitted to set a precedent. It

. this is something we are likely to encounter a lot then it requires more consideration.

You mentioned your draft marine standard. Can I ask if this is something that SEPA will use as a
guide for the advice given for any further applications of this nature? Is it to remain in draft form for
long? I'm just really trying to ascertain if SEPA and MS can have a unified approach to applications
for formalin.

Not to be too presumptive but the amount of formalin used to treat a full site could be in exceedance
of the EQS. This being the case it would be good to have a unified strategy and some idea of the
extent of the AGD problem.

~ Just opening the tOplC up fora more holistic discussion really.
Thanks for helping out last week. .

Mike

Mike Bland

.Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team

Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Pollcy

Scottish Govemment[ Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 'QDB

Direct Line: 01224 295529
Switchboard: 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524 .
Emiail: michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
W, ' http:/iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

21/11/2012
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This e-mail (and any files or other atlachrﬁents transmitted with it) is
intended solely for-the attentipn of the ad&res_see(s). Unauthorised

use, disclosure, storage, copying or disfribution of a;ny part of this

' e-mail is not permitted._ if yoq are not the inlended reéipient please
.deslroy the email, rempve any copies from your system and inform

the sender immediately by return.

Comiunications with the Scot..lish Government may be monitored or
recc_:‘rded in or&er to secure the effective operation of the system and -
for other lawlul purposes. The views or opinioné contained within

this e-mail may not necessarily reflect those of the

Scottish Government.

B T T T T e L e L el

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
purposes. :

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs, (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. '

FRR AR AT AR AR RA AR A Ak ke etk LE LT P P L

This email has been received from an external parly and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Sent: ' 14 November 2011 10:45

To: 7 Cartney M {(Matthew)

Subject: RE: The discharge of formalin from Wellboats
“Matt,

I believe that it is because its effects in the marine environment have not been modelled.

Regards.

Mike

From: Cartney M (Matthew)

Sent: 14 November 2011 10:27

To: Bland M {(Michael) (MARLAB)

Cc: Stewart JB (Bruce); Megginson G (Colin) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: The discharge of formalin from Wellboals
Mike,

Thanks for this. Can you confirm if Formalin is not often licensed for well-boat discharge due to some
nature of the chemical that makes it less suitable for marine use or simply because its use is new to this
particular environment?

Matt

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 11 November 2011 11:33

To: Cartney M (Matthew)

Cc: Stewart 1B (Bruce); Megginson C (Colm) (MARLAB)
Subject: The discharge of formalin from Wellboats

Matt,

- Last week we speedily turned around an application for a one-off series of discharges of formalin from a
wellboat. The formalin had been used to treat an outbreak of Amocbic Gill Disease in farmed Atlantic
salmon in Loch Roag, Lewis.

Formalin is a biocide and is not often licensed for discharge from fish farms under CAR. It is commonly
used in freshwater aquaculture to remove parasites from fish gills. There is interest from the rest of the
industry to get a licence for the same and we will come under increasing pressure to repeat the-licensing.

I have approached SEPA and the Veterinary Medlcmes Directorate to establish thelr take on the issue and
we should meet with SEPA to discuss a way forward. _

Bruce, I have c0p1ed you in as you may be interested in the developments here. When we set up the
licensing of chemotherapeutants for sealice we took our lead from SEPA, this time it looks as though the
industry is only lookmg for wellboat discharges and we will therefore have to take the lead, despite SEPA's
long history of assessing such activities.

Mike




Mike Bland ' :

Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team :

Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB

Direct Line: 01224 295529
Switchboard: 01224 §76544

Fax: 01224 295524 :
Email; michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
W, http://www.scotland.gov. uk/marinescotland
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Bland M (Michae!) (MARLAB)

From:
Sent: 11 November 2011 15:52 '
"To:  Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Subject: RE: Data from this week's treatment

Will get you something by Monday/Tuesday next week. Initial results ére extremely promising — mortality
has dropped considerably post treat. ‘

From: Mlchael Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov. uk]
Sent: 11 November 2011 11:39

To: I

" Subject: Data from this week's treatment -

As you know you are required to submlt 1nf01‘mat10n relatmg to the dlscharge of formahn under the
Marine Licence.

In order to establish the Justlﬁcatlon for the discharge could you please furnish me with additional
information relating to how successful the treatment was. In this way Marine Scotland can assess the
validity of such activity.

Kind regards

Mike

Mike Bland

Marine Licensing Caséwork Manager
Licensing Operations Team

Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB

~Direct Line: 01224 295529
Switchboard: - 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524
Email: - michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

W http://www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

This e-mall {and any files or other attachments transmitted with it} is
intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unéuthorised
use, disclosure, slorage, cdpying or distribution of any part of this

e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please -

05/11/2012
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. destroy the email, rémove any copies from your system and inform
the sénder immediately by. rélurn.
Communications with tll19 Scottish Government may be monitored or - '
recorded in order to secure the effective operation of the system and
for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions contained within
this e-mail may not necessarily reflect those of the

Scottish Government.

B L e e e e

The original of this email was scanned for viruses by the Government Secure Intranet virus scanning
service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with Messagel.abs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) On leaving the GSi this email was certified virus free.
Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal

purposes.

This e-mail message Is for the sole use of lhe intended recipient and may conlain confidenlial and privileged information. Any unauthorised
review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended reciplent, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail
and deslroy all copies ol lhe original message. -

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranct anti-
virus service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s I'T Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically loggeci,'morﬁtored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. :

R T e e A R e e s *

This email hés been received from an external party and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.

05/11/2012




Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Morrison D (Donald) (Fisheriés)
Sent: : 11 November 2011 12:12

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: SSC dlscharges

Mike

The fish could be seen an TV cameras aboard the wellboat and did seem to be breathing more easﬂy after
the treatment had been applied. :

Although the cages that were treated on Monday were still suffering mortality on Tuesday, it wasn’t clear -
whether that was because of stress caused to the fish or because the treatment was ineffective.

SSC were expecting a drop off in mortality by the end of this week if the treatment had been successful.

I’ll ask Karen to forward the photos to you.

Donald Morrison
Senior Fishery Officer
Marine Scotland — Compliance

Scottish Government | Fishery Office | Custom House | Quay Streét | Stornoway HS1 2XX

Tel: +44 (0)1851 703291
S/B: +44 (0)1851 703291
Fax; +44 (0)1851 7056840
e: donald.morrison2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

" we hitp:/iwaww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From: Bland M (Michael} {(MARLAB)
Sent: 11 November 2011 11:55
To: Morrison D (Donald) (Fisheries)
Subject: RE: SSC discharges

Donald,
Thank you very much for the report, and for gbing to the boat for the two days.
Please do send the pictures I would be glad of them and can file them with the rest of the information here.

Was there any comment from the staff as to the success of the operation?

Mike

From: ‘ Morrison D (Donald) (Fisheries)
Sent: 09 November 2011 19:26

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB}

Cc: Young A (Ally); Mckenzie G (Gregor)
Subject: SSC discharges

<< File: Site Visit - West Loch Roag.doc >>

- Mike ,

See attached, short report of our site visit to The Scottish Salmon Company on 7%/8" November.
We took a few photos on Monday, let me know if you want them.



Donald Morrison
Senior Fishery Officer
Marine Scotland — Compliance

Scottish Government | Fishery Office | Custdm House | Quay Street | Stbrnoway HS1 2XX

Tel: +44 (0)1851 703291

S/B: +44 (0)1851 703291 ‘

Fax: +44 (0)1851 705840 .

e: donald.morrison2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: hitp:/www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland




SITE VISIT - LOCH ROAG. 7'“? - 8™ NOVEMBER 2011

Karen Whelton, Fishery Officer, Stornoway and [ arrived at The Scottish Salmon
Companys’ shore base at East Loch Roag at 0815hrs on 7" November 2012. The
wellboat, Viktoria Viking, was tied up at the pier.

We were told that, due to mortality on other sites in the Loch, it had been decided that
the site at Vuia Beag in West Loch Roag would be treated rather than a site in Bast
Loch Roag. We were instructed to proceed to Miavaig in West Loch Roag.

At Miavaig, we met NI (Biologist, TS SC) who had flown in from the
mainland.

At 1010hrs, I K aren Whelton and I were transported by fast boat to the
‘Wellboat, Viktoria V1k1ng, which had steamed from East Loch Roag to West Loch
Roag.

On board we met NG . | formally identified myself to Mr
Ej _by showing my Marine Enforcement Officer warrant. I gave

a copy of the Chemical Data Sheet for the Formalin Solution (38%)) that

~was to be used in the treatment, and drew his attention to the first aid measures, fire
fighting measures and accidental release measures contained within the document. .

I also inspected the ‘License To Discharge Used Chemicals’ (Licence Number
04339/11/0) which had been signed by Michael Bland on 4™ November and was valid
from 7" November 2011,

We then plotted the boundaries of the area of discharge, as stated on the llcence, onto
the vessels plotter. It was apparent that the area allowed of discharge was not close to
the site which was to be treated. I was concerned that the extra steaming time
and the swell in the area of discharge could cause additional stress to the fish. He
asked whether Condition 3 (“Force Majeure™) of the Licence, which allows the
~ discharge to take place in an area other than that specified on the license, would
apply. I replied that “Force Majeure” did not apply in this case, and that the treatment
should not commence if he felt that the sea conditions were not suitable for the '
operation.

I phoned and ¢ mailed Marine Licensing Branch to ask whether the area of
discharge could be altered. At 1130hrs we were informed that there would be no
amiendment to the area of discharge.
At 1200hrs, Viktoria Viking began pumping aboard f{ish from the first cage When
this was completed, Viktoria Viking steamed out of the loch towards the discharge
area. At 1300hss, the treatment was added to the port tank and then, 10 minutes later,
to the starboard tank. Mrs Whelton and I viewed the application of the treatment from
the wheelhouse. The fish were to remain in the treatment for 40 minutes.

We arrived at the discharge area at 1338hrs and the portside well was opened in
position 58 18 294N 06 51 680W. The vessel then steamed slowly through the area
until the water in the well had been completely replaced. The vessel then tumed,
opened the starboard well, and steamed back through the box. I was able to see the
discharge arca on the vessels plotter and can confirm that the vessel remained within
its boundaries for the entire duration of each discharge. Upon completion, the vessel
steamed back to the Vuia Beag site and, at 1500hrs, began pumping the fish back into
the same cage they had been taken from.

Viktoria Viking then began pumping the second cage of fish to be treated. There was
a shift changeover at 1630hrs and Karen Whelton and I took the opportunity to get
ashore. Meanwhile, treatment and discharges were to continue overnight.




We returned to the site at 0800hrs on 8™ November, we found that a total of five

treatments/discharges had been completed and that two treatments remained.

We boarded Viktoria Viking at 0830 and remained aboard until the last two

treatments and discharges had been completed. The procedure on each occasion was

exactly the same as had been witnessed the previous day, and I can confirm that all

the discharges witnessed by us took place within the permitted areas.

Mrs Whelton and I came ashore at 1900 and returned to Stornoway. Viktoria Vlkmg

also left West Loch Roag and was tied up in Stornoway on the mormng of 9®
November 2011.
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Weatherston R (Robin)

Sent: 10 November 2011 12:12

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: URGENT HELP REQUEST

For the record, done.

R

Robin Weatherston

Marine Scotland ,
Performance, Aquaculture and Recreational Fisheries

~Scottish Government | Area 1-B North | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh EHE 6QQ

Tel: +44 (0)131 244 6246
Mob:+44 (0)7919 301 425

Fax: +44 (0)131 244 6512
e. robin.weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
w: http://www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 10 November 2011 09:53
To: Weatherston R {Robin)
Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin
Thanks for this.

It is most definitely worth pointing out that the phrase 'against SEPA advice' is not factually correct
and is something that should be nipped in the bud. ‘ |

Mike

From: Weatherston R (Robin)

Sent: 10 November 2011 09:04

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB)

Subject; FW: URGENT HELP REQUEST
Mike

See below.

I’ve made clear to Stewart that ‘any credit lies essentially with you guys!

05/11/2012
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Robin

‘Robin Weatherston

Marine Scotland
Performance, Aquaculture and Recreational Fisheries

Scottish Government | Area 1-B North | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh EHB'GOQ

Tel: +44 (0)131 244 6246

Mob:+44 (0)7919 301 425

Fax: +44 (0)131 244 6512

e: robin.weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
w: http:/fiwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From:

Sent: 10 November 2011 08;55

To: Weatherston R {Robin)

Subject: RE: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin, ‘ ‘ :

Quick update, in that we had Marine Scotland with us on a formalin treatment this week, which they gave
approval for against SEPA advice. | think from the time we got the forms in it took about 4 or 5 days for
approval which | am told is very fast compared to the norm. | also was aware of more activity after our email
exchange. So thanks for whatever you did | am sure it speeded the process. | will stil need to follow through
process and procedures but will do so at a later date. Please pass on to all who helped etc.

Regards
B

From: Robin.Weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Robin.Weatherstqn@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 27 October 2011 22:37

e
Subject: Re: URGENT HELP REQUEST -

Hi I

~You've obviously caught me cold on this. I've copied to Willie and'we will discuss with colleagues tomorrow

Not sure what the outcome will be, but a step at atime ..... .

Robin

- From:
© To: Weatherston R (Robin)
Cc:
Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011
Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin, _

I << from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. i was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you can help me and also pass on this email to Willie.

05/11/2012
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| am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment procedure my team and our vets in
the Fish Vet Group have been discussing W|th staff in Marine Scotland. | believe they have been talking with
the Marine Licensing team including Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan.

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash site where we have
lost 65% (c 250,000) of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which has had

- a disastrous effect at this location. In addition to the animal welfare issue this will probably cost us ¢ £5m in
turnover and ¢ £750k in profit in 2012. There is no real treatment for this infection although the use of
Formalin is one that has been known to have some success.

However despite the fact that formalin is a well known treatment in freshwater we cannot get approval to
use formalin in this dire animal welfare situation because it has not been modeled in the marine
environment, Also we were told that the process would take 8 weeks, which is not much good to the dying
fish who need treated now.

In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with your colleagues at the moment and | understand
there is a realisation that they will try and move fast on this. The reason we are keen to get approval quickly
is that we have now seen this ameobic gill issue in a small number of cages in sites in Loch Roag in the
Hebrides. The mortality is low and the situation is nowhere near the issue at Lamlash but | really cannot
afford to sit and wait to find out what is going to develop. | really need to act proactlvely on fish welfare
grounds and treat these cages with formalin.

The reason for this email is to request your and Willies help in getting this approval within the next 24hrs. |
realise | do not understand the procedures and bureaucracy but | do know that | have seen fish die
potentially unnecessarily and | do not want this to happen on other locations. The Fish Vet Group and.our
own staff are currently completing the forms. What | need is a rapid conclusion from the information
provided.

It is this sort of issue where the Industry really needs the effective support of Government to help prevent
these significant naturally occurring losses and | ask that you please look at my request and action matters

guickly on my behalf.

| apologise if 1 should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you were the only contact | knew and
had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

| Iook forward to hearing from you.
: Regards

Chief Operating Officer

E Email Signature.JPG

8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scottishsalmon.com
TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: Mabile: +44 (0)7803 743905

This e-mail message is for the: sole use of the intended recipient and may contain conf denllal and privileged information. Any unaulhorised review,
disclosure or distribufion is proh:blted If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail and

05/11/2012



destroy all copies of the original message.

Page 4 of 5

This email was received froin the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM

Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s I'T Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi. may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal

purposes.

R r T E e T e e

This email has been received from an external parly and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.

Rk kdefokd Rk kR ddok kbR R R AR R AR AR AR R A AR Ak kdda ks ek h bk k
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

-From: Bland M {Michael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 10 November 2011 11:27

To: _ a.baker@vmd.defra.gsi.gov.uk

Subject: Use of formalin to treat Atflantic salmon suffering from Amoebic Glll Disease
Dear Amanda,

You provided some information to me regardmg hydrogen peroxide product for use in treating sea Tlice some
time back.

"I work in the marine licensing team at Marine Scotland and we licence discharges in the sea. Several salmon
companies have asked to discharge formalin into the marine environment after treating Atlantic salmon for
amoebic gill disease. We licensed one-series of discharges to deal with one specific outbreak after
information from the vet stated it was the best solution available to the company.

Does the VMD have a position on the treating of post smolt to adult Atlantic salmon with formalin?
Any advice or information you could provide would be most welcome.
Kindest regards

. Mike

Mike Bland’ ‘ :
Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team

- Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB

Direct Line: 01224 295529

Switchboard: 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524

Email: michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

W, http:/iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland




Bland M (I\.‘Ilchael) (MARLAB)

From: ' Bland M (Mlchael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 10 November 2011 10:58
To:

. Subject: FW: Draft EQS

Dear I

Thanks for your query. As stated on the phone the EQS discussed was a draft. Marine Scotland wish to
agree a way forward with other relevant bodies prior to distributing such information. I will be in touch with
you regarding this when I have more information.

Apologies that this may take a bit of time but there are issues with the discharge of formalin that MS-LOT
need to understand fully before we can consider the implications of licensing the discharge from wellboats.

Kind Regards

Mike

----- Original Message-----

From: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 10 November 2011 10:24

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject: FW: Draft EQS

See Below -

Rachael Duncan

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Planning & Pollcy Scottish Government l Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101] 375,
Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB

Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579

S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524

¢: Rachael Duncan@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: http://www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

* Please note the generic env_prot inbox has changed, it is now: MS MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
From:
Sent: 10 November 2011 10:09

To: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)
Subject: Draft EQS

Morning Rachael,




Sorty to use you as e go between but I don't have Mike's email address. He was going to send me some
_ .information on the draft EQS for Formalin yesterday but apparently our system is having problems wrth
external emails. Could you ask him to please forward it to

Thanks

Regards,
T

Environmental Analyst

Scottish Sea Farms Ltd

*******#************************#*************************************

Registered Office Please address all post to:
~ Scottish Sea Farms Ltd Scottish Sea Farms Ltd

Equitable House Laurel House

47 King William Street Laurel Hill Business Park

London Stirling ‘

EC4R 9AF FK79JQ

Company No. 958001

This email and any files transmltted with it-are ‘confidential’ and intended solely for the use of the individual
or entity to whom they are addressed. The unathorised use, disclosure, copying or alteration of this message
is 'strictly’ forbidden. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender and Scottish Sea Farms
postmaster <postmaster(@scottishseafarms.com>. ' '

We may monitor all communications through our network If you contact us, we may store your name and
address to facilitate commumcatlon Wlth you.

Any views expressed in this message are ¢ those of the individual sender except where the message exphcltly .
states otherwise.

We take reasonable precautions to ensure our communications are virus free. Ilowever, we cannot accept -
responsrbrhty for any virus transmitted by us and recommend that you subject your own communications to
virus checking procedures.

This footnote also conﬁrms that this email message has been swept for the presence of computer v1ruses

- spam and other unacceptable content.
**********************************************************************

*******************************************************************]jﬂSGHﬁﬂlhaSbeen

received from an external party and has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
'********************************************************************
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" Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Weatherston R (Robin)

Sent: 10 November 2011 10:18

To:  Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: URGENT HELP REQUEST

QK

'R

Robin Weatherston

Marine Scotland ,
Performance, Aguaculfure and Recreational Fisheries

Scottish Government | Area 1-B North | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh EHE 6QQ
Tel: +44 (0)131 244 6246
Mob:+44 (0)7919 301 425

Fax: +44 (0}131 244 6512
e: robin.weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: http:/ivww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 10 November 2011 09:53°

To: Weatherston R (Robin)

Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB)

Subject: RE: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin
Thanks for this.

It is most deﬁnitely worth pointing out that the phrase 'against SEPA advice' is not factually correct
~ and is something that should be nipped in the bud.

Mike

From: Weatherston R (Robin)

Sent: 10 November 2011 09:04

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB)

Subject: FW: URGENT HELP REQUEST
Mike |

See below. -

I’ve made clear to Stewart that any credit lies essentially with you guys!

05/11/2012
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Robin Weatherston

Marine Scotland ,
. Performance, Agquaculture and Recreational Fisheries

Scottish Government | Area 1-B North | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh EH8 6QQ

Tel: +44 (0)131 244 6246

Mob:+44 (0)7919 301 425

" Fax: +44 (0)131 244 6512

e: robin.weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
w: http://'www scotland. gov.uk/marinescotland

From:

Sent: 10 November 2011 08:55

To: Weatherston R (Robin)

Subject: RE: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin,

Quick update, in that we had Marine Scotland with us on a formalin treatment this week, which they gave '
approval for against SEPA advice. | think from the time we got the forms in it took about 4 or 5 days for
approval which | am told is very fast com pared to the norm. | also was aware of more activity after our email
exchange. So thanks for whatever you did | am sure it speeded the process. | will stil need to follow through
process and procedures but will do so at a later date. Please pass on to all who helped etc.

Regards,

From: Robin. Weatherston@scotland gsi. gov uk [mailto: Robin.Weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 27 October 2011 22:37

To: I

Subject: Re: URGENT HELP REQUEST.

Hi
You've obviously caught me cold on this. |'ve copied to Willie and we will discuss with colleagués tomorrow
Not sure what the outcome will be, but a step at a time ......

Robin

rrom: [
To: Weatherston R (Robin)
Cc:
. Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011
Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin,

. _here from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. | was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you can help me and also pass on this email to Willie.

05/11/2012
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I am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment procedure my team and our vets in
the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine Scotland. | believe they have been talking with
the Marine Licensing team including Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan.

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash site where we have
lost 65% (c 250,000) of the fish-to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which has had
a disastrous effect at this location. In addition to the animal welfare issue this will probably cost us ¢ £5m in
turnover and c £750k in profit in 2012. There is no real treatment for this infection although the use of
Formalin is one that has been known to have some success.

However despite the fact that formalin is a well known treatment in freshwater we cannot get approval to

_ use formalin in this dire animal welfare situation because it has not been modeled in the marine
environment. Also we were told that the process would take 8 weeks, which is not much good to the dying-
fish who need treated now. '

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
afford to sit and wait to find out what is going to develop. | really need to act proactively on fish welfare .
grounds-and treat these cages with formalin.

The reason for this email is to request your and Willies help in getting this approval within the next 24hrs. |
realise | do not.understand the procedures and bureaucracy but | do know that | have seen fish die

_potentially unnecessarily and | do not want this to happen on other locations. The Fish Vet Group and our
own staff are currently completlng the forms. What | need is a rapld conclusion from the inférmation
prowded '

It is this sort of issue where the Industry really needs the effective supporf of Government to help prevent
these significant naturally occurring losses and | ask that you please look at my request and action matters

quickly on my behalf.

| apologise if | should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you were the only contact | knew and
had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

I look forward to hearing from you. -

Regards

Chief Operating Officer

El Email Signature.JPG

8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA WWw.scottishsaImon.com
: TEL: +44 {0)131 225 5679 DD: Mobile: +44 (0)7803 743905

This e-miail message is for the sole use of the infended recipient and may contain confidential and-privileged information. Any unauthorised review,
disclosure or disfribution is prohibited. if you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender hy reply e-mail, delete the e-mail and
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destroy all copies of the origlnal message.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
~ Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk.

Communications via the GS1 may be aﬁtomatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes.
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“This e-mail (and any files or other attachments fransmitted with it) is
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use, disclosure, storage, copying or disfribution of any pérl of this
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destroy the e;mail. remove any copies from your system and.inform
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Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or
recorded in order to secure the effective operation of the system and
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The original of this email was scanned for viruses by.the Government Secure Intranet virus scanning
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[N

Bland M {(Michael) (MARLAB}

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
" Sent: 07 November 2011 11:26 .

-

Subject: RE: Contact for formalin discharge

Dear I

Your proposal would need to be put out for consultation and this would take a period of several
weeks. :

You have stated in the below correspondence that you wish to change the site of origin. As this has
_ no bearing on the quantity of forrnalm dlscharged then this is permitted under your hcence

I can therefore confirm that you can d1scharge the licensed quantlty of formahn within the location
stated in your licence following treatment of fish from Vulabeag

The period of the current licence is wrongly stated on the licence issued to you. A new licence will
be issued today with the correct validity period. '

Please feel free to call and discuss. ‘
Kind regards

Mike

From:

Sent: 07 November 2011 10:42

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Subject: Re: Contact for formalin discharge

Hi Mike, unfortunately no internet signal here via the boat. As discussed on the phone the mortality from

. amoeba has increased considerably in Vuia Beag in west loch road. We would like to treat cages from this
site rather than east loch roag. There would be the same volume of formalin discharged and although we can
use the specified drop zone as specified in the license we would prefer one at the seaward side of west loch
roag due to heavy swell outside the loch. Could you please email me back if this is possible. If not then could
you confirm we are ok to use the existing license and conditions but with fish from vuia beag? Thanks.

From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
To: I

Cc: Donald.Morrison2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
~ Sent: Fri Nov 04 15:59:14 2011

Subject: Contact for formalin discharge -

L

Ihave copied this to Donald who will inspect the dlscharge on Monday. Donald can be contacted on
01851 703291.

My colleague Alan Keir will send a scanned copy of your licence to you today.

Regards

Mike

05/11/2012
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Mike Bland

Marine Licensing Casework Manager

Licensing Operations Team

Marine Scotiand - Marine Pianning & Policy

A -

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
A . .
. Direct Line:AAA 01224 295529
Switchhoard: 01224 876544

- Emall.- mlchael.bIand@scotIand.QS|.gov.uk

W, http://www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

_This e-nﬁail {and any files or olher attachments transmitted with it) is
intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised
use, disclosure, starage, copying or distribution of any part of this
e-mail is not permitted. If you ar_e'noi the intended recipient .ple-ase
~ destroy thé email, remove any copies from your system and inform
the sender immediately by return.
Communications wilh the Scottish Goverlnment may be monitored or
_recorded in order to secure the effective operation of the system and
for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions con‘tained within
this e-mail may not necessarily reflgct those of the

‘Scoitish Government,”

The original of this email was scanned for viruses by the Government Secure Intranet virus scanning
service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) On leaving the GSi this email was certified virus free.
Communications via the GSi may be automatlcally logged monitored and/or recorded for legal

purposes.

This e-mail message is for lhe sole 'use of the intended recipienl and may contain confidential and prmilegéd informalion. Any unauthorised
review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e- mall
and deslroy all copies of the criginal message.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti- ,
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052 ) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk.

Commumcatlons via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. .
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: - Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB})

Sent: ) 04 November 2011 15:58

To: Marrison D (Donald} {Fisheries)

Ce: Mckenzie G (Gregor); MS Marine Licensing; Megginson C {Colin) (MARLAB)
Subject: ‘Wellboat inspection

Attachments: lic_04339.pdf

lic_04339.pdf (232
. KB) -
Hi Donald,

Thanks for offering to go to the wellboat inspection on Monday morning,

As stated earlier what we really need is for you to be on the vessel for the first discharge. The fish will be
‘pumped into the wells and the formalin added. They should then steam to the discharge location that is in
the licence (attached) and discharge, one well at a time. Could you please inspect the location of the
discharges? They will make two discharges per trip out of the loch and the discharge zone is out past
Carloway.

I have arranged for you to meet TSSC at East Loch Roag shorebase (Breaclelt) for 8.30 on Monday. The
contact is

Thanks-again,

Mike Bland

Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team

Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Policy’

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB

Direct Line: 01224 295529

Switchboard: (1224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524

Email: michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

W http:/fwww.scotland.gov. uk/marinescotland
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The Scottish

T-+44 (0)1224 295579 F: +44 (0)1224 295524 | - Government
E: MS MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4 MARINE LICENSING -

LICENCE FOR DISCHARGING OF USED CHEMICALS FROM WELLBOATS

Licence Numbér: 04339/11/0 | '_ Reference Number: FKBAW112

Scottish Ministers (hereinafter referred to as "the licensing authority”) hereby authorise:

The Scottish Salmon Company
Mid Strome

Lochcarron

Ross-Shire

V54 BYH'

to deposit in the sea the chemicals or agents particulars of which are described in Part 1 of the
attached Schedule. The licence is subject to the conditions of use set out, o referred to, in
Part 2 of the said Scheduie.

- This licence shalil bé valid from 07 November 2011 until 05 December 2012

/%Z/

Michael Bland

For and on behalf of the licensing authority

Date: 04 November 2011
Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, - R { N s
Aberdeen AB119DB ' ' L& By /s 'ﬁ.’!
INVESTOR TN PEOPLE 0;,-“\,

www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

Part 1 — Particulars

1. Name and address of the person(s) disbharging the used chemical(s) or agent(s):

The Licensee will discharge the used chemical(s) or agent(s)

- 2. Name and address of any other égents acting on behalf of the licensee. (if appropriate):
As per Licensee
3. Name(s) of the vessel(s) to be employed to undertake the discharge bperations:
* a) Victoria Viking
The agent or licensee must notify'the Iicehs_ing authority immediately by fax if a vessel
not listed on the licence is used for the discharge of used chemicals. The information
required by the licensing authority regarding the additional vessel(s) will be the same as
the information already provided for the vessels on the existing licence. The licensing
authority will respond by fax or e-mail, confirming the addition of the new vesseltoa -
revised licence. The revised licence will then be forwarded to the agent or the licensee
by the licensing authority.
4.. Location of discharge of the used chemical(s) or agent(s):

An area bounded by the following co-ordinates:

58 17.805'N 06 52.205'W 58 18.271'N 06 52.795’'W
58 18.847°'N 06 50.521°'W - 58 18.442’N 06 49.931'W

5. Description of the themical(s) or ageht(s):
16 separate dlscharges of 1001 Formalin Solution (38%) in seawater at 200ppm, as descrlbed
- inthe application dated 31 October 2011 and supporting documentatlon

6. Quantity for discharge within the period of validity of the licence:

Total volume discharged to be no more that 1600 litres of Formaltn Solutlon (38%). 16
separate dlscharges of 1001 Formalin solution (38%).




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

Part 2 - Conditions

1. The licensee shall notify the licensing authority by fax or e-mail, at least two working days in
advance of starting the operation, with the date and time of commencement of all
operations undertaken under the authority of this licence and the product name and quantity
of chemical(s) or agent(s) intended for discharge. Details of chemical(s}) or agent(s)
discharged shall also be recorded and reported in accordance with Condition 10 of the
licence. - -

-2 | The treatment of fish should be carried out in such a way as to minimise the discharge of
chemical(s) or agent(s).

3. "Force majeure" may apply when, due to stress of weather or any other cause, it is
necessary to discharge the chemicals or agents at a location other than that specified in
Part 1 of the Schedule because the safety of human life, or a vessel or vehicle, is
threatened. If chemicals or agents are discharged in an unauthorised area, full details of
the circumstances shall be immediately notified to the licensing authority. (See also notes
appended to the Schedule).

4. No dead fish shall be discharged to the water environment ét any time. Any dead fish
should be disposed of above the Mean High Water Springs in an appropriate manner.

5. Works shall only be carried out in accordance with the application and TSSC SOP for Well
Boat Treatments dated 6 December 2010. Marine Scotland Licensing Operations Team
(MS-LOT) shall be informed if alterations are made to the treatment procedure. Copies of
the treatment procedure must be kept with copies of the licence.

6. Only those chemicals or agents described in Part 1, section 5 of the Schedule (the
authorised deposits) shali be discharged under authority of the licence and all associated
tank/hopper washings shall be discharged at the location(s) specified in Part 1, section 4 of
the Schedule. :

7. _The method of discharge shall be:

Pumped discharge via pipe/hatches from Wellboat at a depth of surface to 4 metres:
below sea surface whilst steaming within the location of discharge in accordance with
Condition 4 of this licence. Only one well containing 100l of Formalin Solution at 38% to
be discharged at any one time. :

8. Only those persons acting on behalf of, and authorised by, the agent or the licensee shall
. undertake the discharge operations. :




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

9.

10.

11.

12.

The licensee shall provide the Master(s) of the vessel(s) employed to undertake the
discharge operations with a copy of the licence. The licensee shall also ensure that copies
of the licence and all other relevant documents are available for inspection by any
authorised Enforcement Officer at:

a) the premises of the Iicensee; and

b) on board the vessel(s} employed to undertake the discharge operations.

A log of operations shall be maintained and kept on board the discharge vessel(s) -
throughout each discharge operation, and be available for inspection by an authorised
Enforcement Officer. The logs shall be retained for a period of six calendar months
fo]lowmg expiry of the licence.

For each discharge operation, the following information must be recorded:

a) the name of the vessel;

b) the niame of the product and its active ingredient;

c) ' the quantity (volume) of the product scheduled for discharge;

d) the date, time and position of each discharge operaﬁon'

e) the weather; mcludlng wmd strength and direction, sea and tidal state throughout each
discharge operation;

f) the rate of discharge during each discharge operation, if appropriate, and the duration of
each discharge operation. (If the rate of discharge is not constant, the maximum and
mean rates of discharge should be indicated),

g) report on each discharge operatlon including details of any problems; and an
explanation for any delays and

h) the signature of the Master at the foot of each page of each record.

The above information can be entered on form FEPB' The licensee shall provide to MS-.
LOT at three monthly intervals or on request from MS-LOT, a copy of all or any part of the
records specified above

In the event of the licensee becoming aware of any changes to the information on which the
issue of the licence was based, the licensing authority shall be |mmediately notified of the
details. :

Where any of the chemical(s) or agent(s) listed in Part 1, section 5 of the licence are also
authorised for discharge to the water environment following bath freatment at the fish
holding cages at the site described in Part 1, section 4 under an authorisation granted by
Scottish Environment Protection Agency then the quantity of that chemical or agent
discharged over the time period specified in the relevant condition by the method specified




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

in Condition 7 and from the cages over the same time period shall not exceed the total
quantity specified in the relevant condition.

13. The chemical(s) or agent(s) listed above shall only be discharge following treatment of fish
within the vessei(s) listed in Part 1, section 3.



NOTES

1.

You are deemed to have satisfied yourself that there are no barriers, Iegal or otherwise,
to the carrying out of the licensed operations. The issue of the Ilcence does not absolve
the licensee from obtaining such authonsatlons consents etc which may be required
under any other Ieglslatlon .

In the event that the licensee wishes any of the particulars set down in the Schedule to
be altered, the licensing authority shall be immediately notified of the alterations. It
should be noted that changes can invalidate a licence, and that an appllcatlon for a new
licence may be necessary. .

Under Section 30 of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010, the licensing authority may vary,
suspend or revoke the licence, if it appears to the authority that there has been a breach
of any of the provisions of the licence or for any other reason that appears to be relevant
to the authorlty

Under Section 39 of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010, it is ah offence to carry on a
licensable marine activity or cause or permit any other person to camy on such an

activity without a marine licence or fails to comply with any condition of a marine licence.

It is a defence for a person charged with an offence under Section 40 in relation to any
activity to prove that the activity was carried out for the purpose of saving life, or for the
purposes of securing the safety of a vessel, aircraft or marine structure (‘force majeure’),
and that the person took steps within a reasonable time to provide full details of the
incident to the licensing -authority. {(Under Annex Il, Article 7 of the Convention for the
Protection of the Marine Environment of the North-east Atlantic, the licensing authority is

.obliged to immediately report ‘force majeure’ mcudents to the Convention Commission).

All correspondence or communications relating to the licence should be addressed to:

Licensing Operations Team
Marine Scotland

Marine Laboratory

375 Victoria Road
Aberdeen

AB11 SDB

Tel:  (01224) 295579
Fax. (01224) 295524



The Scottish Salmon Company '

Mid Strome - Our Ref: FKBAW112
~ Lochcarron ‘ g

Ross-shire Date: 04 November 2011
. IV54 8YH : : :

Dear I

MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4 IVIARINE LICENSING

.DISCHARGE OF USED SEALICE TREATMENT CHEMICALS FROM, TARANISH AND
EUGHLAM, LEWIS

" | refer to your application for a licence in respect of the above proposals. -

| am pleased to inform you that the licensing authority has no objections to the issue of the
requested licence, and | therefore enclose Licence 04339/11/0. You are advised to carefully
check the licence and schedule documents. Please contact me immediately if you have any
concerns regarding the condltlons of the enclosed licences.

Please be aware that this licence has been granted for a specific disease outbreak and MS-
LOT will contact you at a later date regarding your intentions should further outbreaks occur.

You should note that the licences include conditions that the licensing authority must be notified -
of the dates of commencement and completion of the proposed disposal operations. You

* should also note that the licence includes conditions requiring you to maintain a log of disposal
- operations, and that written reports, summarising all disposal operations undertaken under
authority of the licence, should be submitted to the licensing authority. Information for.inclusion
in the log(s) of disposal operations is detailed in the schedule to each licence, and an example
of a swtable log format form FEPS, IS enclosed.

Under the Marine Licensing Appeals (Scotland) Regulations 2011 (S.S.1. 2011/203), you are
entitled to appeal if you are dissatisfied with any condition in the licence. An appeal may be
lodged in any sheriff court in Scotland and must be lodged no later than 21 days after the date
of this letter.

All correspondence or'commuhicatiohs relating to this letter or the licence documeht should be
sent to the address below.

Yours sincerely

Alan Keir
Marine Scotland
Marine Laboratory



Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: - Weatherston R (Robin)

Sent: - 04 November 2011 14:35 _

To: . Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB); Cowan WJ (Willie); Pendrey D (Daniel}; Haddon P (Paul}
Ce: Ralph C (Cephas) :

Subject: . RE: Formalin discharge at Taranish and Eughlam

Good. Thanks Mike. .
Robin

Robin Weatherston
Marine Scotland
Performance Agquaculture and Recreatlonal Fisheries

~ Scottish Government | Area 1-B North | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh EHB 6Q_Q '

Tel: +44 (0)131 244 6246

Mob:+44 (0)7919 301 425

Fax: +44 (0)131 244 6512

e robin.weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
w: http:/ivww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From: Bland M (Michael) {MARLAB)

Sent: 04 November 2011 13:33

To: Weatherston R (Robin); Cowan WJ (Willie); Pendrey D (Daniel); Haddon P (Paul)
Cc: Ralph C (Cephas)

Subject: RE: Formalin discharge at Taranlsh and Eughlam

Thanks Robm,

I have arranged with a member of the local fishery office to inspect the operations on Monday.

Regards

Mike

From: . - Weatherston R (Robin}

Sent: 04 November 2011 13:18

To: Cowan W1 (Willie); Pendrey D (Daniel); Haddon P (Paul)
Cc: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB); Ralph C {Cephas)
Subject: FW: Formalin discharge at Taranish and Eughlam

Info.

Paul Haddon has suggested it might be wise for Comphance just t to check that they do indeed discharge in’
the agreed area. Worth a thought particularly if a ship is nearby?!

. Robin

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
robin.weatherston@scotland.gsi.gov. uk

w: http:.//iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 04 November 2011 13:10 _

To: Palmer D] (David); Weatherston R (Robin); McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB)
Cc: Megginson C (Colin} (MARLAB) .

Subject: Formalin discharge at Taranish and Eughlam

All

You are all aware of the amoebic gill disease problems at several Scottish Salmon Co salmon sites. The
infection has caused problems at Lamlash where the fish are now too compromised to survive a formalin
treatment (as reported by the company vet). 250000 fish have reportedly died at lamlash as a result of this
infection. The company have applied for marine licences to discharge formalin (post treatment) at two sites
in east loch roag (lewis) as earlier stages of the infection have reportedly been observed here. MS-LOT have
consulted on these application in a very short turnaround time and, following the advice from both SEPA
and SNH, will licence the discharge of formalin in a rectangle zone or point to point hne 0uts1de east loch
roag. This will be a one-off licence for the duration of this treatment only '

The granting of this licence has no bearing on MS-L.LOT's posmon on remote dJScharge of
chemotherapeutant for sealice.

The company say that they won't treat until Monday, I will arrange some inspection of the activity.
" Kind regards-
Mike

Mike Bland ,

~ Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team

Marine Scotland - Manne Planning & Policy

Scottish Government] Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Vlctorla Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB

Direct Line: 01224 295529

Switchboard: 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 295524

Email: michael.bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Wi http:/fiwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland




Page 1 of' 1

“Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB) -

From: -

Sent: 01 November 2011 12:06
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB) -
Subject: FYI1

~Attachments: Wellboat App FORMALINVerZ.docx
H iM ike,

Please see amended form. Unfortunately, no 650m3 wellboat is available now so we will have to use one
with 1000m3 but still use two wellboat loads per cage thus increasing the total deposit to 1600 litres.

Senior Biologist -
E Email Signature.JPG

Ardkinglasuﬁétate, Cairndow, Aféyll PA26 $BH www.scottishsalmon.com
" TEL: +44 (0)1499 600223 Mobile: +44 (0)7789 754 064

This e-mail message is for the sole use.of the intended recipient and may contain confidenlial and privileged information. Any unauthorised
review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail
and destroy all coples of the original mesgsage.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
‘Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s 'l Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. :

FAXAAAFARA AR DR AT A A ARk d Ak

This email has been received from an external party and

has been swept for the presence of computer virgses.
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* Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Wéatherston R (Robin)
Sent: 28 October 2011 08:51

To: Cowan WJ (Willie); Pendrey D (Daniel); Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB); Raynard R (Rob} -
" {(MARLAB) .

Subject: Fw: URGENT HELP REQUEST

- All
A bit more info/commentary frbm Stewart McLelland

Raobin

From: Stewart McLelland <Stewart.McLelland@scottishsalmon.com>
To: Weatherston R (Robin)

Sent: Thu Oct 27 23:07:53 2011

Subject: Re: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robm :

Apologies for another late evening email but my understanding is that Freshwater hatcherles that use
Formalin already discharge to the sea and have consent to do so.

So perhaps the general information is already within the system.

Regards
Stewart

Sent from my iPhone

On27 Oct 2011, at 22: 40 "Robin. Weatherston@scotland g8i.gov. uk“
<Robin. Weatherston(@scotland.gsi.gov.uk> wrote:

Hi Stewart

You've obviously caught me cold on this. I've copied to Willie and we will discuss with
colleagues tomorrow

Not sure what the outcorme will be, but a step at atime ... .

Robin

From: Stewart McLelland <Stewart.McLelland@scottishsalmon.com>>
To: Weatherston R (Robin) :

Cc: Brian Floyd <Brian.Floyd@scottishsalmon.com>

Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011

Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin,

Stewart McLelland here from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and
also on the Minister’s visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. 1 was actually going to
email Willie Cowan but did not have his email address. I wonder if you can help me and
also pass on this email to Willie.

21/11/2012
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1 am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment procedure my
team and our vets in the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine
Scotland. I believe they have been talking with the Marine Licensing team including
Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan.

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash

~ site where we have lost 65% (¢ 250,000) of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a
natural water borne infection which has had a disastrous effect at this location. In
addition to the animal welfare issue this will probably cost us ¢ £5m in turnover and ¢
£750k in profit in 2012. There is no real treatment for this infection although the use of -
Formalin is one that has been known to have some success.

However despite the fact that formalin is a well known treatment in freshwater we
cannot get approval to use formalin in this dire animal welfare situation because it has
not been modeled in the marine environment. Also we were told that the process would
take 8 weeks, which is not much good to the dying fish who need treated now.

‘In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with your colleagues at the moment
and I understand there is a realisation that they will try and move fast on this. The reason
we are keen to get approval quickly is that we have now seen this ameobic gill issue ina-
small number of cages in sites in Loch Roag in the Hebrides. The mortality is low and
the situation is nowhere near the issue at Lamlash but I really cannot afford to sit and

. wait to find out what is going to develop. I really need to act proactively on fish welfare
grounds and treat these cages with formalin. -

The reason for this email is to requiest your and Willies help in getting this approval
within the next 24hrs. I realise I do not understand the procedures and bureaucracy but I
do know that I have seen fish die potentially unnecessarily and I do not want this to
happen on other locations, The Fish Vet Group and our own staff are currently '
.completing the forms. What I need is a rapid conclusion from the information provided.

It is this sort of issue where the Industry really needs the effective support of
Government to help prevent these significant naturally occurring losses and I ask that
you please look at my request and action matters quickly on my behalf

1 apologise if I should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you were the only
contact I knew and had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short
straw but please help us with this request.

21/11/2012
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I look forward to hearing from you.

Regards

Stewart

Stewart McLelian_d

Chief Operating Officer

<image001.jpg>
8 Melville Créscent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scottishsalmon.com

TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: Mobile: -+44 (0)7803 743905

This e-mail message is for the so'le use of the intended recipient and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any
unauthorised review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are nol the inlended recipient, please contact the sender by
reply e-mail, delele the e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure
Intranet anti-virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with
MessageLabs. (CCTM Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please
call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk. '

Communications via the GSi may be automatlcally logged, monltored and/or recorded
for legal purposes.
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. This email has been received from an external party and

‘has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.

This e-mail (and ény files or other attachmenls transmitted with it) is
intended solély for the attenlipn of the addressee(s). Unauthorised
use, disclosure, sforage, copying OI; distribution of any part of this
e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please
destroy the email, remove any copies from your system and inform

the sender immedialely by return.

21/11/2012




Page 4 of 4

“Communicalions with the Scoltish Government riay be monitored or
recorded in order to secure the effective operation of the system and
for other lawful purposes. The views or opinioﬁs contained within
this e-mail may not necessgri!y rgflect those of the

‘Scottish Government.

The original of this email was scanned for viruses by the Government Secure Iniranet
virus scanning service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with
‘Messagel.abs. (CCTM Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) On leaving the GSi this
email was certified virus free.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded
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
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has been swépt for the presence of computer viruses.
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: |

Sent: 01 November 2011 10:52
To: ‘Bland M (Michael).(MARLAB)
Subject: FYI [UNSCANNED]

Attachments: Eughlam w80 Marine Licence (FEPA).pdf; Annex 1 - Formalin Safety Data sheet.doc;
Annex 1 -Coshh No 41 Formaldehyde solution 40% wv GPR.pdf; East Loch Roag letter
from FVG 31 Oct 2011.pdf

Senior Biologisf
E Email Signature.JPG

~ Ardkinglas Estate, Cairndow, Argyll PA26 8BH www.scottishsalmon.com
TEL: +44 (0)1499 600223 Mobile: +44 (0)7789 754 064

This e-mail message is for the sole use of the Intended recipient and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorised
review, disclosure or dlslnbution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail
and destroy all copies of the original message.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageL.abs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s I'T Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal

' purposes.
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Fish Vet Group tel. +44 (0) 1463 717774 _ :

92 Carsegate Rd fax. +44 {0) 1463 717775 FishVet
Invernéss G

IV3 8EX : e. info@fishvet.co.uk '
Scotland UK w. www.lishvet.co.uk 7 roup
31st October 2011

Re: Application for Dlscharge of Treatment Agents in the Terrltorlal Sea and UK Controlled
Waters Adjacent to Scotland by Scottish Salmon Company .

With reference to the above application, outlined here is the veterinary advice that we have provided
Scottish Salmon Company regarding management of an outbreak of amoebic gill disease at two adjacent
sites at East Loch Roag, Lewis. This includes a short review of possible therapeutic options for amoebic
gill disease, and the reasons we have advised that treatment with formalin may be indicated.

Background to application

Histopathological samples were taken by site staff from fish at Taranaish and Eughlam, East Loch Roag, -
Lewis on 11.10.11, and amoebic gill disease (AGD) subsequently diagnosed by our histopathology
service. Following this, a clinical visit by one of our veterinary surgeons took place on 20.10.11. At this
time, site staff were reporting a decline in feeding rates in some cages. Mortality rates were not
significantly raised at this point, although subsequent to this visit these have risen. On gross inspection,
mast fish examined were found to have relatively mild focal mucoid patches throughout the gill lamellae,
consistent with amoebic gill disease, and it was concluded that both sites at this point were in the
relatively early stages of a clinical amoebic gill disease outbreak.

Recently, our practice has also been involved in providing veterinary advice to Scottish Salmon Company
regarding a severe clinical AGD outbreak at another site at J.amlash, Arran. It was our opinion that by the
time of diagnosis of clinical disease on this site, the fish were compromised to a degree that bath or
wellboat treatment with a chemotherapeutant agent would have been contraindicated. In support of this,
a very limited initial treatment of 10 representative fish in a harvest bin with 500mg/L hydrogen
peroxnde for 20 minutes demonstrated unacceptable mortality and morbidity for what was subjectively
deemed to be a very modest improvement in amoebae numbers. As a result, the fish were left untreated
and the site has, to date, experienced loss of half the stock.

In our experience, the identification of gill amoebae on histopathological sections does not always mean a
site will experience losses associated with AGD. While clinical AGD has not yet, to our knowledge, been
reported in Scotland in the veterinary literature our practice has identified gill amoebae (putatively

FVG lad trading as Fish Vet Group Company Registralion No: 267850 Scotland VAT No. 100 1348 86



Neoparamoeba perurans) on at least ten sets of histopathological material over the last few years. Of
these, we estimate that only 3-4 experienced severe losses. We note that in 2007 severe losses occurred
at both Lamlash, Arran and East Loch Roag from a gill disease likely to have been AGD.

East Loch Roag 2011

By contrast with the AGD case at Arran, this year clinical disease has been identified at an earlier stage at
both East Loch Roag sites. [t is our firm opinion that if treatment is to be considered, the fish must have
the required functional gill reserve required to withstand stressful well boat or bath treatments. As this
disappears with progressing gill disease severity, any treatment must necessarily be prompt and early.

We (Fish Veterinary Group) and the license applicants (Scottish Salmon Company) understand that even
in emergency situations any application for discharge of treatment agents into the marine environment
must be subject to a period of consultation and review. Clearly, the clinical situation at East Loch Roag
may have advanced by the time of a decision to the point that treatment becomes inappropriate.
Furthermore, falling sea temperatures may improve the situation to the point that treatment is not
required. Despite this, we endorse the application as fish may still be at a point where treatment is
beneficial, and trust that under the circumstance every effort will be made to provide a decision on the
application as quickly as possible, '



Therapeutic options for Amoebic Gill Disease (AGD)

1}

2)

Freshwater bathihg

The recommended treatment for AGD is a 2-3 hour freshwater bath, based on work done in the
Tasmanian industry 1, In Tasmania, freshwater protocols are exclusively performed using
tarpaulins rather than well boats. The standard treatment has been shown to remove 86% of live
amoebae from gills, but the remaining live amoebae act as a reservoir for re-infection, which
typically occurs within 1 week 2. —

Oxidative disinfectants

Hydrogen perox1de has been evaluated as anadditive to freshwater baths 3, but high t0x1c1ty was
found along with equivocal results. The same authors found that chlorine d10x1de and chloramine-
T showed some promise as additives to freshwater baths.

Very little data are available on the efficacy of oxidative disinfectants against AGD in seawater.
Protocols using hydrogen peroxide are currently the subject of a research project at the

- University of Tasmania, but as yet no published results have emerged. Based on discussions with

3)

colleagues in Tasmania, our practice attempted a very low-scale initial treatment of 10 Scottish
AGD-affected fish at Lamlash, Arran with 500mg/L hydrogen peroxide for 20 minutes, and found
unacceptable mortality and morbidity with this dose. We understand that 500mg/L for 20
minutes is the lowest effective in vitro dose from unpublished data provided from Tasmania.

Other chemotherapeutants
Formalin has been used as a bath treatment [200ppm for 45mins) on two farms during an Irish

epizootic in 1995 % One farm saw a reduction in mortalities, and results were equivocal in the
other. : ' '

1. Parsons H., Nowak B., Fisk D. & Powell M. (2001) Effectiveness of commercial freshwater bathing as a treatment against amoebic gill
disease in Atlantic salmon. Aquaculture 195, 205-210.

2. Clark G., Powell M. & Nowak B. (2003) Effects of commercial freshwater bathing on reinfection of Atlantic salmon Salmo salar, with
amoebic gill disease. Aquaculture 219, 135-142. ‘

3. Powell M.D. & Clark G.A. (2004) Efficacy and toxicity of oxidative disinfectants for the removal of gill amoebae from the gills of ‘amoebic
gill disease affected Atlantic salmon (Salmo salar L.} in freshwater. Aquaculture Research 35, 112-123.

4. Rodger H.D. & McArdle . (1996) An outbreak of amoebic gill disease in Ireland. The Veterinary Recbrd 139, 348-349.



Possible treatment at East Loch Roag

Our practice has advised Scottish Salmon Company that freshwater bathing is the treatment of choice for -
amoebic gill disease, and remains the best-understood therapeutic option. However, freshwater bathing
is technically difficult and at present it appears that a freshwater protocol- either in a tarp or well boat- is
not practically achievable at this site.

We do not advise the use of hydrogen peroxide at East Loch Roag, based on:
1) Equivocal results and high toxicity observed following small-scale treatment at Lamlash, Arran.

2) Absence of clear advice on a dose rate likely to be effective and safe. |

By contrast, the dose rate for formalin as an anti-protozoal is well-understood {200ppm for 45 minutes).
While formalin has not yet been demonstrated to be efficacious against Neoparamoeba perurans
specifically, we believe it is strongly likely to be so based on its effect against other protozoa. There is an
existing precedent in the literature for its use against amoeba in seawater 4, and we understand from
anecdotal accounts that formalin is used in Norwegian outbreaks of AGD. From discussion with the
senior biologist at Scottish Salmon Company, treatment with formalin could potentlally be achleved
using a well boat. : :

Clearly, ali chemotherapeutants potentially efficacious against amoebae will also have negative effects on
gill tissue. As a result, gills require existing ‘functional reserve’ (relatively functional, non-diseased
tissue) in order to tolerate treatment. The significant stress caused by well boat pumping will similarly
require the fish to use any remaining functlonal gill reserve.

Potential treatment with formalin at East Loch Roag could only proceed immediately following a final
assessment of the gill tissue of fish intended for treatment, and their likely ability to tolerate treatment.
At the time of the last visit (28.10.11), gill tissue in all examirned affected cages did appear to have
significant reserve and these populations are likely to tolerate treatment. Importantly, we note it is_




impossible to fully predict the effect of any treatment on a diseased population. On balance, however, we
believe that clinically affected pens are strongly likely to benefit from treatment.
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GENERAL CHEMICAL REAGENT - |

Irrigate thoroughly with water for at least 10 minutes. Obtain medical attention.

Drench the skin thoroughly with water. Remove any contaminated clothing and wash
before re-use. Unless contact has been slight, obtain medical attention.

| Wash out mouth thoroughly with water and gwe plenty of water to drink. Obtain
medical attention. :

Remove from exposure, rest and keep warm. In severe cases or if exposure has been
great obtain medical attention.

Toxic by inhalation, in contact with skin and if swallowed. Causes burns. Toxic — danger |
of very serious irreversible effects through inhalation, in contact with skin and if
swallowed. '

Wear protective clothing respirator, gloves and goggles or face-shield.-

For fire xiguishing use foam, dry powder or carbon dioxide.
Store at.15 to 25°C in a well ventilated place. Keep well closed and protected from direct
sunlight and moisture. ’




MERCK

etirolab

SAFETY DATA SHEET | B | @

1. Identification of the substance/preparation and of the company/uﬁdertaking,

Identification of the proditct

Catalogue No: 28421 ID No.: 1011300

Product name: Formaldehyde solution about 40% w/v GPR (contains 9-11 % methanol)

C ) Manufacturer/supplier idéntiﬁcation

O | Company: : Merck Eurolab Ltd, Merck Hpuse, Pdolé, Dorset, BHlS 1'TD, England
Telephone : 01202 6§9700 ; Telefax : 01202 665599

Emergency telephone Nd.: 01202 66970(5

2. Composition/_informaﬁon on ingrédients

Chemical charactériéatt;on o

S'olution in‘ Wéter

Product namé: Formaldehyde solution 57-41% '

() CAS number: 50-00-0 S EC-No.: 200-001-8

O Hazardous ingredients:

Methanol ' - 10% o T

CAS number:  67-56-1 | EC-No.: 200-659-6
Symbol: - FT

R-phrases: - R11-23/24/25-39/23/24/25

S-phrases: - 87-16-36/37-45 '

Formaldchyde 37-41% : : -

'CAS number: 50-00-0 ' “EC-No.: 200-001-8
Symbol: T '

* R-phrases: R23/24/25-34-40-43 -~ "+

- Page No: I : - | .




28421 - .Formaldehyde solution about 40% w/v GPR (contains 9-11% methanol)

S-phrases:  §26-36/37/39-45-51
- Carcinogen, Category 3 '

‘3. Hazards identification

Toxic by inhalation, in contact with skin and if swallowed. Causes burns, Toxic: danger of VEry Serious
irreversible effects through inhalation,in contact w1h skin and if swallowed. Possible risk of 1rrever31ble

effects. May cause sensitization by skin contact.

4, First aid measures

Eye contact: Irrigate thoroughly with water. If discomfort per31sts obtain medical attention.

Inhalation: Remove from exposure.
Skin contact: Wash off thoroughly with soap and water,
Ingestion: Wash out mouth thoroughly with water. In severe cases obtain medical attention.

5. Fire-fighting measures

Special risks:

Combustible.

Suitable extinguishing media:

Water spray, dry powder or vaporising liquids

6. Accidental release measures

Wear appropriate protective clothing. Tnform ofhers to keep at a safe distance.

If local regulations permit, mop up with plenty of water and run to waste, diluting greatly w1th running
~water. Otherwise absorb on an inert absorbent, transfer to container and arrange removal by disposal

company. Ventilate area to dispel residual vapour.
For large spillages liquids should be contained with sand or earth and both Tiquids and solids
transferred to salvage containers. Any residues should be treated as for small spillages.

7. Handling and storage

Handling:

Do not breathe vapour. Avoid contact with skin and eyes. Change contaminated clothing. Application
of skin- protective barrier cream recomm ended. Wash hande after Worklng with substance Donot
cmpty into drains.

 Storage:
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28421 - Formaldehyde solution about 40% w/v GPR (contains 9-1 1% methanol)

Store in a warm place (above 20°C) to prevent ﬁ‘eezmg Keep well closed and protected from direct
sunlight and moisture. o

8. Exposure controls/personal protection

As appropriate to the situation and the quantity handled. Engineering methods to control or prevent
exposure arc preferred. Methods could include process enclosure or mechanical ventilation.

Respirator: Self-contained breathing apparatus

Ventilation: Fume cupboard, flameproof

Gloves: Butyl rubber, Nitrile, Viton™.

Eye Protection: Goggles or face-shield

Other Precautions: Plastic apron, sleeves, boots - if handling large quantltles

See section 15 for UK exposﬁre limits.

9. Physical and chemical properties

Form: liquid
Colour: , : ' colourless
Odour: pungent
- Melting temperature ‘ . Nodata
Boiling temperature 96°C
Density(g/ml) 1.08
pH value - 3-4
Log P(o/w): 0.35
Solubility in water Miscible in all proportions
Flash point 62°C

10. Stability and reactivity

~ tends to polymerize.
Unsuitable working materials: various metals.

Substances to be avoided
polymerization initiators, alkali Inetals, acids, nitrogen oxides, hydrogen peroxide, oxidizing agents,
perfon_mc acid, organic nitro compounds/bases.

11. Toxicological information

After skin contact: Severe irritation.
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28421 - Formaldehyde solution about 40% w/v GPR (contains 9-11% methanol)

After eye contact: Severe irritation. '
Afier ingestion: irritant effect (mouth, pharynx, oesophagus, gastrointestinal tract). Risk of perforation

in the oesophagus and stomach.
Inhalation may lead to the formation of oedemas in the resplratory tract Lacrimal irritation due to

vapours. Sensitization with allergic manifestations.
Systemic effect: narcosis, blindness. ‘

~ Further data-

LD50 (oral, rat): 100 ﬁlg/kg

LC50 (inhalation, rat): 203 mg/m3
LD50 (dermal, rabbit): 270 mg/kg

Has been found to cause cancer in laboratory animals. Evidence of reproductive effects,
Carcinogen, Category 3

12. Eéological informatidn

Do not allow to enter drinking water supplies, waste water, or soil! Caustic even in dlluted form
Biological degradablhty good.

13. Dlsposal considerations

Chemical residues are generally classified as special waste, and as such are covered by regulations
which vary according to location. Contact your local waste disposal authority for advice, or pass to a
chemical disposal company. Rinse out empty containers thoroughly before returning for recycling.

14. Transport information

UN-No.: 2209 _ o IMDG class: 8
MO: 8/2209 ' Packaging group: Il
IATA: 2209 Packaging group: III
Correct technical name: FORMALDEHYDE SOLUTIONS -

ADR/RID: 8,63'(¢c) '

15. Regulatory ihformation

iabelfing dccdrding to EC directives
Symbol T  Toxic.

R-phrases: R23/24/25-34-39/23/24/25-40-43

- Toxic by inhalation, in contact with skin and it swallowed. Causes burns. Toxic: danger of very serious
irreversible effects through inhalation,in contact wih skin and if swallowed Possible risk of irreversible

cffects. May cause sensitization by skin contact,
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28421 - Fonﬂaldehyde solution about 40% w/v GPR (contains 9-11% méthanol)

S-'phi‘aées: S526-36/37/39-45-51 - ' :

* In case of contact with eyes, rinse immediately with plenty of water and seek medical advice. Wear

O

suitable protective clothing, gloves, and eye/face protection. In case of accident or if you feel unwell,-
seck medical advice immediately (show the label where possible). Use only in well ventilated arcas.

EC-No.: 200-001-8
Carcinogen, Category 3 .

Local Regulations
U.K. Transport Category 3

Within the UK, the use of this material must be assessed under the Control of Substances Hazardous to

Health (COSHH) regulations. |

UK Exposure Limits: MEL - Formaldehyde:
Long-term: 2.5 mg/m3 (2 ppm) Shqrt term: 2.5 mg/m3 (2 ppm)

16, Other information
\ ‘
Revised.
Supersedes edition of: 18/08/94

Reason for alteration: Changes in Section : 15

Date of issue: ' _ 29/12/99
Date of print: 18/09/01
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: -

Sent: 01 November 2011 10:50
To: _ Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject: - RE: TSCC Lamlash .

Attachments: Wellboat App FORMALIN.doc; BPEO Loch Roag FORMALIN DOC
Hi Mike,
Please find enclosed application. | have been away on business so a lot of this work was done by Paul from

our environmental dept: Please get back to me if there are any omissions or corrections to be made. | will
send the appendices as separatie attachments.

From: Michael.Bland@scbtland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gdv.uk]
‘Sent: 28 October 2011 15:57

To: I
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamiash

i

As discussed earlier today please bear in mind that a draft EQS of Spg/l has been suggested and you '
should consider this in your application.

regards

- Mike

- From:

Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB);
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

“Hi Mike,

[ can confirm to you that the request is aimed at the East Loch Roag populations; it is too late for those fish
- on the Lamlash site. As indicated on [INIIIll original mail we are seeing infestation with amoeba in both
Eughlam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discussed -
on the phone the minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would equate to one
" wellboat well at a time. Wellboats have varying capacity but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would equate
to two wells of 325m3 each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. | will get the applications off to
you with accompanying BPEO s and justification as soon as: 1 can. Thanks

From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael. Bland@scotland gsi.gov. uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 11:59

To: I :

Cc: Jim.McKie@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Subject: TSCC Lamlash

05/1172012.
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Importance: High

Please find the text of the request below.

Could you please clarify if ydu intend to apply for a marine licence to discharge formalin at |
Lamlash? It is my understanding the the sites you intend to apply for are Taranish and possibly
Eughlam in East Loch Roag and not Lamlash.

Regards

Mike .

rrom : [
To: Weatherston R (Robin) :
Cc:

Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011
Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin, '
_here from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrl_des. | was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you can help me and also pass on this email 1o Willie.

lam Iookmg for your support in fast tracklng a license for a treatment procedure my team and our vetsin
the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine Scotland. | believe they have been talking with
the Marine Licensing team including Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan. ,

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash:site where we have
lost 65% (c 250,000} of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which has had
a disastrous effect at this location. In addition to the animal welfare issue this will probably cost us ¢ £5m in
turnover and ¢ £750k in profit in 2012. There is no real treatment for this infection although the use of '
Formalin is one that has been known to have some success.

However despite the factthat formalin is a well known treatment in freshwater we cannot get approval to
use formalin in this dire animal welfare situation because it has not been modeled in the marine
environment. Also we were told that the process would take 8 weeks, which is not much good to the dying
fish who need treated now.

In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with your colleagues at the moment and | understand

" there is a realisation that they will try and move fast on this, The reason we are keen to get approval guickly
is that we have now seen this ameagbic gill issue in a small numblér of cages in sites in Loch Roag in the
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
potentially unnecessarily and t do not want this to happen on other locations. The Fish Vet Group and our
own staff are currently completmg the forms. What I need is a rapid conclusion from the information
prowded

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
had details of within Marine Scatland. Sorry you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

| look forward to hearing from you.

‘ Reiards

Chief Operating Officer

E' Email Signature JPG

8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scotﬁshsalmon.com
TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: Mobile: +44 (0)Y7803 743905

This e-mail message is for the sole use of the intended recipient and may contain confidential and privileged informalicn. Any unauthorised review;
disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message. B :

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with Messagelabs. (CCTM
~ Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored. and/or reco'rdéd_ for legal
purposes. -

***iﬁitﬁtﬂttntti**fﬁ*****t:\t#ti’it* .Hi‘*****t*****tﬁ*tﬁﬁitt#ﬁt*t**‘}*
This email has been received from an external party and .

has been swepl for the presence of computer viruses.

B e T g e T L e L L e e A e et

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted wigh ity is
intended solely fc;*or lhe attention of the addressee(s). Unaulho‘rised :
use, disclosure, storage, copying of distribution of any part of this
e-mail is hot permitted.r If you are not the intended recipient please -
destroy ihe email, remove any co_pies from your system and inferm
fhe sender ihmediately by return.

Cammunications with the Scottish Governmant may be monitored or

recorded in order to secure the effective operation of the system and
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for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions contained within
this e-mail may not necessarily refiect those of the

Scottish Government.

L e T e ST T b B e S e S T T e T

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

This email was received from thé INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s I'T Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. ‘

ERREARRA AR AR AR AR R F AR AR A KR AE e wohhhkorkhd g khk kbbb ak kb bkihkk

This email has been received from an external party and

has been swept for the presence of compulter viruses.

The original of this email was scanned for viruses by the Government Secure Intranet virus scanning
service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with Messagelabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.} On leaving the GSi this email was certified virus free.
Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal

purposes, _ :

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
purposes. ' ‘ '

nnnnn KAFA KW AAE R A AR A A AR Ak h ke dda

This email has been received from an external parly and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
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MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 201 0; PART 4: MARINE LICENSING

BEST PRACTICABLE ENVIRONMENTAL OPTION (BPEO) ASSESSMENT: DISCHARGE OF
" FISH FARM CHEMICAL TREATMENT AGENTS FROM A WELLBOAT

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 Background to Applicaﬁon

This Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEO) Assessment has been prepared in support of a
Discharge of Treatment application under the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010, for the treatment of
amoebic gill disease (AGD) at two Scottish Salmon Company (hereafter referred to as TSSC) marine -
fish farms in East Loch Roag (Lewis). The sites in which AGD has been diagnosed are Eughlam
and Taranish and itis anticipated that 2 cages will require treatment at each site. In order to achieve
effective treatment of AGD whilst maintaining control of potential environmental impacts, The
Scottish Salmon Company (TSSC) have made an appllcatlon for the licensed use of Formalin
solution (38%) using well boats.

1.1.1 Current AGD Occurrences in East Loch Roag _

AGD was diagnosed at the TSSC sites Taranish and Eughlam in East Loch Roag on 20" October
2011. This was detected on histopathological samples taken at both sites {spilt between two groups
of cages) at these two sites. This diagnosis coincided with a decline in feeding rates (typical of early
signs of AGD akin to that reported in Lamlash, Arran in October, detailed further below) rises in
mortalities and amoebae present in all cages.

1.1.2 Treatment Proposed

For any therapy to be successful it will need to be carried out promptly while this population still has
some functional gill reserve left, which is required to deal with stressful events and
chemotherapeutants. "

The recommended treatment for AGD is a 2-3 hour freshwater bath (using tarpaulin or wellboat),
which has been considered by TSSC, in conjunction with the Fish Vet Group and wellboat operator
Solvtrans but this appears not to be pract|cally achievable in this instance. Solvirans states that they
cannot set up the wellboats to de-water the fish in and out. This means that a new load of
freshwater would be required each time, which is not practical. :

Hydrogen Peroxide has been trialed (at Lamlash) but is not efficacious on’ ‘compromised fish and

produces high mortality, and thus is not believed it to be an appropriate treatment at East Loch Roag

at this point. While hydrogen peroxide as a treatment for amoebae is the subject of some interestin

the Tasmanian industry, previous studies have found equivocal results and high toxicity (Powell and

Clark [2004] Aquaculture Research 35 112-123). Furthermore, the huge variation in dose rates
believed to be efficacious (based on the extremely limited published data and discussions between

veterinarians) makes it difficult to confidently to consider the effective use of hydrogen peroxide or

any other oxidative agents such as chloramine T.

It is suggested that strategic treatment of worst-affected cages at East Loch Roag using formalin at
200ppm for 45minutes in a well boat is likely to be the most efficacious and practical solution for the
AGD identified. The correct dosage for use of formalin as a topical anti-protozoal is better
understood than hydrogen peroxide, however the final decision to treat would need to be a clinical
judgment between the senior company biologist at TSSC and the veterinary surgeons at the Fish Vet
Group based on the health status of the fish and their likely ability to tolerate treatment.

Potential treatment with formalin at East Loch Roag could only proceed immediately following a final
assessment of the gill tissue of fish intended for treatment, and their likely ability to tolerate
treatment. At the time of the last veterinary visit (28.10.11), Gill tissue in all examined affected cages
did appear to have significant reserve and these populations are likely to tolerate treatment. By
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* treating the worst-affected pens (alongside the natural decrease in temperature expected over the
following period) itis hoped to reduce the infective burden on the site in order to avoid the severity of
losses observed at Arran (detailed below). Formalin is currently being used to treat protazoa like

amoeba at TSSC hatcheries which discharge dlrectly fo sea and thus there is precedent forthe use
of this treatment.

We would use on a 650m°® wellboat with 130 litres per treatment and most cages would need two
loads per cage equating to 260 litres per cage. In terms of discharge we can reduce the effect by
discharging one well at a time thus discharging only 65 lifres at a time. '

" Further details of treatment are provided in a letter from the Fish Vet Group dated 31 October 2011,
which is attached to this Marine License application.

1.1.3 Recent AGD Qutbreak at Lamlash, Arran

On 14" October 2011, a small-scale treatment trial for AGD was conducted by the Fish Vet Group in
conjunction with TSSC at the Lamlash site, Arran. Ten affected fish were treated with hydrogen
peroxide at 500mg/L for 2¢ minutes. The dose rate was based on the lowest dose thought to have
an anti-amoebic effect in vitro from as-yet unpublished work provided by Tasmanian fish .
veterinarians. The treated fish did not respond well to this freatment, with 20% dying, and all fish
- showed respiratory distress. There was only a modest subjective improvement in gill amoebae
numbers detectable by light microscopy of wet gill preparations and histology. Based on these
results, along with clinical examination of the fish and subsequent histology, it was judged that
hydrogen peroxide at this dose did not appear to be an appropriate treatment in this population and
that the gill disease was too advanced to consider any other therapy such as formalin.

Fish at this site have since been managed to reduce stress and ensure as prompt mortality removal
as possible, but ongoing losses of 65% of fish at this untreated site are reported (circa 250,000 fish).
This equates to an approximate £750,000 loss in profit and £5,000,000 loss in turnover (201 2} for
TSSC. Thus TSSC are keen not to have a repeat of the AGD outbreak at Lamlash.

1.1.4 Locations

The location of the marine fish farms, Eughlam and Taranish can be seen on the attached plans
(Annex 3). Well boat treatment methods are provided in the standard operating procedures (SOPs)
presented in Annex 2.

The hydrographic and climatic conditions, the large size of the pens and the tonnage of fish held in
East Loch Roag make full tarpaulin treatments technically and logistically very difficult.

1.2 Source of Materials

Formalin - Supplied by: Manufactured by:

Merck Eurolab ' Merck Eurolab
Merck House , Merck House -
Poole Poole

Dorset - : ‘ Dorset

BH151TD BH15 1TD
Chemotherapeutants for the control of AGD are ‘Prescription Only’ Medicines. This means only a
veterinarian can prescribe the treatment for animals under histher care. Formalin is a
chemotherapeutant licensed in the UK and has full marketing authorisation.
1.3. Description (Nature and Volume) of Materials

_ Please refer to Product Data Sheets and Materiai Safety data Sheets (Aﬁnex 1).

= Formalin is a colourless, liquid with a pugent odour which is miscible in water. It comprises
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37-41% formaldehyde solution w/v GPR and contains 9-11% methanol. It causes severe
irritation if in contact with skin and is combustible. 1t is also a category 3 carcinogen (i.e. not
classifiable as to its carcinogenicity to humans). It is to be administered by addition to
seawater. Treatment dose: 200ppm in sea water. :

Formalin is not currently permitted under SEPA CAR authorisations for either of these East Loch
Roag sites.

14 Detau!s of Previous, Related Operations Includmg Current Practlce

Please refer to The Scottish Salmon Company Standard Operatmg Procedures (SOPS) for wellboat
treatment operations (Annex 2).

| 2. DISCUSSION OF AVAILABLE DISPOSAL OPTIONS
Consideration will be given to the following:
21 Land Discharge Via an Outfall

The volumes of water involved, the operational requirements, and staff and boat time implications
make land discharge practically and technically unfeasible. Furthermore, the depths of waters close
to the shore of East Loch Roag in the areas of farm sites, do not allow a large vessel to come
inshore. Therefore this option has not been considered further in this assessment.

2.2 Sea Disposal

2.2.1 Within Fish-Farm Cages via CAR Consent :

The option of treatment using tarpaulins has been considered but there are several disadvantages in
this method which will be discussed in the following section.. -

CAR consent only allows a limited number of cages to be treated per day for the following
reasons:

- It requires full enclosure tarpaulins that are extremely difficult to handle when it comes to
this size. Each tarpaulin is 110m circumference and 3 meter deep, a volume close to
1000m®. Treatment volume of a comparable wellboat treatment is considerably less.

- The hydrographic conditions also come into play as the tarpaulin act as a huge sail in
strong tidal currents typical at this place. Although it is possible to freat at slack water; this

" may mean cancellation of a treatment due to tide/weather conditions.

- Adverse weather conditions affect tarpaulin treatment more than wellboat treatment
(waves, wind)

" - Furthermore, especially with rising sea temperatures and large fish size, it is very difficult
to maintain adequate oxygen levels in the water. The risk of fish mortality is increased
significantly when using tarpaulins.

2.2.2 Fish farm cages via Marine Licence (Wellboat)

This is currently being applied for through this Marine (Scotland) Act license. This involves the
treatment within a well boat and then discharge at the site. The advantages of this method will be
discussed fully in the following section. ‘

Treating fish with chemicals at the fish farm cages in a wellboat gives the farmer access to a
controlled environment in which to treat the fish. Seawater temperature control in the wells will allow
the famer to create an environment in which to treat the fish that increases the fish welfare during
treatment. The volume of seawater in the well is known to the farmer, who can then administer an
exact dose of treatment chemical. Resulting in even bath treatment for the fish and reduces the risk
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of using too much chemical and going beyond EQS.

2.2.3 Location other than at fish farm cages (Not allowable under marine licensing at present).
This involves the treatment within a well boat and then discharge of treatment agents away from the
fish cages or in transit within the loch system between farms. Although it would appear to be an
effective management tool {in particular within a single loch muiti-farm system), such an option is not
approved by Marine Scotland and thus this method is not currently being apptlied for through this
Marine license. .

2.3  Pre-treatment options prior to discharge at sea
None.

3. ASPECTS TO BE TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION

Within Fish Farm Cage via CAR Consent

* This would require full enclosure tarpaulins but these can be difficult to handle due to the size of net
pen and the number of fish within them. Weather conditions, in particular wind and wave action
restricts the use of full tarpaulins and full tarpaulin treatments are not ideal in strong tidal currents,
like those typical of East Loch Roag, since these encourage the tarpaulins act as large sails.

The number of fish held in l[arge circular pens results in a high oxygen demand during treatment and
‘it can be very difficult to maintain adequate oxygen levels in the water. The stress levels in fish are
monitored during treatment, and there is a greater risk of aborted treatments using full tarpaulins as
a result of observed oxygen stress in the fish. Treatments stopped before completion can be
ineffective. The risk of fish mortality is increased significantly when using full tarpaulins through
oxygen stress and overcrowding. Furthermore, the equipment required to try supply adequate
oxygen (diffusers, ladders, oxygen crates) is an additional obstruction in the shallowed cages that.
can damage and stress the fish. This oxygen kit is also expensive, and physically very difficult to
transport out to, and manoeuvre around the cages.

Given the size of the cages, the quantity of Formalln required for treatment using tarpaulms would be
" much greater than within a weliboat. '

Fish farm cages via Marine licence (Wellboat)

One of the advantages of using wellboat treatments is that the well volume is absolute and known,
-and the number of fish pumped into a particular well can be counted, and thus the treatment volume
required is clearly defined. The well and biomass information allows the dose to be calculated more
accurately, giving a more effective treatment. Due to the difference between well volume and full
tarpaulin volume, there is a reduction in the amount of medicine required to treat a given biomass,
" and it is estimated that less than half the dose is required for wellboat treatments, relative to full
tarpaullns

Well boat treatment is paiticularly useful if grading or transporting of fish operations are oceurring
since the use {and cost) of the wellboat is already planned although weather conditions will
influence the availability of Wellboats :

Although there are no proven pre-treatment options prior to discharge at sea, there will be significant
dilution of medicinal compounds before discharge from the wells. During treatment there is a
continuous circulation of water being pumped through the closed wells and following treatment, there
is a continuous recirculation of seawater into the wells. There is a possibility that discharge periods
could be worked around tide timetables, since the wellboats can control discharges. This control is
not possible following full tarpaulin treatments, since discharge is immediate and continuous.

Furthermore, the disadvantages highlighted in the above section regarding treatment time
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restrictions, oxygen stress, operational difficulties, fish health concerns and mortality are removed, or
significantly reduced during wellboat treatment operations. Given the size of the wellboat, the
quantity of Formalin required for treatment using wells would be much less than treatment using
tarpaulins.

Freshwater Treatment _ o
This has been considered by TSSC, in conjunction with the Fish Vet Group and wellboat operator
Solvtrans. However, this treatment is not considered practically achievable in this instance in this
location. The wellboat operator confirmed that they cannot set up the wellboats to de-water the fish in
and out. This means that a new load of freshwater would be required each time, which is not
practical.’ :

3.1 Strategic Considerations

3.1.1 Operational aspects, including handllnq transport eic.
All treatments are under veterinary supervision and/or instruction. All operations are carried out
following written Standard Operating Procedures (please refer to enclosed documents Annex 2).

3.1 2 Availability of suitable 3|teslfacn|t|es ' '
. This falls under the responsibility of the Seawater North Production Manager It consists i |n booking
a suitable wellboat, for a defined penod and a defined task. :

3.1.3 Legislative implications, both national and international '
This BPEO supports a-Marine licence application for the East Loch Roag area for the use of
Formalin. This chemical is.not currently permiited for use at these sites under the SEPA CAR
Regulations for the discharge of medicinal products.

.. 3.1.4 Summary of the outcome of discussions with third parties (If possible, copies of consultees
_ replies should be apperided to the assessment) '
There have been no formal discussions with third parties. However, these sites are part of an Area
Management Agreement, covering Loch Roag and all stakeholders (including wild fisheries) strive to
achieve control over infections, in particular sea-lice. If requested, advice from Western Isles
Fisheries Trust could be sought.

3.2 Environmental Considerations

3.2.1 Safety |mpI|cat|ons
Please refer to the Material Safety Data Sheets and Product Information Sheets (Annex 1).

- 3.2.2 Public health implications
The only Public Health implication identified relates to Food Safety, with consumption of medicated
fish.

Formalin is licensed for use in the treatment of fish, and all treated fish undergo a withdrawal peried
of 500 degree days prior to slaughter. Farming traceability system ensures this period is adhered to
prior to harvesting. '

3.2.3 Pollution/contamination implications, including discussion on: accumulation, tOXICItV hazards,
persistence, short and long-term impacts, dllutlon and dispersion, eic
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NO MODELLING? ‘

A draft EQS of 5pg/l has been suggested by SEPA/Marine Scotland Science

Formalin is currently discharged from [andbased hatcheries directly into the sea.

3.2.4 Interference with other legitimate activities e.g. fishing 0|oerations and other aguaculture

interests _
An Area Management Agreement (AMA) was signed for Loch Roag in 2010 (Annex 3).

. The purpose of the Area Management Agreement (AMA) shall be to voluntarily promote and
implement measures for the maintenance of healthy stocks of wild and farmed salmonid frsh in the
geographical area.

AnArea Management Group (AMG) include representatives of each fish farming company present
within the area described including The Scottish Salmon Company and also other bodies including
the Quter Hebrides Fisheries Trust, Western Isles Salmon Fisheries Board and Western Isles
‘Aquaculture Association. Each organisation has nominated one person to act as a point of contact
and to represent that organisation at meetings.

All chemicals will be drscharg_ed away from mussel farms or areas known to support crustacean

fishing such as lobster and prawns.

3.2.5 Amenity/aesthetic implications
None

3.2.6 Best practice guidance and mitigation measures .
A more effective treatment is achieved with well boat treatments relative to full tarpaulrn treatments.

A wellboat treatment aIIows using fewer chemicals than enclosed tarpaulins. Given the
discontinuous nature of the discharge and the mobility of the vessel it is possible to discharge at
precise times (taking tides into consideration) or at precise locations. FISh health and weII -being is
less at risk in a boat.

‘Wellboat treatment using freshwater instead of Formalrn is not practically possible due to the -
reasons given above. :

3.3 Cost Considerations

3.3.1 Capital costs, e.g. site costs, transport hire/purchase costs, eq'u_ipment'hirelpurchase costs etc.

- Capital Cost: None

- " Hire Cost: : : _
Well Boats: ~ Hiring vessel - £21000/3.5 days
Tarpaulins:  Oxygen Crate and Diffusion Kit £7000.

- Purchase Cost:

Well Boat: Chemical cost ‘ £2 000
Tarpaulin: Chemical cost £10,000
- Oxygen Meter- . £5,000

3.3.2 Operatlnq costs e.g. [abour costs site operatron costs, transport costs equipment costs,
envrronmental monrtorlnq costs :




- Operating Costs: Unchanged
- Labour Cost:

Well Boat: : 3 men
Tarpaulin: _ - 8men

4. CONCLUSIONS
41  Summary of Available Options

The only two options to discharge are either tarpaulin freatment under SEPA/CAR licence or wellboat
treatment under marine licence.

As detailed above, freshwater treatment is not practically possible, and treatment using hydrogen
peroxide is not considered to be efficacious for these sites at this time. :
42  Summary of Pros and Cons of Each.Option

The following table summarise aspects of each scenario:
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4.3, Identification of BPEO

It seems clear that discharge from a vessel is the best option when one considers environmental
impact chemical usage and fish welfare.

We trust thls will be considered an acceptable option under the terms of the Marine (Scotland)
Act 2010, Part 4 Marine licensing.
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* Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 28 October 2011 15:57

To:

- Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash
Hi

As discussed carlier toda.y please bear in mind that a draft EQS of Spg/l has been suggested and you
should consider this in your appl1cat1on

regards

Mike

From: [

Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); [N

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash
Hi Mike,

| can confirm to you that the request isaimed at the East Loch Roag populations; it is too late for those fish
on the Lamlash site. As indicated on Stewarts original mail we are seeing ihfesta’_cion with amoeba in both
Eughlam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discussed
on the phone the minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would equate to one
wellboat well at a time. Wellboats have varying capacity but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would equate
to two wells of 325m3 each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. 1 will get the appllcatlons off to
you with accompanying BPEO's and justification as soon as 1 can. Thanks

From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 11:59

To: IS

Cc: Jim.McKie@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Subject: TSCC Lamlash

Importance: High

Please find the text of the request below.

Could you pléase clarify if you intend to apply for a marine licence to discharge formalin at
Lamlash? It is my understanding the the sites you intend to apply for are Taranish and possibly
Eughlam in East Loch Roag and not Lamlash. ‘

Regards

Milce

- 05/11/2012
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T

From: _
To: Weatherston R {(Robin)

Cc:

Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011

Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin : '

' _here from Scottish Satmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
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
the Marine Licensing team including Colin Mégginson and Rachael Duncan.

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash site where we have
“lost 65% (c 250,000) of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which has had
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
environment. Also we were told that the process would take 8 weeks, which is not much good to the-dying
fish who need treated now.

In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with your colleagues at the moment and | understand
there is a realisation that they will try and move fast on this. The reason we are keen to get approval quickly
is that we have now seen t.his‘ ameobic gill issue in a small number of cages in sites in Loch Roag in the
Hebrides. The mortality is low and the situation is nowhere near the issue at Lamlash but | really cannot
afford to sit and wait to find out what is going to develop. | really need to act proactively on fish welfare
grounds and treat-these cages with formalin.

The reason for this email is to request your and Willies help in getting this approval within the next 24hrs. |
realise | do not understand the procedures and bureaucracy but | do know that | have seen fish die
potentially unnecessarily and 1 do not want this to happen on other locations. The Fish Vet-Group and our
own staff are currently completmg the forms. What | need is a rapid conclusion from the infarmation
provided.

it is this sort of issue where the Industry really needs the effective support of Government to help prevent
“these significant naturally occurring losses and | ask that you please look at my request and action matters

quickly on my hehalf.’

| apologise if | should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you were the only contact | knew and
had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Regérdé

Chief Operating Officer

05/11/2012
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8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scottishsalmon.com
" TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: Mobile: +44 (0)7803 743905
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" From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB) - - : | _' L
Sent: 28 October 2011 11:30 . R S -

To: Weatherston R (Robin) =~ . S -

.Cc: Cowan W1 (Willie); Pendrey D {Daniel); Allan C (Charles) (MARLAB); Palmer DJ (David); McKie J (Jim)
(MARLAB); Raynard R (Rob) (MARLAB) - .. ' o _ o
Subject: RE: URGENT HELP REQUEST ' o L S n

'Robin," - - B S ‘/
[ have spoken to bot_f the Fish Vet Group an-of The Scbttish -

Salmon Co.

" According to-, TSSC are not going to apfaly for a marine licence to discharge formalin at their
Lamlash site on Arran. The FVG's advice to them was not to. freat severely affected fish.

. Alan intends to submit an application on Monday fora site in Bast Loch Roag, This site is reportedly.
© in an earlier stage of infection and it is suggested b that treatment with formalin is more likely.
- to succeed at this site. - . ' ST ‘ :

Early con\-rersatio'ns with SEPA regarding TSSC's initial request suggested that the dose discussed -
would not meet the Bnvironmental Quality Standards, TSSC are aware of this. They must have
_regard to the BEQS if a licence application is to be successful. - IS B
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Bland M (t\flichael) (MARLAB)

" From: Raynard R (Rob) (MARLAB)
Sent: 28 October 2011 09:21
To: Pendrey D (Daniel); Weatherston R {(Robin); Cowan WJ (Wl”le) Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject Re: URGENT HELP REQUEST

If this is dlscharge from cage then SEPA should be contacted and since this is welfare priority then support
- from us should help them respond quickly. .
Rob

From: Pendrey D {Daniel)

To: Weatherston R (Robin); Cowan W1 (Willie); Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB), Raynard R (Rob) (MARLAB)
Sent: Fri Oct 28 08:18:08 2011

Subject: Re: URGENT HELP REQUEST

* Do we know if the Animal Health Division (formerly State Veterinary Service) have been informed?
Andrew Voas is the contact and will be able to advise.

Danny

From: Weatherston R (Robln)

To: Cowan W] (Willie); Pendrey D (Dantel), Bland M (Mlchael) (MARLAB), Raynard R (Rob) (MARLAB)
Sent: Fri Oct 28 06:51:10 2011

Subject: Fw: URGENT HELP REQUEST

All

A bit more info/commentary from _

Robin

From: [

To: Weatherston R (Robin)
Sent: Thu Oct 27 23:07:53 2011
Subject: Re: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin,

Apologies for another late evening email but my understanding 1s that Freshwater hatchenes that use
Formalin already discharge to the sea and have consent to do so.

So perhaps the general information is already within the sysiem,

Regérds .

Sent from my iPhone

On 27 Oct 2011, at 22:40, "Robin. Weatherston(@scotland.gsi.gov. uk“
<Robin. Weatherston@scotland gsi.pov.uk> wrote:

s | :

"05/11/2012
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You've obviously caught me cold on thls I've copied to Willie and we wnII dlscuss W|th
cofleagues tomorrow

Not sure what the outcome will be, but a step at a time ...

Robin

From: _
To Weatherston R (Robin

Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38: o

Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin,

I | {rom Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and
also on the Minister’s visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. I was actually going to
email Willie Cowan but did not have his email address. 1 Wonder 1f you can help me and
also pass on this email to Willie.

I am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment procedure my
team and our vets in the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine
Scotland. I believe they have been talking with the Marine Licensing team including

- Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan. '

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash .

. site where we have lost 65% (c 250,000) of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a
natural water borne infection which has had a disastrous effect at this location. In
addition to the animal welfare issue this will probably cost us'c £5m in turnover and ¢
£750k in profit in 2012. There is no real treatment for this infection although the use of
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

In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with your colleagues at the moment
and I understand there is a realisation that they will try and move fast on this. The reason
we are keen to get approval quickly is that we have now seen this ameobic gill issue in a
small number of cages in sites in Loch Roag in the Hebrides. The mortality is low and
the situation is nowhere near the issue at Lamlash but I really cannot afford to sit and
wait to find out what is going to develop. I really need to act proactwely on fish welfare
grounds and treat these cages with formalin.

05/11/2012
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The reason for this email is to request your and Willies help in getting this approval
_within the next 24hrs. I realise I do not understand the procedures and bureaucracy but I
do know that I have seen fish die potentially unnecessarily and I do not want this to
happen on other locations. The Fish Vet Group and our own staff are currently
~ completing the forms. What I need is a rapid conclusion from the information provided.

It is this sort of issue where the Industry really needs the effective support of
Government to help prevent these significant naturally occurring losses and I ask that
you please look at my request and action matters quickly on my behalf. -

- Tapologise if T should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you were the only
contact I knew and had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short
straw but please help us with this request.

I look forward to hearing from you.

. Regards

|
" .Chief Operating Officer

<image001.jpg>

8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scottishsalmon.com
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This e-mail massage is for lhe sole use of the intended recipient and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any
unauthorised review, disclosure or dislribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please conlact the sender by -
reply e-mail, delete the e.-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure
Intranet anti-virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with
MessageLabs. (CCTM Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please
call your orgamsatmn s IT Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded

05/11/2012



Page 4 of 4
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Sinclair, Douglas [douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk]
Sent: 26 October 2011 15:17
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject: Dilution
Hi Mike
Following 6ur increasingly befqddled conversation:
For formaldehyde, a treatment concentration of 200 ppm = 200mg/l ’
If you are seeking to get this down to an EQS of 5ug/l {our drait marine standard)
You will require a dilution- of 200/0.005 = 40000x
Comparing this to Excis - 7
Cypwermthrin treatment concenrtration is 5ugli
Seeking to get this to an EQS of 16ng/l
Requires a dilution of 500016 = 312.5

So a site which ‘provides adequate dispersion to allow usable amounts of cypermethrin to be releésed will not -
necessarily allow usable amounts of formaldehyde to be released, indeed it is probably-unlikely to do so.

Cautions:
1) | am not a modeller and these are therefore no more than back of envelope sums!
2) - The numbers above are for formaldehyde, this is normally sold as “formalin” which contains 40%

formaldehyde in buffered aqueous solution. Therefore if the 200ppm figure refers to formalin you will have
60% less formaldehyde to worry about and only be requiring 80/0. 005 = 16000x dilutions to get from working
concentration to EQS — but still a tall order | think.

Give me a call if need be.

- Douglas Sinclair
_Specialist | {Aquaculture)
- SEPA Orkney Office
Norlantic House
KIRKWALL
Orkney
KW15 1RE

Tel: 01856 871080
Molb: 0797 9245513
Fax: 01856 871090
SEPA Exin: 2729

E-mail: douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk

I no longer work on Mondays, normally available Tuesday - Friday.

i% Save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's reélly necessary

The |nformél|on conlained in this email is confidenlial and is intended solely for the use of the named addressee. Access, copying or re-use of the
information in it by any other is not-authorised. If you are nol the intended recipient please notlfy us immedialely by retum email 1o

postmaster@sepa.org.uk.

05/11/2012
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SEPA registered office: Erskine Court, Castle Business Park, Stirling, FK9 4TR. Under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, the email
system at SEPA may be subject to moniloring from time to tlme :

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
- Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems please call your organisation’s I'T Helpdesk.

Commumcatmns via the GSi may be automatlcally logged momtored and/or recorded for legal
purposes.
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB) on behalf of MS Marine Licensing
Sent: 26 October 2011 12:26 :

To: Bland M {Michael) (MARLAB)

Subject: FW: Amoebic Gill Disease at East Loch Roag, Lewis

. Hi Mike,

As below, with fish farms and disease I'm afraid I've no idea.
- Thanks
Alan

From: I

Sent: 26 October 2011 12:13

To: MS Marine Licensing ' ‘

Cc: Megginson C (Colin) (MARLAB); IS e e e N aan
I Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

n iy
Subject: Amoebic Gill Disease at East Loch Roag, Lewis

Hi- I'm resending this to the marine licensing mailbox after receiving out-of-office replies from
Rachel Duncan and Colin Megginson's addresses. '

Thanks

Further to our recent correspondence regarding amoebic gill disease at Lamlash, Arran (dated 12.10.11),
I :nd myself visited the site {14.10.11) to perform a very small-scale initial treatment with hydrogen
peroxide at 500mg/L for 20 minutes on ten fish in a clean harvest bin. The dose rate was based on the lowest
dose thought to have an anti-amoebic effect in vitro from as-yet unpublished work provided to us by Tasmanian
colleagues. '

Disappointingly, the fish did not cope well with this treatment- 2/10 fish died, and all fish showed respiratory

" distress. Following 20 minutes of treatment, fish were placed in a tank of untreated seawater for a further 20
minutes and after this time euthanased and taken for examination. There was only a modest subjective
improvement in gill amoebae numbers detectable by light microscopy of wet gill preparations and histology.
Based on these results, along with clinical examination of the fish and subsequent histology, it was judged that
hydrogen peroxide at this dose did not appear to be an appropriate treatment in this population and that the gill
disease was too advanced to consider any other therapy such as formalin. Fish at this site have since been
managed to reduce stress and ensure as prompt mortality removal as possible, but ongoing losses of roughly half
the population are reported. ‘

Subsequently, amoebic gill disease has been diagnosed at a Scottish Salmon Company site at East Loch Roag,
Lewis. This was detected on histopathological samples sent by the site {(spilt between two groups of caged at
Taranaish and Eughlam) and subsequently confirmed by myself on a clinical visit on 20.10.11. At the time of visit,
the site staff were reporting a decline in feeding rates in some cages (similar to early signs reported in Arran),
although over this weekend mortalities have risen. Our limited experience in Scottish amoebic gill disease cases is
that observation of amoebae on histopathological sections does not always mean that severe AGD-will develop;
however given the signs at East Loch Roag (amoebae present in all cages, inappetance and rising mortality
pattern) we expect to see considerable mortality in this case also. ‘

05/11/2012
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In terms of treatment, it's very clear to us that for any therapy to be successful it will need to be carried out
promptly while this population still has some functional gill reserve left, which is required to deal with stressful
events and chemotherapeutants. The recommended treatment for AGD is a 2-3 hour freshwater bath, which we
have examined with Scottish Salmon Company and appears not to be practically achievable in this instance.

Based on the results of the treatment at Arran with hydrogen peroxide, we do not believe it to be an appropriate '
treatment at East Loch Roag at this point. We note that while hydrogen peroxide as a treatment for amoebae is

. the subject of some interest in the Tasmanian industry, previous studies have found equivocal results and high
toxicity (Powell and Clark [2004] Aquaculture Research 35 112-123). Furthermore, the huge variation in-dose
rates believed to be efficacious (based on the extremely limited published data and discussions with veterinary
colleagues) makes it difficult to confidently advise our clients on hydrogen peroxide or any other oxidative agents
such as chloramine T.

By contrast, the correct doseage for use of formalin as a topical anti-protozoal is better understood. Based on the
unavailability of a freshwater treatment protocol, following discussion amongst the clinical staff here at Fish Vet
Group, we suggest that strategic treatment of worst-affected pens at East Loch Roag using formalin at 200ppm
for 45minutes in a well boat be considered. Should consent be granted by Marine Scotland, the final decision to
treat would need to be a clinical judgement between the senior company biologist and ourselves as veterinary

_ surgeons based on the health status of the fish and their likely ability to tolerate treatment. By treating the worst-
affected pens (alongside the natural decrease in temperature expected over the following period) we would
hope to reduce the infective burden on the site in order to avoid the severity of losses observed at Arran,

Obviously we understand that this matter requires a period of consideration, but we'd greatly appreciate your,
response at the earliest opportunity.

Best wishes,

Veterinary Surgeon
E' Description: Description: Description: FlshVetGroup

Mobile: +44(0)7769 266156

LEGAL INFORMATION: This e-mall message has been swept by anti-virus software. You are solely responsible for ensuring thz
mail or attachment you receive is virus free. We disclalm Habllity for any damage you suffer as a consequence of receiving any v
views expressed within the e-mall are that of the author and may not necessarlly constitute or imply its endorsement or recomrr
by FVG Limited. Registered Address: 22 Carsegate Road, Inverness, IV3 BEX

This e-mail message is for the sole use of the intended recipient and may contain confidential and privileged -
information. Any unauthorised review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail and destroy all copies of the original
message.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-virus service
supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM Certificate Number
2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s I'T Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatlcally logged, monitored and/m recorded for legal purposes

Ekdkd ko Rk AR E AR AR R AR R AR kR A ko bk dkdk iRk ARk AR Aok

This email has been received from an external party and

05/11/2012




Page 3 of 3

has been swept for the presence of compuler viruses.

05/11/2012



‘

Page 1 of 2

Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 24 October 2011 15:01

To: MS FishHealth

Subject: FW: AGD at Lamlash, Arran

DI

For information, MS-LOT received this request last week. The company wish to use formalin to
treat for Amocbic Gill Disease. Although not notifiable, the FHI may have an interest. We have not
: heard anything since.

Regards

Mike

From:
Sent: 12 October 2011 13:28

To: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB) o , C

Ce: H I SR E— A icginson C
(Colin) (MARLAB); douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk; _

Subject: AGD at Lamlash Arran '

Dear Rachael,

I forwarded a copy of your email regarding the use of chemotherapeutants for treatment of amoeblc gill
disease at Lamlash, so | wanted to update Marine Scotland with what's presently going on. |

accompanied [ NI (2 veterinary colleague here at Fish Vet Group) on a site visit to Lamlash on
2.10.11., where there was a rising pattern of mortality in all cages and very high numbers of amoebae parasitising
the gill tissue of all fish we examined. Given the severity of losses experienced in previous years, we expect this
outbreak to go on and cause similar severe mortality and welfare problems without therapeutic intervention.

Following your email we plan to examine further using hydrogen peroxide (Paramove 35) as an in-situ bath
treatment. Based on clinical examination and histopathology the fish may be too compromised to wait for the
availability of a wellboat, and may not survive such a treatment. At present we are trying to arrange delivery of
an IBC to the site in order to perform a small field trial on affected fish- probably in harvest bins- to assess the
effects of 3 different concentrations on severely AGD-compromised fish. We intend to draft a trial protocol with
the input of the product distributors (Aquapharma). In addition to considering the therapeutic efficacy of
Paramave 35, availability in terms of timescale and sufficient quantltles to go on and potentially treat the site still
need to be established.

Should treatment with hydrogen peroxide prove non-efficacious or practically impossible, at that point it may

warrant consideration of alternative treatments not presently licensed for use such as formalin.
Regards

Velerinary Surgeon

EJ Description: Description: Description: FishVet Group . Nl

Mobile: +44(0)7769 266156

05/11/2012
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Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: - Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB})
Sent: 17 October 2011 16:57

" To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject: Use of formalin

Attachments: ObjRef.obr
Hi Mike,
Since | won't see you till | get back in November | thought | bétter make you aware that The Scottish Salmon
Company contacted us to use Formalin in a wellboat treaiment. As you can see from the file note and emails
we refused them permission as suggested that they tried treatment with H202 which they are allowed. The
vet is doing tests brut they-may come back and ask again if that doesn't work.
SEPA say no modelling has been done in the marine environment to date and Douglas Sinclair isn't sure if it
is a VMD authoriséd medicine. _
~ You'll see my response to TSSC too.

Rachael

05/11/2012
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Duncan R {(Rachael) (MARLAB)

From: I
Sent:- 12 October 2011 13:28 '

To: Duncan R {Rachael) (MARLAB)

Ce: I I s D S—
Megginson C (Colin) (MARLAB); douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk;
I

Subject: AGD at Lamlash, Arran
Follow Up Flag: Follow up '
Flag Status: Red

Dear Rachael,

-forwarded a copy of your email regarding the use of chemotherapeutants for treatment of amoebic gill
disease at Lamlash, so | wanted to update Marine Scotland with what's presently going on. |
accompanied_(a veterinary colleague here at Fish Vet Group) on a site visit to Lamlash on
2.10.11., where there was arising pattern of mortality in all cages and very high numbers of amoebae parasitising
the gill tissue of all fish we examined. Given the severity of losses experienced in previous years, we expect this
outbreak to go on and cause similar severe mortality and welfare problems without therapeutic intervention.

Following your email we plan to examine further-using hydrogen peroxide (Paramove 35) as an in-situ bath
treatment. Based on clinical examination and histopathology the fish may be too compromised to wait for the
availability of a wellboat, and may not survive such a treatment. At present we are trying to arrange delivery of
an IBC to the site in order to perform a small field trial on affected fish- probably in harvest bins- to assess the

~ effects of 3 different concentrations on severely AGD-compromised fish. We intend to draft a trial protocol with
the input of the product distributors {Aquapharma). In addition to considering the therapeutic efficacy of
Paramove 35, availability in terms of timescale and sufficient quantities to go on and potentially treat the site still
need to be established.

- Should treatment with hydrogen peroxide prove non-efficacious or practically impossible, at that point it may
warrant consideration of alternative treatments not presently licensed for use such as formalin.
Regards, '

Veterinary Surgeon

€ FishVet Group
Mobile: -

LEGAL INFORMATION: This e-mail message has been swept by anti-virus software. You are solely responsible for ensuring the
mail or attachment you receive is virus free. We disclaim liability for any damage you suffer as a consequence of receiving any v
views expressed within the e-mail are that of the author and may not necessarily constitute or imply Its endorsement or recomsr
by FVG Limited. Registered Address: 22 Carsegate Road, Inverness, IV3 8EX

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wircless Worldwide in partnership with MessagelL.abs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems please call your orgamsatlon sIT
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Helpdesk. = . : ' _ ‘
Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
_purposes. ' '
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Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

From: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 11 October 2011 17:12
To: I
Cc: - Megginson C (Colin} (MARLAB); 'douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk’

‘Subject:  Use of formalin at Lamlash, Firth of Clyde
“Importance: High . ' '

Tracking: = Recipient ' Delivery Read .
Megginson C (Colin) (MARLAB) Deli{rered: 1171072011 17:12 Read: 12/1.0/2011 07:24

*douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk’

Hi I

Following discussions with colleagues here and within SEPA I'm afraid at this stage we c¢annot permit the use

of Farmalin in the treatment of amoebic gill disease at Lamlash. Censidering the urgency with which

treatment is required, the procedure to allow for the use of this chemical would take too long. We are aware

that is is used in the treatment at freshwater farms however its use in the marine enviroment has not been

modelled to date. We are also aware that there are alternatives available. From advice we have received, it

has been suggested hydrogen peroxide is effective at least in vifro and should be considered as an aliernative
_for use in this situation.

In order for us to continue to consider the use of Formalin we would require The Scottish Salmon Company fo
justify the rejection of alternative treatments which are already consented for use, either under the CAR or
Marine Licence. Also, we would require in writing justification from your vet for the use of this treatment over
others. Could you please confirm whether Formalin is a medicinal chemical?

Thank you for consulting us on this matter.
Regards
Rachael

Rachael Duncan

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101| 375, Victoria Road |Aberdeen AB11 9DB
“Tel: +44 (0}1224 295579

S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0}1224 295524

e: Rachael. Duncan@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w:_hitp://mww.séotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

* Please note the generic env prot inbox has changed, it is now: MS.MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk *

02/11/2012
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L , —

MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010

MARINE SCOTLAND, MARINE LABORATORY, ABERDEEN , , . , DISCHARGE VESSEL LOG OF OPERATIONS*
_uam_._m_.@m Vessel: Viktoria Viking ~ Log Sheet Page Number: _2
Discharge Operation: Fish Treatment — Wellboat Marine Licence Number: - _04339/11/0
Discharge Site: O.mm:oa Loch Rdag _ "~ Farm of Operation: Miavaig
i Discharge operation
nm._:mm_.__.wmmmn“* Chemical(s) |— ‘ ]
Date : or agent(s) ) - Comments
discharged . : : N Weather, sea state and Time and position: . .
(ml or grams) discharged | Time and position: Start tidal set Completion Rate/ Qcin_o:* discharge
081141 | 100 wes | Fommalin | S8 185008 Mild, cloudy Within the drop zone | 10 minutes
100 litres Formalin 58° 18.500N . Within the drop zone 10 minutes
) 100 litres Formalin £8" 18.500N - Within the drop zone 10 minutes
08.11.11 . 28% 06° 51.900W Mild, cloudy . _ - .
: 100 litres Formalin 58° 18.500N ‘ " ) Within the drop zone 10 minutes -
om.\_ 1.1 - 28% 08° 51.900W Mild, cloudy -
Total 400 Litres
*See Licence Conditions Relating to Discharge Operations

Farm Manager: o Signature:

*Delete as appropriate

Form Fep6 - . . : : ‘ , : March 1999



marinescotland

T-+44 (9)1224 295579 F:-+44(0)1224 295524
E: M5 MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

The Scottish Salmon Company
Mid Strome

Loch Carron

Ross-shire -

I\VV54 8YH

Dear I

' '
The Scottish
Government

Our Ref: FKB/MW112

Date: 30 December 20_11

MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4 MARINE LICENSING E

SCOTTISH SALMON COMPANY, EMERGENCY WELLBOAT DISCHARGE, OFFSHORE

LOCH ROAG |

LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0

[ am writing to inform you that the above licence expired on 05 December 2011.

Completed logs of the operation are now overdue, in terms of Part 2; section 10.0f the
schedule to the above licence. The logs should be forwarded to the address below within 14
days of the date of this letter and should be submitted on the enclosed form FEP&. '

Under the OSPAR Convention all dumping of waste at sea with Scottish waters is required to -
be reported annually. Therefore we will require your completed logs to be submitted by no

later than close of play on the 24 January 2012.

Yours sincerely

- '

Rachael Duncan
Licensing Operations Team

Marine Laboratory PO Box 101 375 Victoria Road,
Aberdeen AB11 9DB
www.scotland. gov.uk/marinescotland
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Page 1 of 1

Duncan R (Rachael) (VARLAB)

From: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 07 November 2011 14:56 . ‘

To: Cartney M (Matthew); 'oceanmod@sepa.org.uk’, 'roddy.macminn@snh.gov.uk’; ‘Steven
Driver'; 'McGrogan, Joan'; 'McPake, Charlene' ‘

Subject: FKB/W112 - SCOTTISH SALMON COMPANY, EMERGENCY WELLBOAT DISCHARGE

, OFFSHORE LOCH ROAG
Attachments: 04339.pdf

Tracking: Recipient Delivery .

‘ Cartney M (Matthew) ~ Delivered: 07/11/2011 14:56
'oceanmod@sepa.orj.uk' :
'roddy.macminn@snh.gov.uk’

'Steven Driver'
'McGregan, Joan'

'McPake, Charleng’ -

Dear All ,

Please find the revised marine licence to dlscharge Formalin in Loch Roag The revision was to amend the
licensed dates.

Yours sincerely
Rachael

Rachael Duncan
_Licensing Officer
. Marine Scotland — Marine Planning & Policy
Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101| 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 QDB

Tel: +44 {0)1224 295579

S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax; +44 (0)1224 295524
e: Rachael.Duncan@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
w:_hitp:iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

* Please note the generic env_prot inbox has changed, it is now: MS.MarineLicensing@scotland gsi.gov.uk *

07/11/2011
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Duncan R (Rachaél) (MARLAB) '

From: " Duncan R (Réchael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 07 November 2011 14:54 '
To: ]

Subject: FKBMW112 - SCOTTISH SALMON COMPANY, EMERGENCY WELLBOAT DISCHARGE,
OFFSHORE LOCH ROAG : : '

Attachments: 04339.pdf; Wellboat Discharge Log.doc

Dear [N

As per Mike's email of earlier today, please find the revised marine licence to discharge Formalin. The
revision was to amend the licensed dates. A hardcopy and invoice will be in the post shortly.

Kind Regards

Rachael

Rachael Duncan

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Planning & Policy .

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101| 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
Tel: +44 (0)1224 2956579 ‘

SIB: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524

e:_Rachael. Duncan@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w:_http:/iwww scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

‘ * Please note the generic env_prot inbox has changed, it is now: MS. MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi. gov. uk *

- 07/11/2011



marinescotland

T-+44 (0)1224 295579 F:+44 (0)1224 295524
E MS.Ma_rineLicensing@'scotland_gsi_gov.uk

The Scottish Salmon Company
Mid Strome

Loch Carron

Ross-shire

[IV54 8YH -

Dear HEENEEN

’ ‘
g W

The Scottish
Government

Our Ref: FKBW112

- Date: 07 November 2011

MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4 MARINE LICENSING

SCOTTISH SALMON COMPANY, EMERGENCY WELLBOAT DISCHARGE, OFFSHORE

LOCH ROAG

LIGENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0

| am pleased to enclose a revised licence. You are advised to carefully check the licence and
schedule documents, and if there are any errors you should contact myself immediately.

| would like to draw your attention to the licence conditions relating to amendment of the
licence or schedule documents. If circumstances arise which necessitate changes or
extension to your licence you should advise the licensing authority immediately.

Yours sincerely

fasbael

Rachael Duncan

Licensing Operations Team
Marine Scotland

Enc

Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road,
Aberdeen AB11 9DB
www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland
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marinescdtland.

>

The Scottish
T:+44 {0}1224 295579 F:+44(0)1224 285524 Government
E: M5 MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk :
MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4 MARINE LICENSING
LICENCE FOR DISCHARGE OF USED CHEMICALS FROM WELLBOATS
Licence Number: 04339/11/0 | ' .Reference Number: FKB/W112

Scottish Ministers (heréinafter referred to as "the licensing authority") hereby .authorise:

The Scottish Salmon Company
Mid Strome

Lochcarron

Ross-Shire
-1V54 BYH

to deposit in the sea the chemlcals or agents particulars of which are described in Part 1 of the
attached Schedule. The licence is subject to the conditions of use set out, or referred to, in

Part 2 of the said Schedule.

This licence shall be valid from 07 November 2011 until 05 December 2011

- Signed: W

Michae! Bland
For and on behalf of the licensing authority
. Date: . 07 November 2011
Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, { "‘5 & w ‘/i@

Aberdeen AB119DB - ‘ : AL '.
www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland : s mm—ns




SCHEDULE TO LICE.NCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 07 NOVEMBER 2011

l Part 1 - Par’ticulars'

1. Name and address of the person(s) discharging the used chemical(s) or ageni(s):

‘The Licensee will discharge the used chemical(s) or agent(s)

- 2. Name and-address of any othér agents acting on behalf of the licensee (if éppropriate): _
As per Licensee
‘3. Name(s) of the vessel(s) to be empioyed to undertake the discharge operations: -
a) Victoria Viking
The agent or licensee must notify the licensing authority immediatély by fax if a vessel not
listed on the licence is used for the discharge of used chemicals. The .information required
* by the licensing autherity regarding the additional vessel(s) will be the same as the
information already provided for the vessels on the existing licence. The licénsing authority
will respond by fax or e-mail, confirming the addition of the new vessel to a revised licence.
The revised licence will then be forwarded to the agent or the licensee by the licensing
authority. ‘
4. Location of discharge of the used chemical(s) or agent(s):
Within the area bounded by joining the points: ' ,
58° 17.81°’N 006° 52.21'W - 58°18.2°N 006° 52.80°'W
58° 18.85’N 006° 50.52’W 58° 18.44'N 006° 49.93'W
5. Description of the chemical(s) or agent(s):
16 separate dischargeé of 100 litres Formalin Solution (38%) in seawater at 200ppm, as
described in the application dated 31 October 2011 and supporting documentation.

6. Quantity for discharge within the period of validity of the licence:

Total volume discharged to be no more than 1600 litres of Forma]in_ Solution (38%). To
be discharged in 16 separate discharges of 100 litres Formalin Solution (38%).




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 07 NOVEMBER 2011,

Part 2 - Conditions

" 1. The licensee shall notify the licensing authority by fax or e-mail, at least two working days in
advance of starting the operation, with the date and time of commencement of all
operations undertaken under the authority of this licence and the product name and quantity
of chemical(s) or agent(s) intended for discharge. Details of chemical(s) or agent(s)

‘discharged shall also be recorded and reported in accordance with Condition 10 of the
licence. : e : ‘ _;

2. The treatment of fish should be carried out in such a way as to minimise the discharge of
chemical(s) or agent(s). - : B ‘

3. "Force majeure” may apply when, due to stress of weather or any other cause, itis
necessary to discharge the chemicals or agents at a location other than that specified in
Part 1 of the Schedule because the safety of human life, or a vessel or vehicle, is
threatened. If chemicals or agents are discharged in an unauthorised area, full details of
the circumstances shall be immediately notified to the licensing authority. (See aiso notes
appended to the Schedule). '

4. No dead fish shall be discharged to the water environment at any time. Any dead fish
" should be disposed of above the Mean High Water Springs in an appropriate manner.

5. Works shall only be carried out in accordance with the application and The Scottish Salmon
Company SOP for Wellboat Treatments dated 06 December 20170. Marine Scotland o
Licensing Operations Team (MS-LOT) shall be informed if alterations are made to the
treatment procedure. Copies of the treatment procedure must be kept with copies of the
licence. ' ' '

6. Only those chemicals or agents described in Part 1, section 5 of the Schedule (the
authorised deposits) shall be discharged under authority of the licence and all associated
tank/hopper washings shall be discharged at the location(s) specified in Part 1, section 4 of
the Schedule.

7. The method of discharge shall be:

Pumped discharge via pipe/hatches from Wellboat at a depth of surface.to 4 metres
below sea surface whilst steaming within the location of discharge in accordance with
Part 1, section 4 of this licence. Only one well containing 100 litres of Formalin Solution
at 38% to be discharged at any one time. - ‘ '

8. Only those persons acting on behalf of, and authorised by, the agent or the licensee shall
undertake the discharge operations. - ' -




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 07 NOVEMBER 2011

9.

10.

The licensee shall provude the Master(s) of the vessel(s) employed to undertake the
discharge operations with a copy of the licence. The licensee shall also ensure that copies
of the licence and all other relevant documents, including the treatment procedure (), are -
available for inspection by any authorised Enforcement Officer at:

a) the premises of the licensee; and

b) on board the vessel(s) emplo'yed to undertake the discharge opérations.

‘A log of operations shall be maintained and kept on board the discharge vessel(s)

throughout each discharge operation, and be available for inspection by an authorised

- Enforcement Officer. The logs shall be retained for a period of six calendar months

11.

12,

following expiry of the llcence

For each discharge operation, the followfng information mﬁst be recorded:
a) the name of the vessel;

b} the name of the-prodlljct and its abtive ingredient;

c)} the quantity (v‘olgme) of the product schedu{ed for dischérge;

d) -the date, fime and position of each disch-arge operaticon;

e) -the weather, including wind-strength and direction, sea and tidal state throughout each
discharge operation;

) the rate of discharge during each discharge operation, if appropriate, and the duration of
each discharge operation. (If the rate of discharge is not constant, the maximum and
mean rates of discharge should be indicated); :

-g) report on each discharge operation, lncludmg details of any problems; andan -

explanaticn for any delays; and
h) the signature of the Master at the foot of each page of each record.

The above information can be entered on form FEPS. The licensee shall provide to MS-
LOT at three monthly intervals or on request from MS-LOT, a copy of all or any part: of the
records specified above.

In the event of the licensee becoming aware of any changes to the mformatlon on which the
issue of the licence was based, the licensing authority shall be immediately notified of the
details.

Where any of the chemical{s) or agent(s) listed in Part 1, section 5 of the licence are also
authorised for discharge to the water environment following bath treatment at the fish
holding cages at the site described in Part 1, section 4 under an authorisation granted by

- Scottish Environment Protection Agency then the quantity of that chemical or agent

discharged over the time period specified in the relevant condition by the method specified




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0° DATED: 07 NOVEMBER 2011

in Condition 7 and from the cages over the same time périod shall not exceed the total
quantity specified in the relevant condition. ‘

13. The chemical(s) or agent(s) listed above shall only be discharge following treatmenit of fish
within the vessel(s) listed in Part 1, section 3. .



NOTES

1.

You are deemed to have satisfied yourself that there are'no barriers, legal or otherwise,
to the carrying out of the licensed operations. The issue of the licence does not absolve
the licensee from obtaining such authorisations, consents etc which may be required
under any other legislation.

In the event that the licensee wishes any of the particulars set down in the Schedule o
be altered, the licensing authority shall be immediately notified of the alterations. It
should be noted that changes can invalidate a licence, and that an application for-a new
licence may be necessary.

- Under Section 30 of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010, the licensing authority may vary,

suspend or revoke the licence, if it appears to the authority that there has been a breach

- of any of the provisions of the licence or for any other reason that appears to be relevant

to the authority.

Under Section 39 of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010, it is an offence to carry on a

licensable marine activity or cause or permit any other person to carry on such an
activity without a marine licence or fails to comply with any condition of a marine licence.
It is a defence for a person-charged with an offence under Section 40 in relation to any
activity to prove that the activity was carried out for the purpose of saving life, or for the
purposes of securing the safety of a vessel, aircraft or marine structure (‘force majeure’),
and that the person took steps within a reasonable time to provide full details of the
incident to the licensing authority. (Under Annex Il, Article 7 of the Convention for the
Protection of the Marine Environment of the North-east Atlantic, the licensing authority is
obliged to immediately report ‘force majeure’ incidents to the Convention Commission).

" All carrespondence or communications relating to the licence should be addressed fo:

Licensing Operations Team
Marine Scotland

Marine Laboratory

375 Victoria Road
Aberdeen

AB11 9DB

Tel:  (01224) 295579
Fax: (01224) 295524
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)

Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Bland M (Michael} (MARLAB})
Sent: - 07 November 2011 11:26

To:

Subject: RE: Contact for formalin discharge

Dear -

Your proposal would need to be put out for consultation and this would take a period of several -
weeks. : -

_You have stated in the below correspondence that you wish to change the site of origiﬁ. As this has

no bearing on the quantity of formalin discharged then this is permitted under your licence.

I can therefore confirm that you can discharge the licensed quantity of formalin within the location

- stated in your licence following treatment of fish from Vuiabeag.

The period of the current licence is Wrohgly stated on the licence issued to you. A new licence will
be issued today with the correct validity period. :

Please feel free to call and discusé.

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
amoeba has increased considerably in Vuia Beag in west loch road. We would like to treat cages from this
site rather than east loch roag. There would be the same volume of formalin discharged and although we can
use the specified drop zone as specified in the license we would prefer one at the seaward side of west loch -
roag due to heavy swell outside the loch. Could you please email me back if this is possible. If not then could
you confirm we are ok to use the existing license and conditions but with fish from vuia beag? Thanks.

From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsl.gov.uk
To:

_ Cc: Donald.Morrison2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Sent: Fri Nov 04 15:59:14 2011
Subject: Contact for formalin discharge -

I have copied this to Donald who will inspect the discharge on Monday. Donald can be contacted-on

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
A
Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
A . .
Direct Line:A AA 01224 295529
Switchboard: 01224 876544
FaxAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 01224 295524
Email; michael.bland@scotiand.gsi.gov.uk
w: hitp://www scottand.gov.uk/marinescotland

. This e-ﬁail (and al.1y fiiés or other attachments transmitted with_ it). is
intended ;olely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unaulh_orised
use, disclosure, slorage, copying or distribution of any part c;f this

. e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please
destroy lhe-emai], remove any copies from your system and inform
the sender immediately by retum. | |

Communicaions with ihe Sqottish Government may be moniiored or -
recorded in order to secure the effective operaticn of the system and
for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions contained within’
this e-mail may not neceséarily reflect those ofth.e

Scottish Government.

The original of this email was scanned for viruses by the Government Secure Intranet virus scanmng
service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) On leaving the GSi this email was certified virus free.
Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal

purposes.

This e- mall message is forthe sole use of the intended reclplent and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorised
review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. i you are not the intended recipient please contactthe sender by reply e-mall, delete the e-mail
and destroy all copies of the original message.

This email was received. from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s I'T Helpdesk.

'Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. ' : '

07/11/2011
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Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

- From: Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)
Sent: 04 November 2011 16:09 - _
To: | -
Subject: FKB/W112 -~ SCOTTISH SALMON COMPANY; WELLBOAT DISCHARGE, LEWIS
Attachments: cover letter.pdf; lic_04339.pdf, FEP8 - Disposal Vessel Log.doc

Dear-
Please find as attached, the formal Marine Licence and a{tachments for your wellboat discharge operation.
A hard copy s also in the post.

- Kind regards
Alan

Alan Keir

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Policy and Planning

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box-101| 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579 ‘ '
S/B; +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524 -

e: Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: hitp://www.scotland.gov.uk/imarinescotiand

04/11/2011
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Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)
From: Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)
Sent: 04 November 2011 16:08 :
To: Cartney M {Matthew); 'Oceanmod’, 'Wllllams Mark'; 'Roddy MacMinn'; 'Steven Drlver
‘McGrogan, Joan'
" Subject: . FKBMW112 - SCO_TTISH SALMON COMPANY; WELLBOAT DISCHARGE, LEWIS

Attachments: lic_04339.pdf
Dear All,
Please find as attached the formal Marine Licence for wellboat discharge off Lewis.
Contact details are: |

h

Tel. I

Kind regards

Alan Keir

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Policy and Planning

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101| 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB119DB
Tel: +44 {0)1224 295579 '

5/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524

e: Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: http://www.scotland.gov. uk/marinescotland

04/11/2011



marinescotiand N | W
The Scottish

T-+44 (0)1224 295579  F: +44 (0)1224 295524 _ Government
E- MS MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4 MARINE LICENSING

LICENCE FOR DISCHARGING OF USED CHEMICALS FROM WELLBOATS

T

Licence Number: 04339/11/0 . Reference Number: FKB/W112

Scottish Ministers (hereinafter referred to as "the licensing authority") hereby authorise:

The Scottish Salmon Company
Mid Strome
" Lochcarron
Ross-Shire
Iv54 8YH

to deposit in the sea the chemicals or agents parficu!ars of which are described in Part 1 of the

attached Schedule. The licence is subject to the conditions of use set out, or referred to,.in
Part 2 of the said Schedule. :

This licence sﬁall be valid from 07 November 2011 until 05 December 2012

- Michael Bland

For and on behalf of the licensing authority

Date: 04 November 2011
Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victaria Road, Mo
Aberdeen AB119DB - | ‘ i:; «3_\'/%3 ]
DIVESTOR NPEOFLE  “T5ANY

www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland



SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

Part 1 — Particulars -

1. Name and address of the person(s) discharging the used chemical(s) or agent(s):

The Licensee will discharge thé used chemical(s) or agent(s)

2. Name and address of any other agents acting on behalf of the licensee (if apprOpriate):
As per Licensee

3. Name(s) of the vessel(s) to be employed to undertake the discharge operations:
a) Victoria Viking
The agent or licensee must ndtify the licen‘éing authority imrhediate[y by fax if a vessel
not listed on the licence is used for the discharge of used chemicals. The information
required by the licensing authority regarding the additional vessel(s) will be the same as
the information already provided for the vessels on the existing licence. The licensing
authority will respond by fax or e-mail, confirming the addition of the new vesselio a
revised licence. The revised licence will then be forwarded to the agent or the licensee
by the licensing authority.

4. Location of discharge of the used chemical(s) or ageni(s):

An area bounded by the following co-ordinates: _
58 17.805’'N. 06 52.205'W 58 18.271’'N 06 52.795'W
58 18.847°’N 06 50.521'W 58 18.442’N 06 49.931'W

5. Description of the chemical(s) or agent(s):

16 separate discharges of 1001 Formalin Solution (38%) in seawater at 20bppm, as described

in the application dated 31 October 2011 and supporting documentation.

6. 'Qhantity for discharge within the period of validity of the licence:

_ Total volume discharged to be no more that 1600 litres of Formalin Solution (38%). 16
separate discharges of 1001 Formalin solution (38%).



SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 . DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

Part 2 - Conditions

1. The licensee shall notify the licensing authority by fax or e-mail, at least two warking days in
" advance of starting the operation, with the date and time of commencement of all '
operations undertaken under the authority of this licence and the product name and quantity
of chemical(s) or agent(s) intended for discharge. Details of chemical(s) or agent(s)
discharged shall also be recorded and reported in accordance with Condition 10 of the
licence. .

2. The treatment of fish should be carried out in such a way as to minimise the discharge of
chemical(s) or agent(s). ' : ‘

3. "Force majeure" may apply when, due to stress of weather or any other cause, it is .
necessary to discharge the chemicals or agents at a location other. than that specified in
Part 1 of the Schedule because the safety of human life, or a vessel or vehicle, is
threatened. If chemicals or agents are discharged in an unauthorised area, full details of
the circumstances shall be immediately notified to the licensing authority. (See also notes -
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
‘the Schedule. : : '

7. The method of discharge shall be:

Pumped discharge via pipe/hatches from Wellboat at a depth of surface to 4 metres:
below sea surface whilst steaming within the location of discharge in accordance with'
Condition 4 of this licence. Only one well containing 1001 of Formalin Solution at 38% to
be discharged at any one time. ' '

8. Only those persons acting on behalf of, and authorised by, the agent or the licensee shall
undertake the discharge operations. : - ‘



SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04332/11/0 DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

8.

10.

The licensee shall provide the Master(s) of the vessel{s) employed to undertake the

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

"b) on board the vessel(s) employed to undertake the d]scharge operations.

A log of operations shall be maintained and kept on board the discharge vessel(s)
throughout each discharge operation, and be available for inspection by an authorised
Enforcement Cfficer. The logs shall be retamed for a period of six calendar months
followmg expiry of the licence.

For each lescharge operatlon. the. following information rﬁust be recorded:
a) the name of the vessel; . ‘
b} the name of the product and ifs active ingredient;

c) the quantity (volume) of the 'produc:t sCh_edLJIed fer discharge;

d) the date, time and posmon of each discharge operation;

e} the weather; including wind strength and direction, sea and tidal state throughout each
discharge operation;

f) the rate of discharge during each discharge operation, if appropriats, and the duration of
each discharge operation. (If the rate of discharge Is not constant, the maximum and
mean rates of discharge should be lndlcated)

g) report on each discharge operation, mcludlng detalls of any problems and an
explanatlon for any delays; and

h) the signature of the Master at the foot of each page of each record.

‘11.

12.

The above information can be entered on form FEP6. The licensee shall provide to MS-
LOT at three monthly intervals or on request from MS-1.OT, a copy of all or any part of the
records specified above.

in the event of the licensee becoming aware of any changes to the information on which the
issue of the licence was based, the licensing authority shall be immediately notlf ed of the
details. .

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

——




SCHEDULE TO LICENCE NUMBER: 04339/11/0 DATED: 04 NOVEMBER 2011

in Condition 7 and from thé cages over the same time period shall not exceed the total
guantity specified in the relevant condition.

13. The chemical(s) or agent(s) listed above shall only be discharge following treatment of fish
within the vessel(s) listed in Part 1, section 3. ' : ‘



NOTES

1.

~ You are deemed to have satisfied yourself that there are no barriers, legal or otherwise,

to the carrying out of the licensed operations. The issue of the licence does not absolve
the licensee from obtaining such authorisations, consents efc which may be required
under any other legislation,

In the event that the licensee wishes any of the particulars set down in the Schedule to
be altered, the licensing authority shall be immediately notified of the alterations. It
should be noted that changes can mvahdate a licence, and that an appllcatlon for a new
licence may be’ necessary

Under Section 30 of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010 the Ilcensmg authonty may vary,
suspend or revoke the licence, if it appears to the authority that there has been a breach
of any of the provisions of the licence or for any ofher reason that appears to be relevant
to the authority.

Under Section 39 of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010, it is an offence to carry on a

' ~ licensable marine activity or cause or permit any other person to carry on such an

activity without a marine licence or fails to comply with any condition of a marine licence.
Itis a defence for a person charged with an offence under Section 40 in relation to any
acfivity to prove that the activity was carried out for the purpose of saving life, or for the
purposes of securing the safety of a vessel, aircraft or marine structure (‘force majeure’),
and that the person took steps within a reasonable time to provide full details of the
incident to the licensing authority. (Under Annex I, Article 7 of the Convention for the
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

Marine Laboratoty

375 Victoria Road
Aberdeen

- AB11 9DB

Tel  (01224) 295579
Fax:  (01224) 205524
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Bland M (Mlchael) (MARLAB)

From: Bland M (Mlchael) {(MARLAB)

Sent: ‘ 04 November 2011 15:58

To: - Morrison D {Donald) (Fisheries)

Cc: Mckenzie G (Gregor); MS Marine Licensing; Megginsan C (Colin) (MARLAB)
Subject: ' Wellboat inspection

Attachments: lic_04339.pdf

i vF"l-.

. lic_04339.pdf (232
. - KB)
Hi Donald,

Thanks for offering to go to the wellboat 1nspect10n on Monday morning.

As stated earlier what we really need is for you to be on the vessel for the first discharge. The fish will be
pumped into the wells and the formalin added. They should then steam to the discharge location that is in
_the licence (attached) and discharge, one well at a time. Could you please inspect the location of the

‘ischarges? They will make two discharges per trip out of the loch and the discharge: zone is out past
Carloway

I have arranged for you to meet TSSC at East Loch Roag shorebase (Breaclext) for 8. 30 on Monday The

‘contact is

Thanks again,

Mike Bland

Marine Licensing Casework Manager
Licensing Operations Team

Marine Scotland - Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Governmentl Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 | 375 Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB.
Direct Line: 01224 295529

‘Switchboard: 01224 876544

Fax: 01224 2956524
Email: michael, bland@scottand.gsi.gov.uk

wi http:/iwww.scotland. gov.uk/marinescotiand



Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

From: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
- Sent: 04 November 2011 1452
To: ~ Mckenzie G (Gregor) -
Ce: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); Downie D (Douglas) .
Subject: Formalin MSDS and advice from MS H&S '
Attachments: -+ DisplayMSDSPage.pdf
. Dear Gregor,

Within Marine Scotiand Science Formalin is used for a variety of activities such as as a preservative for
biological samples. The implications of using formalin have been assessed by staff at MSS using MSDS
(attached). In consultation with H&S adviser of MSS it is apparent that the best means of controlling
exposure is though isolating the member of staff from the chemical. The best way to achieve this is for the
member of MS staff to remain in the wheelhouse of the vessel during the both the discharge activity and
any steaming. '

In addition to this information, the attention of the Wellboat operator should be drawn to fhe first aid

(—heasures as laid down in section 4 of the MSDS, the fire fighting measures as laid down in Section 5 of

“the MSDS and the accidental release measures in section 6 of the MSDS. _As the discharge to the marine
environment will be permitted under the marine licence, spillages on the decks of the vessel must be

washed overboard to ensure no secondary exposure.

If the member of MS staff stays in the wheelhouse for the whole duration of the inspection the risk of
exposure would be reduced to an acceptable level. ' )

|
DisplayMSDSPage.p
df {50 KB}

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

oW  http:/iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotiand
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Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

From: Oceanmod [Oceanmod@sepa.org.uk]

Sent: 03 November 2011 15:36
To: Keir A {Alan) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: 1/2 04399 scottish salmon company Wellboat discharge operatlon Eughlam and

Taranish, Lewis
Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Hi Alan,
please find some comménts below on the proposed discharge. Any guestions, please let me know

best wishes
ted

The proposed discharge totals 8,000m3 of formalln solution at 200ppm (or 1,600 litres of undiluted
formalin). This corresponds to a concentration of 2x1045 ug/l formalin. Given that the EQS is 5 ug/l, a
dilution of 40,000 times is required to achieve the EQS concentration. Diluting the discharge this: much
would require 40,000 x 8,000 = 3.2 x 108 m"3 of receiving waters.

From the hydrographic surveys provided, the typical depth of the sea-loch appears to be 20m. A volume of
water with this depth corresponds to an area of 16 kmA2 - roughly the area of the entire Loch Roag.

To achieve the EQS concentration, therefore, the discharge would have to be uniformly mixed throughout
the entire loch. In reality, because of the low currents in the area {mean speeds in hydrographic surveys are
less than 5cm/s), the discharge patch will be advected north and south on the ebbing / flooding tides
respectively, with slow vertical and transverse mixing. Jeremy Spurway has advised that residual currents in
the area are clockwise, so a discharge to east Loch Roag is likely to drift round to wester Loch Roag rather
than directly to the open ocean.

The half-life of formalin has been found to range from 1-7 days so is not likely to persist long term. However,
given the high levels of dilution required (more than 15 half-lifes are required to achieve 40,000 times
dilution) and weak mixing in the area, concentrations could exceed the EQS concentration for days or even
weeks. More sophisticated modelling would be required to provide 'a more detailed quantitative
assessment. This could be done, for example, using the 'wellauto' tool adapted for well-boat applications by
Jeremy Spurway (based on the 'bathauto' fish farm model).

The EQS value of 5ug/l is an Annual Average. Because the treatment is supposed to be a 'one-off’, the EQS in
. the loch is ||ke!y to be achieved, despite the potentially lengthy period of exceedence. There does not appear
to be a Maximum Allowable Concentration value for marine waters {such as the 50ug/| value in freshwater).
However, the Coshh No 41 report supplied indicates a Maximum Exposure Limit (MEL) concentration of
2ppm. Given that the EQS has a safety factor, and is an annual average, this MEL value may be a more
appropriate indication of short-term environmental impact.

To achieve MEL concentrations, the discharge will need to be diluted by a factor of 100x. The discharge will
have the essentially the same density as the receiving waters, so there will be no buoyancy effects to
enhance dilution. Mixing will therefore be dominated by the currents in the receiving waters which, as noted
above, are generally small.

A preliminary assessment using Visual Plumes {dilution model developed by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency) indicates that, for the proposed discharge volumes and flow rates, a dilution of 100x will

04/11/2011
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be achieved after around haif a tidal cycle (~ 6hours) and a within a distance of about 1km from the well
boat. During this time-period and area of impact, the discharged formalin solution will exceed the MEL and
may prove toxic to marine ecology.

The proposed discharge is to a confined sea-loch with low currents, but only a few miles from open water
where much more rapid mixing would be expected. The environmental impact of the formalin solution
would therefore be much reduced if it were discharged outwith the sea-loch after treating the fish. The
impact of a discharge could also be reduced somewhat by prediluting the discharge {e.g. discharging a
fraction of the well, refilling with clean sea water, discharging another fraction, and repeating).

To conclude, the proposed discharge of 1600 litres of formalin to loch Roag is likely to result in a significant
short term impact, though the annual average EQS is likely to be achieved. The environmental impact could
be significantly reduced by discharging to the open water (north-west of Loch Charlabhaigh} rather than
Loch Roag itself.

From: Alan, Kelrz@scotland gsi. gov uk [mallto Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]

Sent: 01 November 2011 16:05

To: Oceanmod @
Cc: Williams, Mark; Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; Sinclair, Douglas '
Subject: 1/2 04399 scottish salmon company: Wellboat discharge operation , Eughlam and Taranish, Lewis

Dear SirfMadam,

As discussed with Mike Bland, please find as attached (and background below) the application details for this
wellboat discharge operation.

) apologise for the extremely short consuitatlon on this application and would be grateful if you could advise if
unable to reply by Thursday 03 November 2011.

Any comments you may have would be very welcome.
Due to the size of the supporting information this is emait 1/2

Kind regards

Alan Keir

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Policy and Planning

‘Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101 375, Victoria Road IAberdeen AB11 9DB
Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579 .
S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524 -

e: Alan.Keir2 @scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: http:/iwww scotland.gov. uk/marinescotltand

From:

Sent: 01 November 2011 10:50
To: Bland M (Michael} (MARLAR)
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi Mike,

04/11/2011
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Please find enclosed application. | have been away on business so a lot of this work was done b-from
our environmental dept, Please get back to me if there are any omissions or corrections to be made. | will
send the appendices as separate attachments.

From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 15:57

To:

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

vi [
As discussed earlier today please bear in mind that a draft EQS of Spg/l has been suggested and you
should consider this in your application.

regards

Mike .

rrom:

Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB
Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); _

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash
Hi Mike,

I can confirm to you that the request is aimed at the East Loch Roag populations; it is too late for those fish
on the Lamlash site. As indicated on Stewarts original mail we are seeing infestation with amoeba in both
Eughfam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discussed
on the phone the minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would equate to one
wellboat well at a time. Wellboats have varying capacity but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would equate
to two wells of 325m3 each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. | will get the applications off to
you with accompanying BPEQ’s and justification as soon as | can. Thanks. o

rom: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 11:59
To: NN
Cc: Jim.McKie@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
Subject: TSCC Lamlash
Importance: High

L
Please find the text of the request below.
Could you please clarify if you intend to apply for a marine licence to discharge formalin at

Lamlash? It is my understanding the the sites you intend to apply for are Taranish and possibly
Eughlam in East Loch Roag and not Lamlash,

04/11/2011
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Regards

Mike

From:

To: Weatherston R (Robin)

Cc:

Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011
Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin, :
I - - irom Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. | was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you.can help me and also pass on this email tc Willie.

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
use formalin in this dire animal welfare situation because it has not been madeled in the marine
environment. Also we were told that the process would take 8 weeks, which is not much good to the dying
fish who need treated now. '

In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with your colleagues at the moment and | understand
there is a realisation that they will try and move fast on this. The reason we are keen 1o get approval quickly
is that we have now seen this ameocbic gill issue in a small number of cages in sites in Loch Roag in the
Hebrides. The mortality is low and the situation is nowhere near the issue at Lamlash but | really cannot
afford to sit and wait to find out what is going to develop. | really need to act proactively on fish welfare
grounds and treat these cages with formalin.

The reason for this email is to request your and Willies help in getting this approval within the next 24hrs. [
realise | do not understand the procedures and bureaucracy but | do know that | have seen fish die
potentially unnecessarily and | do not want this to happen on other locations. The Fish Vet Group and our
own staff are currently completing the forms. What | need is a rapid conclusion from the information
provided.

It is this sort of issue where the Industfy really needs the effective support of Government to help prevent
these significant naturally occurring losses and | ask that you please look at my request and action matters
quickly on my behalf. :

| apologise if I should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you were the only contact | knew and
had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

llook forward to hearing from you.

Regards

04/11/2011
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| Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

From: Schlicke, Ted [Ted Schlicke@SEPA.org. uk] on behalf of Oceanmod
: [Oceanmod@sepa org.uk]
Sent: 02 November 2011 09:18
To: : Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: 1/2 04399 scottish salmon company Wellboat discharge operation’, Eughlam and

Taranish, LeW|s
Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status:  Purple

Hi Alan, -

'm currently re\newmg the documentatlon you sent and will aim to get some comments to you by end of play - |
tomorrow. -

besf wishes
ted

From: Alan Ke|r2@scotland gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Alan. Ke|r2@scotland 95| gov uk]

Sent: 01 November 2011 16:05

To: Oceanmod

Cc: Williams, Mark; Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; Sinclair, Douglas

Subject: 1/2 04399 scottish salmon company: Wellbeat discharge operation , Eughlam and Taranish, Lewis

Dear Sir/Madam,

As dlscussed with Mike Bland, please find as attached (and background below) the application details for this
wellboat discharge operatlon

I apolog|se for the extremely short consultation on this application and would be grateful |f you could advise if
unable to reply by Thursday 03 November 2011.

Any comments you may have would be very welcome.
Due to the size of the supporting information this_is'.email 142

Kind regards

Alan Keir

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Policy and Planning

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101| 375, Victoria Road [Aberdeen -AB1190B
Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579

'S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524
e: Alan. Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

- w: http://www.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From: _ '

- Sent: 01 November 2011 10:50

02/11/2011
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To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

‘Hi Mike,

Please find enclosed application. | have been away on business so a lot of this work was done by Paul from
our environmental dept. Please get back to me if there are any omissions or corrections to be made. | will
send the appendices as separate attachments. '

From Mlchael Bland@scotland gSI gov uk [mallto Mlchael Bland@scotland asi. gov uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 15:57

To:

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi

As discussed ea:rher today please bear in mind that a draft EQS of 5 ug/l has been suggested and you
should consider this in your application.

regards

Mike

From: _
Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB) _
- Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); N
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash . :

Hi Mike,

I can confirm to you that the request is aimed at the East Loch Roag populations; it is too late for those fish
on-the Lamlash site. As indicated on o iginal mail we are seeing infestation with amoeba in both
Eughlam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discussed.
on the phone the minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would equate to one
wellboat well at a time, Wellboats have veirying capacity but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would equate
to two wells of 325m3 each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. | will get the apphcatrons off to
you with accompanying BPEQ's and justlflcatlon as soon as | can. Thanks.

From Michael. B[and@scotland 95| gov uk [mallto Mlchael BIand@scotIand gsi.gov. uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 11;59

To: N

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

Er
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Lamlash? It is my understanding the the sites you intend to apply for are Taranish and possibly
Eughlam in East Loch Roag and not Lamlash. '

Regards
Mike _ -
From: I

To: Weatherston R (Robin) | o :
Cc: *

Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011
Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin, '

I (- - from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. | was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you can help me and also pass on this email to Willie.

I am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment proced ure my team and our vets in
the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine Scotland. | believe they have been talking with -
the Marine Licensing team including Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan. ' oo

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash site where we have
lost 65% {c 250,000) of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water-borne infection which has had
a disastrous effect at this location. In addition to the animal welfare issue this will probably cost us ¢ £5min
turnover and ¢ £750k in profit in 2012. There is no real treatment for this mfectron although the use of
Formalin is one that has been known to have some success.

However despite the fact that formalin is a well known treatment in freshwater we cannot get approval to
use formalin in this dire animal welfare situation because it has not been modeled in the marine '
environment. Also we were told that the process would take.8 weeks, which is not much good to the dylng
fish who need treated now.

In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with ydur colleagues at the moment and | understand
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
realise | do not understand the procedures and bureaucracy but 1 do know that | have seen fish die
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
. these significant naturatly occurring losses and | ask that you please look at my request and action matters

quickly on my behalf.

| apologise if I should be directing my requesit elsewhere but Robin you were the only contact I knew and
“had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

| look forward to hearing from you.

02/11/2011
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Regards

Chief Operating Officer

The Scottish Salmon Company £ Companaidh Bhradan na h-Al

8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scottishsalmon.com _

TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: -Mobile:ml

This e-mail message is for the sole use of the intended recipient and may conltain conﬁdential and privileged infarmalion. Any unauthorised review,
disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended reclplent please conlact the 'sender by reply e-mall, delete the e-mall and
destroy all copies of the original message. -

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s I'T I—Ielpdesk

Commumcatlons via the GSi may be automatlcally logged monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes.

This email has been received from an external party and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.

This e-maiil (and any files or other atlachmerﬁs transmitted with ityis
intended solely for the allen;ion of the addressee(s). Unauthorised
Luse, disclosure, storage, copying or disfribution of any part of this
e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the inlended recipient plea;se
destroy the email, remove any copies from your system and inform
the sender immediately by return.

Communications with Ihé Scottish Government may be monitored or
recorded in order to secure the effective obération of the system and
for other lawful purposes. The views or cpinions contained within
this e-mail m'ay not necessarily reflect those of the

Scottish Government.

02/11/2011




Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

From: Clive Lane [Clive.Lane@mcga.gov.uk]

Sent: ' 03 November 2011 09:45

To: Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB) -

Cc: Janice Lord; Paul Townsend

Subject: Re: 1/2: 04399 scottish salmon company: Wellboat discharge operation , Eughlam and

Taranish, Lewis

Morning Alan,

Following on from our telephone conversation this morning on the salmon fisheries issue on Lewis. Taking
4 into account the urgency of the consent the MCA have no comments presently on navigational safety
grounds that will stop this being approved.

Regards,
Clive.

~ Capt.Clive Lane
- ==Ports Liaison Policy Lead
==Navigation Safety Branch
Maritime & Coastguard Agency
Spring Place
105 Commercial Road
Southampton SO15 1EG
United Kingdom

Phone: 0044(0)23803293%94

Subject to the need to keep up to date file recbrds, please consider your environmental responsibility before
printing this email ~

(  >>> <AlanKeir2@scotland.gsi.gov.ulc> 01/11/2011 16:05 >>>
Dear Janice,

As discussed with Mike Bland, please find as attached (and background
below) the application details for this wellboat discharge operation.

I apologise for the extremely short consultation on this application and would be grateful if you could advise
if unable to reply by Thursday ' '

03 November 2011.

Any comments you may have would be very welcome.

Due to the size of the supporting information this is email 1/2

Kind regards

Alan Keir
Licensing Officer




Marine Scotland - Marine Policy and Planmng Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101| 375,
Victoria Road

| Aberdeen AB11 9DB

Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579

S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524

e: Alan Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: http://www.scotland.gov. uk/marmescotland

From: [
Sent: 01 November 2011 10:50 .
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi Mike,

Please find enclosed application. I have been away on business so a lot
of this work was done by|Jjfrom our environmental dept. Please get
back to me if there are any omissions or corrections to be made. I will
send the appendices as separate attachments.

From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

[mailto:Michael Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk] - i
Sent: 28 October 2011 15:57

To:

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

17

As discussed carlier today please bear in mind that a draft EQS of
5ng/l has been suggested and you should consider this in your
application.

regards



_—

Mike

From: I
Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10 '

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB) :

Ce: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); I
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi Mike,

 Ican confitm to you that the request is aimed at the East Loch Roag
- populations; it is too late for those fish on the Lamlash site. As
~indicated on Il original mail we are seeing infestation with

amocba in both Eughlam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat
the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discussed on the phone the
minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would
equate to one wellboat well at a time. Wellboats have varying capacity
but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would equate to two wells of 325m3
each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. I will get the
applications off to you with accompanying BPEO's and justification as
soon as I can. Thanks.

From: Michael. Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
[mailto:Michael Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 11:59

To: I

Cc: Jim.McKie@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
Subject: TSCC Lamlash

Importance: High

Please find the text of the request below.

Could you please clarify if you intend to apply for a marine licence to
3




.discha:rge formalin at Lamlash? It is my understanding the the sites you
intend to apply for are Taranish and possibly Eughlam in East Loch Roag
and not Lamlash.

Regards

Mike

From:

To: Weatherston R (Robin)

Ce:

Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011
Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin,

_ here from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in
Leith and also on the Minister's visit earlier this year to the

Hebrides. I was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have

his email address. I wonder if you can help me and also pass on this

email to Willie. '

I am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a

treatment procedure my team and our vets in the Fish Vet Group have been
discussing with staff in Marine Scotland. I believe they have been

talking with the Marine Licensing team including Colin Megginson and
Rachael Duncan.

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation
at our Lamlash site where we have lost 65% (c 250,000) of the fish to
ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which has
had a disasirous effect at this location. In addition to the animal

welfare issue this will probably cost us ¢ £5m in turnover and ¢ £750k

in profit in 2012, There is no real treatment for this infection

although the use of Formalin is one that has been known to have some
SUCCess.

However despite the fact that formalin is a well known treatment in
freshwater we cannot get approval to use formalin in this dire animal
welfare situation because it has not been modeled in the marine

environment. Also we were told that the process would take 8 weeks, v

which is not much good to the dying fish who need treated now.




In fairness our Fish Vet Group are again in contact with your
colleagues at the moment and I understand there is a realisation that
they will try and move fast on this. The reason we are keen to get
approval quickly is that we have now seen this ameobic gill issue in a
small number of cages in sites in Loch Roag in the Hebrides. The
mortality is low and the situation is nowhere near the issue at Lamlash
but I really cannot afford to sit and wait to find out what is going to
develop. I really need to act proactively on fish welfare grounds and
treat these cages with formalin.

The reason for this email is to request your and Willies help in
getting this approval within the next 24hrs. I realise I do not
understand the procedures and bureaucracy but I do know that I have seen
fish die potentially unnecessarily and I do not want this to happen on
other locations. The Fish Vet Group and our own staff are currently
F;;completing the forms. What I need is a rapid conclusion from the
-—‘information provided.

It is this sort of issue where the Industry really needs the effective
support of Government to help prevent these significant natimally
occurring losses and I ask that you please look at my request and action
matters quickly on my behalf.

I apologise if I should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you
were the only contact I knew and had details of within Marine Scotland.
Sorty you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

I look forward to hearing from you.
Regards

Chief Operating Officer




8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA
www.scottishsalmon.com

TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: Mobile: 1 NG

This e-mail message is for the sole use of the intended recipient and
may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorised
review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete
the e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.
This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government
Secure Intranet anti-virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide

- in partriership with MessageLabs. (CCTM Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.)
In case of problems, please call your organisation's IT Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored
and/or recorded for legal purposes.
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This email has been received from an external party and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
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This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it)
is

intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised
use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this
e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please
destroy the emdil, remove any copies from your system and inform
the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scoftish Government méy be monitored or
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

PO Box 101 : Qur ref: CNS/MSA/WI/RM
375 Victoria Road -

Aberdeen

AB11 9DB Date; 03 November 2011
By email via: alan keir2@scotland gsi.gov.uk

Dear Alan o

MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4 MARINE LINCENSING

SCOTTISH SALMON COMPANY: EUGHLAM & AIRD TARANAIS FISH FARMS
DISCHARGE OF FORMALIN FROM WELLBOAT, EAST LOCH TARBERT, ISLE OF
LEWIS. :

Thank you for consulting SNH on the above licence application. The treatment -of fish in the
marine environment for amoebic gill disease in this way using formalin is a first in Scotland at
this scale, and therefore there is a degree of uncertainty (and risk) with such proposal. )

The BPEO Assessment provided by the applicant discounts the treatment of the affected fish
by freshwater bath as being impracticable in East Loch Roag. However it is our opinjon that
this should be explored more fully and unless it can be demonstrated that it is fotally
impracticable (in a way that the BPEO Assessment does not do), freshwater freatment should
be the preferred option. Freshwater supplies are available within 4km of the Eughlam site and
2km of the Aird Taranais site, at Kirkibost pier. If that is unsuitable Breascleit pier is a further
2km away. The BPEO Assessment is limited in its discussion of the environmental impacts
which highlights the uncertainties of a formalin discharge of this scale into the marine
environment. We consider that the summary table's conclusions, stating that environmental
impacts from formalin well boat treatment are low, to be unsupported.

Should the discharge of formalin be licensed by Marine Scotland, it is clear there is the
potential for significant toxicological impacts on marine life of Loch Roag. Loch Roag is a
Marine Consultation Area, in recognition of the high biodiversity value of the loch. In addition
the Langavat system at the head of the loch is designated as a Special Area of Conservation
for its wild Atlantic salmon interest. We have limited information on the specific natural
heritage interest within the area likely to be affected, although some MNCR survey data points
close by indicate a shoreline which is composed of kelp forests on boulders/bedrock slopes,
with associated reef species being particularly rich in shallower waters. We suggest that the
following mitigation measures are likely to reduce environmental impacts if formalin is to be
discharged:

I. Flushing: the sites are characterised by a relatively low current speeds (< 5cm/s), with
residual currents within the system rotating clock wise. This means that the discharge
plume is likely to be drawn slowly south and through into West Lach Roag, rather than
out into the open sea. ltis clear that there would be significant benefit in considering

Scottish Natural Heritage, 32 Francis Street, Stornoway, Isle of Lewis, HS1 2ND
Tel: 01851 705258 Fax: 01851 704900

e-mail: roddy.macminn@snh.gov.uk
www.snh.org.uk




discharging to the open water to the north of Craigeam, where mixing and dilution
would likely be more rapid. Should this be impossible, hydrographic modelling should
be used to identify the optimal state of the tide to aid flushing and discharges timed to
coincide with those.

Il. Depth: there is likely to be an increased risk of negative natural heritage impacts with
discharge to shallower waters, closer to the shoreline. Our advice on this would be to
discharge in as deep water as possible and far away from the shoreline, again
preferably outwith the loch altogether to mitigate risks further.

HI. Dilution: The impact of a discharge could also be reduced somewhat by pre-diluting
the discharge (e.g. discharging a fraction of the well, refiling with clean sea water,
discharging another fraction, and repeating).

I hope you find the above comments userl, but please feel free to contact me should you
wish to discuss these matters further.

Yours sincerely

Roddy MacMinn
Operations Officer
SNH - Argyll & Outer Hebrides
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Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

From: ARGYLL_OQOUTERHEBRIDES@snh.gov.uk
Sent: 02 November 2011 11:12
To: - Keir A {Alan) (MARLAB)

Subject: Re: Acknowledgement of 1/2: 04399 scottish salmon company: Wellboat discharge operation ,
Eughlam and Taranish, Lewis

Thank you for consulting Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH) about this development proposal. Your
consultation will be passed to the appropriate SNH officer for response within the required timescale. if
there is insufficient information to enable SNH to give an informed response, we will advise you of this
within 7 days, or within 14 days if the case is the subject of an Environmental Impact Assessment. .

Christine Moody
Stornoway Office

Operations Support Team
Scottish Natural Heritage
Argyll & Quter Hebrides

FAA

Scottish Natural Heritage

All of nature for all of Scotiand

Help to save paper - do you need to print this email?

>>> <Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk> 11/1/2011 4:11 pm >>>
FAQO Stornoway Office

Dear Sir/Madam,

As discussed with my colleague Mike Bland, please find as attached (and background below) the application
details for this wellboat discharge operation.

t apologise for the extremely short consultation on this application and would be grateful if you could advise
if unable to reply by Thursday 03 November 2011. :

Any comments you may have would be very welcome.
Due to the size of the supporting information this is email 1/2

Kind regards

Alan Keir

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Policy and Planning

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101] 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB.
Tel; +44 {0)1224 295579 )

S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524

02/11/2011
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e: Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
w: hitp:.//iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

rrom: [
Sent: 01 November 2011 10:50

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi Mike,

Please find enclosed application. | have been away on business so a lot of this work was done by lfrom
our environmental dept. Please get back to me if there are any omissions or corrections to be made. [ will
send the appendices as separate attachments.

Ffom: Micha_el.Bland@s;:gtrlréha:g’sri:rgrc‘)\‘/;rl.lﬁlg 7[7mailto:Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 15:57

To: '

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

i S

As discussed earlier today please bear in mind that a draft EQS of 5pg/l has been suggested and you
should consider this in your application.

regards

Mike

From:
Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)

Cc: Mckie J (Jim) (MARLAB); (I

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash
~ Hi Mike,

| can confirm to you that the request is aimed at the East Loch Roag populations; it is too late for those fish
on the Lamlash site. As indicated on Il original mall we are seeing infestation with amoeba in both
Eughlam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discussed
on the phone the minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would equate to one
wellboat well at a time. Wellboats have varying capacity but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would
equate to two wells of 325m3 each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. | will get the applications
off to you with accompanying BPEQ's and justification as socn as | can, Thanks.

From: Michael.Bland@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Michaef.Biand@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 11:59
To: I :

Cc: Jim.McKie@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

02/11/2011

("
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
Lamlash? It is my understanding the the sites you intend to apply for-are Taranish and possibly

Eughlam in East Loch Roag and not Lamlash.

Regards
Mike _
rrom: [

To: Weatherston R (Robin)
Cc:
Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011

Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST

Robin,

S - re from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. | was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you can help me and also pass on this email to Willie.

| am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment procedure my team and our vets in
the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine Scotland. | believe they have been talklng with
the Marine chensmg team including Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan.

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash site where we
have lost 65% {c 250,000) of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which
has had a disastrous effect at this location. In addition to the animal welfare issue this will probably cost us
c £5m in turnover and ¢ £750k in profit in 2012. There is no real treatment for this infection although the
use of Formalin is one that has been known to have some success.

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

In fairness our Fish Vet Grbup are again in contact with your colleagues at the moment and | understand
there is a realisation that they will try and move fast on this. The reason we are keen to get approval
quickly is that we have now seen this ameobic gill issue in a small number of cages in sites in Loch Roag in
the Hebrides. The mortality is low and the situation is nowhere near the-issue at Lamlash but | really cannot
afford to sit and wait to find out what is going to develop. 1 really need to act proactively on fish welfare
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
quickly on my behalf. '

1 apologise if I should be directing my request elsewhere but Robin you were the only contact | knew and
‘had details of within Marine Scotland. Sorry you drew this short straw but please help us with this request.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Regards

Chief Operating Officer

¥ The Scottish Salmon Company £ Companaidh Bhradan na h-A

8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scottishsalmon.com (v-'
TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: Mobile: I -

This e-mail message is for the sole use of the intended reciplent and may contain confidentlal and privileged information. Any unauthorised
review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail
and destroy all copies of the original message.

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Iniranet anti-
virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT
Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal .
purposes. '
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This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with i) is
intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised
use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this
e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the Infended recipient please
desfroy the email, remove any copies from your sysiem and inform
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

Scotlish Government.

The original of this email was scanned for vituses by the Government Secure Intranet virus
scanning service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs.
(CCTM Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) On leaving the GSi this email was certified virus free.
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purposes.
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virus service supplied by Cable& Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
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Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

From: Steven Driver [StevenD@nlb.org.uk]
Sent: 02 November 2011 09:39
To: Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

Subject: RE: 1/2: 04399 scottish salmon company: Wellboatdlscharge operation , Eughlam and
Taranish, Lewis

Dear Alan

Thanks for sending this Wellboat discharge operation Marine Licence application. Northern
nghthouse Board has no comment to make on this Wellboat treatment as there are no navigational
issues connected with the proposal,

If any further information is required please get in contact,

Yours Sincerely

From; Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk [mailto:Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
Sent: 01 November 2011 15:53

To: Steven Driver " ‘
Subject: 1/2: 04399 scottish salmon company: Wellboat discharge operatlon Eughlam and Taranish, Lewis

Dear Steven,

As discussed with Mike Bland, please find as attached (and background below) the application details for this
wellboat discharge operation.

| apologise for the extremely short consultation on this application and would be grateful if you could advise if
unable to reply by Thursday 03 November 2011.

Any comments you may have would he very welcome.
Due to the size of the supporting information this is email 1/2

Kind regards

Alan Keir

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Policy and Planning

Scoftish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101] 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579

S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0}1224 295524

e: Alan.Keirz@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w: http:/imww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

From: [
Sent: 01 November 2011 10:50
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
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Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash
Hi Mike,

Please find enclosed application. | have been away on business so a lot of this work was done by-from
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

As discussed earlier today please bear in mind that a draft EQS of 5pg/l has been suggested and you should
consider this in your application.

regards

Mike

rrom: NG
Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10

To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLARB)

Cc: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); I
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi Mike,

I can confirm to you that the request is aimed at the East Loch Roag populations; it is too late for those fish
on the Lamlash site. As indicated on [l criginal mail we are seeing infestation with amoeba in both
Eughlam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discyssed
on the phone the minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would equate to one
wellboat well at a time. Wellboats have varying capacity but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would equate
to two wells of 325m3 each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. ] will get the applications off to
you with accompanying BPEQO's and justification as soon as | can. Thanks.

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

Could you please clarify if you intend to apply for a marine licence to discharge formalin at Lamlash? It is my
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understanding the the sites you intend to apply for are Taranish and possibly Eughlam in East Loch Roag and
not Lamlash. ‘

Regards

Mike

From: _
To: Weatherston R (Robin)
Cc:
Sent: Thu Oct 27 21:38:44 2011
Subject: URGENT HELP REQUEST
Robin,
here from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. | was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you can help me and also pass on this email to Willie.

I am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment procedure my team and our veis in
the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine Scotland. | believe they have been talking with
the Marine Licensing team including Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan.

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash site where we have
lost 65% {c 250,000} of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which has had
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
afford to sit and wait to find out what is going to develop. | really need to act proactwely on fish welfare
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
provided. '

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




Page 4 of 6.

!

Regards

Chief Operating Officer

The Sguttish Salmon Company £\ Companaidh Bhradan na h-Al

8 Melville Crescent, Edinburgh, Scotland. EH3 7JA www.scottishsalmon.com

TEL: +44 (0)131 225 5679 DD: Mobile: GGG

This e-mail message is for the sole use of the intended recipient and may contain confidential and privileged
information. Any unauthorised review, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail, delete the e-mail and destroy all copies of the original

message. =

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-virus
service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM Certificate Number
2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s [T Helpdesk.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for [egal purposes.
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*******************************************************

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is
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
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The original of this email was scanned for viruses by the Government Secure Intranet virus scanning service
supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM Certificate Number
2009/09/0052.) On leaving the GSi this email was certified virus free.

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal purposes.’

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-virus
service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with Messagelabs. (CCTM Certificate Number
2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT Helpdesk. ‘
Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal purposes.
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Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

From: Cartney M (Matthew)
Sent: 01 November 2011 17:51
To: Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB)

Subject: RE: 1/2: 04399 scottish salmon company: Weliboat discharge operation , Eughlam and
ara Lewig

No policy objections.
Regards,

Matt

From: Keir A (Alan) (MARLAB})
Sent: 01 November 2011 16:30
% To: Cartney M (Matthew)
=37 Subject: 1/2: 04399 scottish salmon company: Wellboat discharge operation , Eughlam and Taranish, Lewis

Dear Matt,
Please find as attached (and background below) the application details for this wellboat discharge operation.

| apologise for the exiremely short consudtation on this application and would be gratefui if you could advise if
unable to reply by Thursday 03 November 2011.

Any comments you may have would be very welcome. -
Due to the size of the supporting information this is email 1/2

Kind regards

~ Alan Keir
Licensing Officer
Marine Scotland — Marine Policy and Planning
Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101] 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
Tel: +44 (01224 295579
SIB: +44 (0)1224 876544
Fax: +44 (0y1224 295524
e: Alan.Keir2@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
Wi http:ﬂwww.scotland.qov.uk/marinescotland

From: :

Sent: 01 November 2011 10:50
To: Bland M (Michael) (MARLAB)
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi Mike,

Please find enclosed application. | have been away on business so a lot of this work was done by-from
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our environmental dept. Please get back to me if there are any omissions or corrections to be made. | will -
send the appendices as separate attachments.

From Mlchael Bland@scotland gSI gov uk [mallto Mlchael Bland@scotland gsi.gov. uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 15:57

To: I
Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash

Hi Alan,

As discussed earlier today please bear in mind that a draft EQS of 5ug/l has been suggested and you
should consider this in your application.

regards

Mike

From: ]
Sent: 28 October 2011 12:10
To: Bland M (Michael} (MARLAB)

Ce: McKie J (Jim) (MARLAB); NN

Subject: RE: TSCC Lamlash
Hi Mike,

| can confirm to you that the request is aimed at the East Loch Roag popuiations; it is too late for those fish
on the Lamlash site. As indicated on [ llllloriginal mail we are seeing infestation with amoeba in both
Eughlam and Taranish and would like to be able to treat the fish with formalin in the wellboat. As discussed
on the phone the minimum amount of formalin solution (38%) which would be used would equate to one
wellboat well at a time. Wellboats have varying capacity but if we use a 650m3 boat then this would equate
to two wells of 325m3 each and would mean 65 litres of formalin per well. [ will get the applications off to
you with accompanying BPEQ's and justification as soon as i can. Thanks.

| (

From Mlchael Bland@scotland gsi.gov. uk [mallto Mlchael Bland@scotland 95| gov uk]
Sent: 28 October 2011 11:59

To: I

Cc: Jim.McKie@scotland.gsi.gov.uk
Subject: TSCC Lamlash
Impertance: High

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

.Robin,

B i from Scottish Salmon Company. We met down in Leith and also on the Minister’s
visit earlier this year to the Hebrides. | was actually going to email Willie Cowan but did not have his email
address. | wonder if you can help me and also pass on this email to Willie. ‘

I am looking for your support in fast tracking a license for a treatment procedure my team and our vets in
the Fish Vet Group have been discussing with staff in Marine Scotland. | believe they have been talking with
the Marine Licensing team including Colin Megginson and Rachael Duncan. '

The issue we have is that we have an immediate animal welfare situation at our Lamlash site where we have
lost 65% (¢ 250,000) of the fish to ameobic gill disease. This is a natural water borne infection which has had
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
use formalin in this dire animal welfare situation because it has not been modeled in the marine -
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
Hebrides. The mortality is low and the situation is nowhere near the issue at Lamlash but [ really cannot
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
these significant naturally occurring losses and 1 ask that you please look at my request and action matters
quickly on my hehalf.

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

Sent: ' 26 October 2011 12:00

To: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

Ce: Megginson C (Colin) (MARLAB); [N
. |

Subject: Amoebic Gill Disease at East Loch Roag, Lewis

Follow Up Flag: Foliow up
Flag Status: Red

Dear Rachel,

Further to our recent correspondence regarding amoebic gill disease at Lamlash, Arran (dated 12.10.11), James
Hoare and myself visited the site (14.10.11) to perform a very small-scale initial treatment with hydrogen
peroxide at 500mg/L for 20 minutes on ten fish in a clean harvest bin. The dose rate was based on the lowest
dose thought to have an anti-amoebic effect in vitro from as-yet unpublished work provided to us by Tasmanian
colleagues. '

Disappointingly, the fish did not cope well with this treatment- 2/10 fish died, and alt fish showed respiratory
distress. Following 20 minutes of treatment, fish were placed in a tank of untreated seawater for a further 20
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
the population are reported. ' '

Subsequently, amoebic gill disease has been diagnosed at a Scottish Salmon Company site at East Loch Roag,
Lewis. This was detected on histopathological samples sent by the site (spilt between two groups of caged at
Taranaish and Eughlam) and subsequently confirmed by myse!f on a clinical visit on 20.10.11. At the time of visit,
the site staff were reporting a decline in feeding rates in some cages (similar to early signs reported in Arran),
although over this weekend mortalities have risen. Our limited experience in Scottish amoebic gill disease cases is
that observation of amoebae on histopathological sections does not always mean that severe AGD will develop;
however given the signs at East Loch Roag (amoebae present in all cages, inappetance and rising mortality '
pattern} we expect to see considerable mortality in this case also.

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

Based on the results of the treatment at Arran with hydrogen peroxide, we do not helieve it to be an appropriate
treatment at East Loch Roag at this point. We note that while hydrogen peroxide as a treatment for amoebae is
the subject of some interest in the Tasmanian industry, previous studies have found equivocal results and high
toxicity (Powell and Clark [2004] Aquaculture Research 35 112-123). Furthermore, the huge variation in dose
rates believed to be efficacious {based on the extremely limited published data and discussions with veterinary
colleagues) makes it difficult to confidently advise our clients on hydrogen peroxide or any other oxidative agents
such as chloramine T. )

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
surgeons based on the health status of the fish and their likely ability to tolerate treatment. By treating the worst-
affected pens {alongside the natural decrease in temperature expected over the following period) we would

hope to reduce the infective burden on the site in order to avoid the severity of losses observed at Arran.

Cbviously we understand that this matter requires a period of consideration, but we'd greatly appreciate your
response at the earliest opportunity.

Best wishes,

Veterinary Surgeon

@) FishVet Group B e

Mobile: INNGGGGGGE——

LEGAL INFORMATION: This e-mail message has been swept by antl-virus software. You are solely responsible for ensuring the
mail or attachment you receive Is virus free. We disclaim liability for any damage you suffer as a consequence of receiving any v
views expressed within the e-mall are that of the author and may not necessarily constltute or imply its endorsement or recornm
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

This email was received from the INTERNET and scanned by the Government Secure Intranet anti-  {
virus service supplied by Cable&Wireless Worldwide in partnership with MessageLabs. (CCTM
Certificate Number 2009/09/0052.) In case of problems, please call your organisation’s IT

Helpdesk. :

Communications via the GSi may be automatically logged, monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes. '

ek kakak ek ddedk bk ek Rk ok Atk ek AR A AR AR R A R A A A ik

This email has been received from an external parly and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
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Discharg‘e of Treatment Agents in the Territorial Sea and UK
Controlled Waters Adjacent to Scotland

Marine (Scotland) Act 2010

IMPORTANT: Before you start to complete this form, please read these notes carefully.

The following numbered paragraphs correspond to the questions on the application form and are
intended to assist applicants in completing the form. These explanatory notes are specific to this

application and so applicants are advised to read these in conjunction with the General Guidance
document, If further clarification is needed please contact MS-LOT on 01224 295579 or email:

MS MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Please refer to the General Guidance document for information regarding payment methods.
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Explanatory Notes

2. Applicant

The person, company or organlsatlon making the appllcatlon that will be named as the licensee on any licence
issued.

3. Proposed licensee details
Please provide the details of the person, company or organisation to appear as the licencee.

4. Agent

Any person, company or organisation involved in the works. For example, they may be engaged to act under
contract or other agreement on behalf of any party listed in the answer to question 2 and having responsibility
for the control, management or deposit anywhere below the tidal limit of the mean high water springs (MHWS}).

5. Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEQO) Assessment

Under section 27(2) of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010 {there is no equivalent provision under the Marine and C
Coastal Access Act 2009), the licensing authority has an obligation to consider the availability of practical =
. alternatives when considering applications involving disposal of material at sea. All ‘applications must be -
supported by a detailed assessment of the alternative options - a best practicable environmental option (BPEQ)
assessment. This should include a statement setting out the reasons why deposit of the materials at sea is the
preferred option and applications will not be considered unless they are accompanied by such an assessment.

All options in the BPEO should be explored fully {as per the guidance documents) otherwise your form and

BPEQ are liable to be returned to you, thereby delaying processing of the application.

6. Details of Current Licence (if any)

Enter the appropriate details for the current licence. If you have previously held a licence in respect of this
operation, but no current licence exists, please provide the details for the most recently expired licence. If
you have no knowledge of any previous licence, please enter "not applicable” (or “nfa").

7. Licence Start Date

Please provide defails of when you wish the licence period to start. Licences will normally be issued for a 12
month period, with a pessibility of extension. ' (

8. Discharge Location(s) - .
You must provide information regarding the discharge site covered by the application. Please provide:

« an admiralty chart extract/map with the discharge site clearly marked;

« licensing zone - this refers to the delineation of areas for the purposes of charging, these can be
found at http:/Awww.scotland.gov. uk/Topics/marine/Fish-Shellfish/FHI/managementagreement and

« the co-ordinates for the site where discharge will take place - include a list of the National Grid
References (NGR) or latitude and longitude co—ordlnates of the boundary points for the proposed
dredge areas.

NGR - Should consist of two letters followed by 10 digits (e.g. TL6320031700) where the first 5 digits are the
eastings (read from the south west corner of an Ordnance Survey map) and the last 5 digits are northings.

Latitude & longitude - For positions read from charts of 1:25,000 scale or smaller, the format should be, e.g.

Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, : “§ e
Abeidesn AB119DB by e ie 4 {;
wvew.scotland .gov.ukfmarinescotiand : i "




55°55' 55N 2°22' 22W. The decimal point specifies that decimals of minutes are used and the datum is stated
explicitly. If seconds are used then the datum should be explicitly marked, e.g. 55°565'44"N 2°22'11"W. For
positions read from larger scale charts, e.g. 1:10,000, three decimal places of minutes should be used, e.g.

55°55' 444N 2°22° 222W.
« the distance from land in meters

+ information relating the tidal steams and residual currents, if known (this data should be provided
in a separate submission and/or report).

9. Rationale for Proposed Discharge

Please state why you wish to undertake the activity, for example, discharge of water and chemical product
following treatment of farmed fish for sealice. '

10. Details of Material to be Discharged

Provide the proprietary name(s) of all chemicals/agents (e.g. Excis), the chemical name(s) or other
relevant description(s) of all chemicals (e.g. cypermethrin) and provide all appropriate Material Safety Data
Sheets.

11. Post Treatment Chemical(s) or Agent(s) to be Discharged

Provide details of any treatment of the agents used prior to discharge.

12. Details of Scale of Dischargé _
This section requires the following data to be provided for the material(s) to be deposited/discharged:

 date: wherever possible approximate date of discharge should be provided.

« duration: the estimated duration that the chemicals being discharged are likely to be
detectablefactive in the water column

» . weight/volume of agent: this refers to the discharge dose of each chemical, including post
treatment if required. .

e total volume: the total volume to be discharged from each vessel and also the number of wells in
each vessel to be used during the procedure. :

13. Details of Deposit/Discharge Procedure(s)

Provide details of:
« the origin of deposit (e.g. marine strﬁcture, vessel),
¢ the method of deposit (e.g. gravity, dispharge pump)},
« the mode of deposit (e.g. through a pipeline, valve, diffuser, bucket),
« the depth of deposit (e.g. sea surface, subsurface with depth),

» the rate of deposit (e.g. discharge rate — litres or m® per second, minute or hour). For wellboat
applications, this should be given for each well).

Y S
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14. Details of Vessel Undertaking Discharge

Provide the name and call sign, if appropriate, of each of the structures and/or vessels involved in the
procedure. It is understood that vesse! availability issues often lead to changes over small time scales to
vessel choice. Please be as exhaustive as possible in the list of vessels that may be used to reduce the
need for further administrative changes.

15. Details of Vessel Operator Undertaking Discharge

The name, address and any other available contact details should be provided for the operators and/or
owners of the structures and/or vessels involved in the procedure.

16. Monitoring of Discharge

Provide details of proposed or established monitoring and if you believe monitoring is required. A
condition requiring monitoring of the effects of the activity may be included in the licence.

17. Consultatlon with Conservation Bodies

Consenting Authorities have a duty to ensure marine projects wrll not have a significant adverse environmental
impact, particularly upon designated conservation areas (e.g. SSSI, SAC, SPA, Ramsar sites etc). All details of
consultations with conservation bodies (e.g. SNH) should be given, particularly where the applicant has
statutory powers for consenting aspects of the project. Indicate whether the proposed project is located within
or close to the boundaries of a conservation area such as a SAC, SPA, SSSI or Ramsar site (further information
can be found on the SNH SiteLink webpage http://gateway.snh.gov. uk).

Any application for beach replenishment works should be cross checked as to whether the proposed site is a
demgnated bathing water site and if so, ideally all physical works should be done outwith the Bathing Water
Season (1% June to 15" September). Further guidance on the Bathing Waters Directive (2006/7/EC) can be
obtained from www.sepa.org.uk/data/bathingwaters.

In addition, guidance can be obtained from www. foodstandarde gov.uk/ with regards to the Shellfish Waters
Directive (2006!1 13/EC) which has parameters set to protect the water quality in which edible shelifish are
grown.

18. Other Considerations

Applicants should also be aware of the need to pay due regard fo coastal and marine archaeological matters
and attention is drawn to Historic Scotland's Operational Policy Paper HP6, “Conserving the Underwater
Heritage”.

Please ensure that you have:

s completed all applicable sections of the application form;

® signed and dated the declaration;

. provided the correct relevant documents, charts, and continuaﬁonsheets (where necessary); and

. enclosed the correct payment (together with the remittance slip} or pald by means of BACS ({if
appropriate).

Otherwise your application may be delayed or returned to you.

iarine Labaratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, g
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Application for Discharge of Treatment Agents in the
Territorial Sea and UK Controlled Waters Adjacent to

Scotland '
(ML-004)

Marine (Scotland) Act 2010

It is the responsibility of the applicant to obtain any other consents or authorisations that
may be required.

Under Part 4, Section 54 of the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010 and Section 101 of the Marine and Coastal
Access Act 2009 all information contained within or provided in support of this application will be
placed on the Public Register. There is no national security grounds for application information not
going on the Register under the 2010 Act. Under the 2009 Act, application informatiorj goes on the
Register unless the Secretary of State determines that it's disclosure in the Register, would be

contrary to the interests of national security. ¥

i

Public Register

Is there any information contained within or provided in support of this application that you consider
should not be included on the Public Register on the grounds that its disclosure

(a) would be contrary to the interests of national security?; or . YES |:| NO
(b)  would adversely affect the confidentiality of commercial or industrial information where such

confidentiality is provided by law to protect a legitimate commercial interest? YES |:| NO '

If YES, to either (a) or (b), please provide full justification as to why all or part of the information you have
provided should be withheld.

Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, ) ( *@ g&‘%é} _
Aberdeen AB11SDB by it} iy F& é‘;
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1.  Project Title and Payment Details

" Please give a brief identifiable description, including location, of the project:

Amoebic Gill Disease (AGD) treatment in East Loch Roag (Lewis) using Formalin at stes, Eughlam and
Taranish '
Payment: Enclosed payment [_| BACS || OR Invoice [X]
2. Applicant Details
Title Initials | Surname

Trading Title (if appropriate) The Scottish Salmon Company

Address

Name of:contact

Mid Strome, Lochcarron, Ross-Shire, V54 8YH

Mr. Alan Dykes

(if different)

Position within Company Senior Biologist
(if appropriate)

Telephone No. 01499 600223
(inc. dialing code) 07789 754 064
Company Registration No.  8C107275

Is the licence Applicant the proposed licensee?

If NG, please complete Section 3 below.

3. Proposed Licensee Details

Title Initials

Trading title (if appropriate)

Address

Name of contact
(if different)

Position within Company
(if appropriate}

Telephone No.
(inc. dialing code)

Company Registration No.

Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road,
Aberdean AB11 9DB

wewrw scotland . govukfmarinescotand

Fax No.
(inc. dialing code) -

Email

Alan.dykes@scottishsalmon.com
YES NO [ ]
Surname (
Fax No.
(inc. dialing code)
Email

orredl 60 B ARG -‘f"l'i.‘i"ﬁ
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Agent

An Agent is anyone engaged to act under contract or other agreement on behalf of any party (listed in
sections 2 and 3) having responsibility for the control, management or deposit of the material anywhere
below the MHWS.

Title Initials Surname

Trading title (if appropriate)

- Address

Narme of contact
(if different)

Position within Company
" (if appropriate)

Telephone No.. - Fax No.
(inc. dialing code) - _ (inc. dialing code)

Company Registration No. Email

If more than one Agent please continue on a separate sheet and tick this box |:|

Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEO) Assessment
Has a BPEO been carried out? ves X Nno [

Details of Current Licence (if any)

(a) Licence reference number 04109/11/0 — Eughlam
04104/11/0 - Taranish

(b) Expiry date 15 May 2012

(c) If no current licerice exists, please give reference
number(s) for any previous licence(s) held for
this operation -

Licence Start Date
{a) When do you wish the licence to start? ASAP
(At least 8 weeks are normally required to process the application)
{b) When are deposit operation(s) likely to be completed? Annual renewal
(Licences are generally issued for a period of 12 months A maybe requested
{c) Does the application cover an emergency operation? YES NO []
(If YES, please explain in the covering letter)
Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victaria Road, (" ‘? i
Aberdeen AB11 SDB _ ) DN [ [ /S



See attached letter from the Fish Vet Group 31.10.2011.
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Discharge Location Details 2% im.dun cb LA - A3 W
Water Distance Tidal Streams/
Depth from Land | Residual Currents
Site name Zone Coordinates {m) (m) {if known)
Taranish 6A 58°14.042 24 110 Full hydrographic report
06°48.302 submitted with

- application (Annex 3)

Eughlam 6A 58°15.107 25 222 Full hydrographic
' 06°50.363 report submitted with
application (Annex 3)

9. Rationale for Proposed Discharge

For the effective and urgent treatment of Amoebic Gill Disease

10. Details of Material(s) to be Discharged (Please provide Material Safety Data Sheets for each
chemical to be discharged). _

Proprietary Name of Chemicals or Agents

Chemical Name of Chemicals or Agents

Formalin Solution {38%)

Fomaldehyde

11. Post treatment of Chemical(s) or Agent(s) to be Discharged

Will there be any treatment of the agents used prior to deposit/discharge?

If YES, please give details below:

YES NO []

There will not be specific post treatment as such, but significant dilution of the medicinal compounds will
occur as water is re-circulated and discharged from the well boat in which the treatment takes place.

12. Details of Scale of Deppsit(s)lDischarge(s)

Date of Deposit , Weight/Volume of Total Volume
Deposit {Approx.) Duration of Deposit Agent Deposited | (including solvent)
1 7M1/2011 VICTORIA VIKING: 45 100 litres 100 litres

Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road,

Aberdeen AB11 908
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MINUTES TO
DISCHARGE

2 As above and below
a total of 8 times
including deposit 1.
Total volume
discharged is 1600
litres of formalin at -
38%.

If necessary please continue on a separate sheet and fick this box |___|

13. Details of Deposit/Discharge Procedure(s)
Please provide details for each of the deposits listed in Section 10 above;

: Mode of Depth of | Rate of Deposit
Deposit | Origin of Deposit | Method of Deposit ‘Deposit _ Deposit
1 Victoria Viking Discharge pumps Via pipeline ~3.5-4m Total Discharge
Vessel and through depth at rate of
valves into start, 2000m? / hour/
Discharge decreasing well
Pumps fo 2.5m
depth by Each well 500
finish m°
' Each well 2
pumps
15 minutes for
discharge.
2

If necessary please continue on a separate sheet and tick this box D

14. Details of Vessel Undertaking Discharge

Please provide details for each of the deposits listed in Section 10 above:

Deposit

Name

Registration Details/Call Sign

(if appropriate)

Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road,
Aberdeen AB11 SDB
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1 | MV Victoria Viking | MV Victoria Viking
Call Sign LCLO

IMO #:9521801

If necessary please continue on a separate sheet and tick this box |:|

15. Details of Operator or Vessel Undertaking Discharge

Please provide details for each of the deposits listed in Section 10 above:

Deposit , Name and Address ( -
1 MV Victoria Viking ‘
Migdale Transport
Bonar Bridge

Dornqch Road
Sutherland V24 3EB

If necessary please continue on a separate sheet and tick this box |:| (

16. Monitoring of Deposit(s)/Discharge ,
(a) Do you propose to monitor the deposit(s)/ discharge? YES NO [

(b) Nature of menitoring (eg. visual observation or scientific survey):

Visual observation of plume dispersal and regular.benthic sampling regime will assess benthic

Warine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, {" ‘“‘3 Q@‘mf
Aberdeen AB115DB T | 4
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(c) Details of an.y scientific survey (eg. fluorimetric measurement of concentrations):

17. Consultation with Conservation Bodies
Please provide details of any consultation with Conservation Bodies and, if approprlate include copies
of any correspondence with your application.
Are any parts of the proposed deposit/discharge operations located within the boundaries of a designated
conservation area? _ YES NO D
If YES, please indicate approximate distance of the operations from the boundary ?g:hiﬁavgg::g
of the nearest conservation area(s) SAC and South
Lewis, Harris
and North Uist
NSA
Has an Enwronmental Impact Assessment (EIA)/Environmental Statement (EA) been undertaken to
support any application? _ YES D NO |:]
if YES, is a copy of the EIA/ES included with this application? YES NO D
Yes for Eughlam
If the EIA/ES has been undertaken but has not been included with this application, please provide an
explanation below.
An EIA/ES was produced in support of the Eughlam planning application and is provided (Annex 3).
Taranish was permitted under the old Crown Estate lease permission scheme.
. |s the EIA/ES available for public inspection? 7 YES & NO |:l
If YES, at what 19°aﬁ°”51 Western Isles Council (Stornoway) for Eughlam only
Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victaria Road, ( “3 )
_hberdeen AB119DB el IV {}
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Declaration

| declare to the best of my knowledge and belief that the information given in this form and related papers is
frue. ‘

WARNING
It is an offence under the Act under which this application is made to fail to

disclose information or to provide false or misleading information.

31.102011

Signature . . ' Date

ALANDYKES )

_ on behalf of The Scottish Salmon Company
Name in BLOCK LETTERS

Senior Biclogist
Position within company
. (if appropriate)

Please check carefully the information you have given and that all the enclosures
(including copies) have been included.

Application Check List

« Completed application form x 1 . : : ' v
e Best Practicable Environmental Option document x 1 v
« Project drawings x 1 ' v

(or 7 paper copies if larger than A3 size and no electronic version is available)

e Method Statement x 1 v
iarine Labaratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, “*3 ‘ ;h.“ﬂa.g,_
Aberdesn AB11 SDB e T 4 ﬁ
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» Maps/Charts x 1 _ ' . v

» Additional environmental information, e.g. Environmental Impact Assessment v
etc (if required) x 1
» Payment (if paying by cheque) v
Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, ( "} g*"%é}
Aberdeen AB11 9DRE T g /s ﬁ
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MARINE (SCOTLAND) ACT 2010, PART 4: MARINE LICENSING

BEST PRACTICABLE ENVIRONMENTAL OPTION (BPEQ) ASSESSMENT: DISCHARGE OF
FISH FARM CHEMICAL TREATMENT AGENTS FROM A WELLBOAT

1. INTRODUCTION
11  Background to Application

This Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEO) Assessment has been prepared in support of &
Discharge of Treatment application under the Marine (Scotland) Act 2010, for the treatment of
amoebic gill disease (AGD) at two Scottish Salmon Company (hereafter referred to as TSSC) marine
fish farms in East Loch Roag (Lewis). The sites in which AGD has been diagnosed are Eughlam
and Taranish and it is anticipated that 2 cages will require treatment at each site. In order to achieve
effective treatment of AGD whilst maintaining control of potential environmental impacts, The
Scottish Salmon Company (TSSC) have made an application for the licensed use of Formalin
solution (38%) using well boats.

1.1.1 Current AGD Occurrences in East Loch Roag

AGD was diagnosed at the TSSC sites Taranish and Eughlam in East Loch Roag on 20" October
2011. This was detected on histopathological samples taken at both sites (spilt between two groups
of cages) at these two sites. This diagnosis coincided with a decline in feeding rates (typical of early
signs of AGD akin to that reported in Lamlash, Arran in October, detailed further below), rises in
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
chemotherapeutants.

The recommended treatment for AGD is a 2-3 hour freshwater bath (using tarpaulin or wellboat),
which has been considered by TSSC, in conjunction with the Fish Vet Group and wellboat operator
Solvtrans but this appears not to be practically achievable in this instance. Solvtrans states that they
cannot set up the wellboats to de-water the fish in and out. This means that a new load of
freshwater would be required each time, which is not practical.

Hydrogen Peroxide has been trialed (at Lamlash) but is not efficacious on compromised fish and
produces high mortality, and thus is not believed it to be an appropriate treatment at East Loch Roag
at this point. While hydrogen peroxide as a treatment for amoebae is the subject of some interest in
the Tasmanian industry, previous studies have found equivocal results and high toxicity (Powell and
Clark [2004] Aquaculture Research 35 112-123). Furthermore, the huge variation in dose rates
believed to be efficacious (based on the extremely limited published data and discussions between
veterinarians) makes it difficult to confidently to consm[er the effective use of hydrogen peroxide or
any other oxidative agents such as chloramine T.

It is suggested that strategic treatment of worst-affected cages at East Loch Roag using formalin at
200ppm for 45minutes in a well boat is likely to be the most efficacious and practical solution for the
AGD identified. The cotrect dosage for use of formalin as a topical anti-protozoal is better
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
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treating the worst-affected pens (alongside the natural decrease in temperature expected over the
following period) it is hoped to reduce the infective burden on the site in order to avoid the severity of
losses observed at Arran (detailed below). Formalin is currently being used to treat protazoa like
amoeba at TSSC hatcheries which discharge directly to sea and thus there is precedent forthe use
of this freatment.

We would use on a 650m’ wellboat with 130 litres per treatment and most cages would need two
loads per cage equating to 260 litres per cage. In terms of discharge we can reduce the effect by
discharging one well at a time thus discharging only 65 litres at a time.

Further details of treatment are provided in a letter from the Fish Vet Group dated 31 October 2011,
which is attached to this Marine License application.

1.1.3 Recent AGD QOutbreak at Lamlash, Arran

On 14% October 2011, a small-scale treatment trial for AGD was conducted by the Fish Vet Group in
conjunction with TSSC at the Lamlash site, Arran. Ten affected fish were treated with hydrogen
peroxide at 500mg/L for 20 minutes. The dose rate was based on the lowest dose thought to have
an anti-amoebic effect in vitro from as-yet unpublished work provided by Tasmanian fish
veterinarians. The treated fish did not respond well to this treatment, with 20% dying, and all fish
showed respiratory distress. There was only a modest subjective improvement in gill amoebae
numbers detectable by light microscopy of wet gill preparations and histology. Based on these
results, along with clinical examination of the fish and subsequent histology, it was judged that
hydrogen peroxide at this dose did not appear to be an appropriate treatment in this population and
that the gill disease was too advanced fo consider any other therapy such as formalin.

Fish at this site have since been managed to reduce stress and ensure as prompt mortality removal
‘as possible, but ongoing losses of 5% of fish at this untreated site are reported (circa 250,000 fish).
This equates to an approximate £750,000 loss in profit and £5,000,000 loss in turnover (2012) for
TSSC. Thus TSSC are keen not to have a repeat of the AGD outbreak at Lamlash.

1.1.4 Locations '

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

Formalin - Supplied by: ' : Manufactured by:
Merck Eurolab Merck Eurolab
Merck House . Merck House
Poole Poole
Dorset ‘ Dorset

BH151TD BH15 1TD
Chemotherapeutants for the control of AGD are ‘Prescription Only’ Medicines. This means only a
veterinarian can prescribe the treatment for animals under his/her care. Formalin is a
chemotherapeutant licensed in the UK and has full marketing authorisation.
1.3 Delscription (Nature and Volume) of Materials

Please refer to Product Data Sheets and Material Safety data Sheets (Annex 1).

= Formalin is a colourless, liquid with a pugent odour which is miscible in water. [t comprises
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37-41% formaldehyde solution w/v GPR and contains 9-11% methanol. It causes severe
irritation if in contact with skin and is combustible. It is also a category 3 carcinogen (i.e. not
classifiable as to its carcinogenicity to humans). It is to be administered by addition to
seawater. Treatment dose: 200ppm in sea water.

Formalin is not currently permitted under SEPA CAR authorisations for either of these East Loch
Roag sites.

1.4  Details of Previous, Related Operations Including Current Practice

" Please refer to The Scottish Salmon Company Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for wellboat
treatment operations (Annex 2).

2, DISCUSSION OF AVAILABLE DISPOSAL OPTIONS
Consideration will be given to the following:
21 Land Discharge Via an Qutfall

The volumes of water involved, the operational requirements, and staff and boat time implications
make land discharge practically and technically unfeasible. Furthermore, the depths of waters close
to the shore of East Loch Roag in the areas of farm sites, do not allow a large vessel to come

inshore. Therefore this option has not been considered further in this assessment. ' ‘

2.2  SeaDisposal

2.2.1 Within Fish Farm Cages via CAR Consent ,

The option of treatment using tarpaulins has been considered but there are several disadvantages in
this method which will be discussed in the following section.

CAR consent only allows a limited number of cages to be treated per day for the following
reasons: _

- It requires full enclosure tarpaulins that are extremely difficult to handle when it comes to
this size. Each tarpaulin is 110m circumference and 3 meter deep, a volume close to
1000m’. Treatment volume of a comparable wellboat treatment is considerably less.

- The hydrographic conditions also come into play as the tarpaulin act as a huge sail in
strong tidal currents typical at this place. Although it is possible to treat at slack water, this
may mean cancellation of a treatment due to tide/weather conditions.

- Adverse weather conditions affect tarpaulin treatment more than wellboat treatment
(waves, wind)

- Furthermore, especially with rising sea temperatures and large fish size, it is very difficult
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

discussed fully in the following section.

Treating fish with chemicals at the fish farm cages in a wellboat gives the farmer access to a
controlled environment in which to treat the fish. Seawater temperature control in the wells will aliow
the famer to create an environment in which to treat the fish that increases the fish welfare during
treatment. The volume of seawater in the well is known to the farmer, who can then administer an
exact dose of treatment chemical. Resuiting in even bath treatment for the fish and reduces the risk
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
effective management tool (in particular within a single loch multi-farm system), such an option is not
approved by Marine Scotland and thus this method is not currently being applied for through this
Marine license.

23 Pre-treatment options prior to discharge at sea
None.

3. ASPECTS TO BE TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION

Within Fish Farm Cage via CAR Consent

This would require full enclosure tarpaulins but these can be dlfflcult to handle due to the size of het
pen and the number of fish within them. Weather conditions, in particular wind and wave action
restricts the use of full tarpaulins and full tarpaulin treatments are not ideal in strong tidal currents,
like those typical of East Loch Roag, since these encourage the tarpaulins act as large sails.

‘The number of fish held in large circular péns results in a high oxygen demand during treatment and

it can be very difficult to maintain adequate oxygen levels in the water. The stress levels in fish are
monitored during treatment, and there is a greater risk of aborted treatments using full tarpaulins as.
a result of observed oxygen stress in the fish. Treatments stopped before completion can be
ineffective. The risk of fish mortality is increased significantly when using full tarpaulins through
oxygen stress and overcrowding. Furthermore, the equipment required to fry supply adequate
oxygen {(diffusers, ladders, oxygen crates) is an additional obstruction in the shallowed cages that
can damage and stress the fish. This oxygen kit is also expensive, and physically very difficult to
transport out to, and manoeuvre around the cages.

Given the size of the cages, the quantity of Formalln reql.ured for treatment using tarpaulins would be
much greater than wrthrn a wellboat.

Fish farm cages via Marine licence (Wellboat)

One of the advantages of using wellboat treatments is that the well volume is absolute and known,
and the number of fish pumped into a particular well can be counted, and thus the treatment volume
required is clearly defined. The well and biomass information allows the dose to be calculated more
accurately, giving a more effective treatment. Due to the difference between well volume and full
tarpaulin volume, there is a reduction in the amount of medicine required to treat a given biomass,
and it is estimated that less than half the dose is required for wellboat treatments, relative to full
tarpaulins.

Well boat treatment is particularly useful if grading or transporting of fish operations are occurring
since the use (and cost) of the wellboat is already planned, although weather conditions will
influence the availability of wellboats.

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
tarpaulins. '

Freshwater Treatment '

This has been considered by TSSC, in conjunction with the Fish. Vet Group and wellboat operator
Solvirans. However, this treatment is not considered practically achievable in this instance in this
location. The wellboat operator confirmed that they cannot set up the wellboats to de-water the fish in
and out. This means that a new load of freshwater would be required each time, which is not
practical.

341 Strategic Considerations

3.1.1 Operational aspects, including handling, transport etc
All treatments are under veterinary supervision and/or instruction. All operations are carried out
following written Standard Operating Procedures (please refer to enclosed documents Annex 2).

3.1.2 Availability of suitable sites/facilities
This falls under the responsibility of the Seawater North Production Manager. It consists in booking
a suitable wellboat, for a defined period and a defined task.

3.1.3 Legislative implications, both national and international _

This BPEO supports a Marine licence application for the East Loch Roag area for the use of
Formalin. This chemical is not currently permitted for use at these sites under the SEPA CAR
Regulations for the discharge of medicinal products. '

3.1.4 Summary of the outcome of discussions with third parties (If possible, copies of consultees
replies should be appended to the assessment)

There have been no formal discussions with third parties. However, these sites are part of an Area
Management Agreement, covering Loch Roag and all stakeholders (including wild fisheries) strive to
achieve control over infections, in particular sea-lice. If requested, advice from Western [sles.
Fisheries Trust could be sought.

3.2 Environmelital Considerations

3.2.1 Safety implications :
Please refer to the Material Safety Data Sheets and Product [nformation Sheets (Annex 1).

3.2.2 Public health implications
The only Public Health implication identified relates to Food Safety, with consumption of medicated

fish.

Formalin is licensed for use in the treatment of fish, and all treated fish undergo a withdrawal period
of 500 degree days prior to slaughter. Farming traceability system ensures this period is adhered to
prior to harvesting. '

3.2 3 Pollution/contamination implications, including discussion on: accumulation, toxicity, hazards,
persistence, short and long-term impacts, dilution and dispersion, etc
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NO MODELLING?

A draft EQS of 5ug/l has been suggested by SEPA/Marine Scotland Science

Formalin is currently discharged from landbased hatcheries directly into the sea.

3.2 4 Interference with other legitimate activities e.q. fishing operations and other aquaculture

interests o
An Area Management Agreement (AMA) was signed for Loch Roag in 2010 (Annex 3).

The purpose of the Area Management Agreement (AMA) shall be to voluntarily promote and
implement measures for the maintenance of healthy stocks of wild and farmed salmonid fish in the
geographical area. -

An Area Management Group (AMG) include representatives of each fish farming company present
within the area described including The Scottish Saimon Company and also other bodies including
the Outer Hebrides Fisheries Trust, Western Isles Salmon Fisheries Board and Western [sles
Aquaculture Association. Each organisation has nominated one person to act as a point of contact
and to represent that organisation at meetings.

All chemicals will be discharged away from mussel farms or areas known to support crustacean

fishing such as lobster and prawns.

' 3.2.5 Amenity/aesthetic implications
None

3.2.6 Best practice guidance and mitigation measures
A more effective treatment is achieved with well boat treatments relative to full tarpaulin treatments.

A wellboat treatment allows using fewer chemicals than enclosed tarpaulins. Given the
discontinuous nature of the discharge and the mobility of the vessel it is possible to discharge at
precise times (taking tides into consideration) or at precise locations. Fish health and well-being is
less at risk in a boat.

Wellboat treatment using freshwater instead of Formalin is not practically possible due to the
reasons given above. :

3.3 Cost Considerations

3.3.1 Capital costs, e.g. site costs, transport hire/purchase costs, equipment hire/purchase costs etc.
- Capital Cost: None
- Hire Cost:
Well Boats: Hiring vessel ' £21000/3.5 days
Tarpaulins:  Oxygen Crate and Diffusion Kit £7000.

- Purchase Cost: ~ -
Well Boat: Chemical cost £2 000

Tarpaulin: Chemical cost £10,000
Oxygen Meter £5,000

 3.3.2 Operating costs, e.q. labour costs, site operation costs, fransport costs, equipment costs,
environmental monitoring costs




- QOperating Costs: Unchanged

- . Labour Cost:
Well Boat: 3 men
Tarpaulin: o & men

4. CONCLUSIONS
41 Summary of Available Optioné

The only two options to discharge are either tarpaulin treatment under SEPA/CAR licence or wellboat
treatment under marine licence.

As detailed above, freshwater treatment is not practically possible, and treatment using hydrogen
peroxide is not considered to be efficacious for these sites at this time.
4.2 Summary of Pros and Cons of Each Option

The following table summarise aspects of each scenario:
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4.3 Identification of BPEO

It seems clear that discharge from a vessel is the best option when one considers environmental
impact, chemical usage and fish welfare. '

We trust this will be considered an acceptable option under the terms of the Marine (Scotiand)
Act 2010, Part 4 Marine Licensing.




marinescotland - o B >:<

The Scottish
T-+44 (0}1224 295579 F; +44 (0)1224 295524 Covernment
E: MS_MarineLicensing@scotiand.gsi.gov.uk
File Note
File reference : FKB/WT76
Date ;11 October 2011
Subject : Use of Formalin to treat fish from a wellboat

IEANNAVIENIRE

Marine Scotland received a telephone call from -t Scottish Salmon Company early
afternoon. She explained that they required to use a wellboat to treat fish at Lamlash, Firth of Ciyde as an
emergency. They wished to use Formalin, a chemical not currently authorised under their CAR or Marine
Licence. M stated that the vet had suggested this freatment as the best to use in the situation.

| explained that we would have to look into it as it was a chemical we don't regularly deal with, however
she was asked to submit in writing the request by the vet to use Formalin and the reasoning behind it
along with details of the operational procedure with concentrations etc. She explained that she had all this
to hand and would forward it shortly.

In the meantime, | spoke with Patrick Grey of the FHI who said that it was used regularly at freshwater )
farms however they had no record of it being used in the marine environment.

. SEPA: After failing to get hold of Douglas Sinclair | spoke with Simon Kirk the officer who dealt with the
CAR licence for that site. He was not aware of any problems at the site and was surprised not to have
heard from them. He confirmed that no modelling had been done to date so couldn't say for sure it would
be suitable or what concentrations etc should be used. He had to speak with [Ny vay so
would discuss the situation with her and find out what is going on.

Later in the afternoon after 4pm. | got hold of Douglas who had spoken with Simon Kirk in the interval. It
seemed that Scottish Salmon Company were requiring to treat for amoebic gill disease and if this was the
best treatment the vet was suggesting then it was up to us if we wished to proceed and licence it as part of
their Marine Licence. However, he had done some research and found that Hydrogen Peroxide may work
just as well (which is currently licensed for use) and if we were to let them use it we should ask for
justification as to why they are rejecting the alternatives. He also made the point that SEPA only authorise
VMD authorised medicines only and he didn't believe Formalin was, he thought it was a biocide and that
may cause additional problems if this was decided to be discharged. Justification required.

| responded to Scottish Salmon Company explaining that we aren’t in a position to permit the use of
Formalin at this point and recommend finding and alternative which is currently licensed. If they wished to
go ahead with Formalin the process would be quite extensive.

Rachael

11 October 2011

harine Laboratory, PO Box 101, 375 Victoria Road, ' {' '"3 e,
Aberdeen AB119DB T A {5
- Fepge? b

wiww.scotland gov.ulkgfmarinescatiand
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Duncan R {(Rachael) (MARLAB)

From: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)
Sent: 12 October 2011 15:14

To: _
Cc: 'douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk’
Subject: RE: AGD at Lamlash, Arran

Hi I

Marine Scotland is happy for you to trial the treatment with Hydrogen Peroxide, providing SEPA are also
satisfied.

If following the trials, you intend to continue with the request to use Formalin. Please note, if the potential
use is to be within the cages this falls under SEPA's remit and if you wish to use itas a wellboat treatment
Marine Scotland should be contacted but bear in mind the process may be quite lengthy.

Regards

Rachael

Rachael Duncan

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101] 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579 -
S/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 (0)1224 295524

e:_Rachael.Duncan@scotiand.gsi.gov.uk

w:_http:/Awww . scotland.gov. uk/marinescotiand

* Please note the generic env_prot inbox has changed, it is now: MS. MarineLicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk *

From: I

Sent: 12 October 2011 13:28

To: Duncan R {(Rachael) (MARLAB)

Cc: Megginson C

(Colin) (MARLAB); douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk; I
Subject: AGD at Lamlash, Arran

Dear Rachael,

I ior\varded a copy of your email regarding the use of chemotherapeutants for treatment of amoebic gill
disease at Lamlash, so | wanted to update Marine Scotland with what's presently going on. [
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

Following your email we plan to examine further using hydrogen peroxide (Paramove 35} as an in-situ bath
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" treatment. Based on clinical examination and histopathology the fish may be too compromised to wait for the
avallability of a weilboat, and may not survive such a treatment. At present we are trying to arrange delivery of
an IBC to the site in order to perform a small field trial on affected fish- probably in harvest bins- to assess the
effects of 3 different concentrations on severely AGD-compromised fish. We intend to draft a trial protocol with
the input of the product distributors (Aquapharma}. In addition to considering the therapeutic efficacy of
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
Description: Description: Description: FishVet Group

Mobile: +44(0)7769 266156

LEGAL INFORMATION: This e-mail message has been swept by anti-virus software. You are sclely responsible for ensuring the
mail or attachment you receive is virus free. We disclaim liabillty for any damage you suffer as a consequence of receiving any v
views expressed within the e-mail are that of the author and may not necessarlly constitute or imply its endorsement or recomm
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

Communications via the GSi may be automatically Iogged monitored and/or recorded for legal
purposes.

This email has been received from an externat party and

has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.

FRRR AR K RAH A AR AR A AA AR KA R AR RARARFNR KR Ak vk ik kbbb kkrk ko Rkt dx
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Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

From: Duncan R (Rachael) (MARLAB)

Sent: 11 Qctober 2011 17:12

To: I

Cc: Megginson C (Colin) (MARLAB); ‘douglas.sinclair@sepa.org.uk’

Subject:  Use of formalin at Lamlash, Firth of Clyde
Importance: High

Tracking:  Recipient Delivery Read
I -
Megginson C (Colin) (MARLAB) Delivered: 11/10)’2011 17:12 Read: 12/10/2011 07:24

'douglas.sin{_:lair@sepa.org.uk'

Following discussions with colleagues here and within SEPA I'm afraid at this stage we cannot permit the use
of Formalin in the treatment of amoebic gill disease at Lamlash. Considering the urgency with which
treatment is required, the procedure to allow for the use of this chemical would take too long. We are aware
that is is used in the treatment at freshwater farms however its use in the marine enviroment has not been
modelled to date. We are also aware that there are alternatives available. From advice we have received, it
has been suggested hydrogen peroxide is effective at least in vitro and should be considered as an alternative
for use in this situation.

In order for us to continue to consider the use of Formalin we would require The Scottish Salmon Company to
justify the rejection of alternative treatments which are already consented for use, either under the CAR or
Marine Licence. Also, we would require in writing justification from your vet for the use of this treatment over
others. Could you please confirm whether Formalin is a medicinal chemicai?

Thank you for consulting us on this matter.
Regards
Rachael

Rachael Duncan

Licensing Officer

Marine Scotland — Marine Planning & Policy

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory, PO Box 101]| 375, Victoria Road | Aberdeen AB11 9DB
Tel: +44 (0)1224 295579

5/B: +44 (0)1224 876544

Fax: +44 {0)1224 295524

e: Rachael. Duncan@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

w_http:/iwww.scotland.gov.uk/marinescotland

* Please note the generic env_prot inbox has changed, it is now: MS. MarineLicensing@scotland gsi.gov.ak *
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